TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
Open-Enroliment Charter Schoof Renewal Application
Coversheet

Name of School: Medical Center Charter School

PPlicagy,,

Current Grade Levels Served:; PK — Grade 6___Additional Grade Levels Requested: Grades 7. 8

Maximum Grade Levels to be Served: 3 Year PK — Grade 8

Current Enrollment: 270 Maximum Authorized Enroliment: 375 Requested: 620

Name of Sponsoring Entity: Medical Center Charter School

Check One: X 501 (¢} (3) Nonprofit
Organization Governmental Entity
College or University

SBOE District: 6

Chairperson of Board of Sponsoring Entity: R. Vemon Colpitts, M. D,

Applicant Mailing Address: 1920 N. Braeswood, Houston, TX 77030

Contact Phone #; 713.791.9980 Fax# 713.791.9594

Chief Executive Officer of Sponsoring Entity: R. Vemon Colpitts, M.D.

Chief Executive Officer of School: Terry-Heard Management. inc. and JLM Management, Inc.

CEOQ/School Contact Fhone #: 713.791.9980 Fax# 713.791.9594

CEQ/School E-nail Address: mheard@snschools.com  jmeckeyi@snschools.com

CEOQ/School Mailing Address: 1920 N. Braeswood Houston, TX 77030 (Also first campus)

School Site Address: Second campus: 10420 Mullins Houston, TX 77086

(If different from above)

I certify that | have the authority as the Chief Executive Officer of the sponsoring entity designated above to make
application for renewal of an open-enroliment charter school. | further certify all information contained in this application is
complete and accurate, realizing that any misrepresentation could result.in disqualification from the charter application
process or revacation after award. ! authorize the agency to investigate the references included in this application.
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Open-Enrollment Charter School
Renewal Application
. For _
MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
HOUSTON

INTRODUCTION

Medical Center Charter School was the seventh applicant in the state to be
granted an open-enroliment charter.

CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
INTRODUCTION:

Medical Center Charter School has achieved high performance levels in educational
program, student achievement, enrollment growth, financial development, and other
measures submitted in the Application for Approval of an Open-Enrollment Charter in
1996.

Specifically, the charter school addresses here in the renewal process the
accomplishment of all provisions contained in the charter relating to the educaticnal
program as required: [(1), (3), (4), (), (7), (8), (10}, (11), (12), (13) of Oct. 13, 1995
application] and components that support the program.

A. The Educational Program: Provision (1): The educational program is offered
as proposed in the application for charter, and has been successful.

1. Languages taught are English, Spanish, French, and Latin (Grade 6). The
method is phonetic, grammatical, and immersion in format. Students complete
activities in speaking, reading, and writing in these languages. Eight multi-
lingual teachers are on the faculty.

2. Computer centers for student use support the curriculum in each classroom and
a Telecommunications Infrastructure Fund Board grant this year will provide
additional applications, including internet use.

3. The Montessori Method is provided for the prekindergarten and kindergarten
students and brings our children who have not developed readiness, academic,
and social skills to the level of more advantaged peers. Most are reading by the
end of prekindergarten and virtually all are reading by the end of klndergarten

4. Rules and attitudes are approached with a set of Ground Ruies that summarize
required behaviors. Each classroom begins the day with a presentation of a
ground rule and one period each day is reserved to read classic literature to the
students and teach character development principles. Students are taught to
understand the cause and effect relationship between behavior and results.

5. The curriculum is presented as designed in all subject areas. Subjects inciude
Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, History/Geography/Economics, Physical
Education/Health, Montessori/Practical Life Skills, Computer/Library, Fine
Arts/Music/Art, and Character Development. Mid-term and final exams are
given by the school to evaluate mastery of curriculum requirements.

MCCS RENEWAL APP 00 B. REVISED 10/30/00




6. A high grading standard is maintained with percentage reporting, weighting of
tests in the six week's grade, and a Progress Report that includes conduct and
study habits.

7. A Summer School session has been offered. A twenty day Summer School in
July is offered for a possible total of 204 days for the purpose of meeting
promotion requirements or for progressing into more advanced work.

8. One period per day is scheduled to address program needs, including English
Second Language, Special Education, and Gifted and Talented. The levels
system of placement also addresses individual needs. A smail group tutorial
program calied Study Skills has given students small group tutoring.

9. Parents have received instruction in using books and materials {o assist
learning at home. Topics include the different subject areas, planning, and
study skills.

10. The school participates in the Child Nutrition Program for free, reduced, and full
price breakfast and lunch. The snack program will be added in the future.

B. Student Achievement: Provision (3): The Texas Assessment of Academic Skills
tests:
1. No student has been exempted from TAAS at Medical Center Charter School.
Students may be exempted only by recommendation of the ARD or LPAC.
2. The accountability rating has been Acceptable and for 2000 was Recognized
for the MCCS-SW campus.
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3. TAAS Scores for four years show increasing percentages of students passing
with a score of at least 70.

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL, HOUSTON
Percent of Students Passing TAAS: 1997-2000
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4. The average Texas Learning Index, which shows smaller increments of change
than pass/fail, has improved each year along with the percent of students
receiving Academic Recognition in reading and mathematics.

NMEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL, HOUSTON
Texas Assessment of Academic Skills: Reading
Growth in the Texas Leaming index and Percent Receiving Academic Recognition:
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NEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL, HOUSTON
Texas Assessment of Academic Skills: Mathematics
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5. Medical Center Charter School students compare well to the Texas state and local
ISD TAAS scores.

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOCL, HOUSTCN
TEXAS ASSESSMENT OF ACADEMIC SHILLS 2000
PERCENT PASSING ALL TESTS IN THE STATE, HISD, AND MOC
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6. Students enrolled in all groups, including special programs and racial and ethnic groups"'
have shown strong achievement gains.

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL, HOUSTON
PERCENT PASSING TAAS BY RACE, ETHNIC GROUP, OR PROGRAM: 2000
(Scores listed as 0% are omitted for sake of confidentiality.)

PERCENT PASSING

L)
Reading Mathematics B Writing &

C. Additional Accountability: Provision (4):

“The lowa Tests of Basic Skills will be used annually with projected annual

gains of one year or more” (This was listed in the additional accountability

provision in the charter for MCCS.)

1. The lowa Tests of Basic Skills have been given in May or upon entrance, again
in December, and at the end of each year for a baseline for students completing
kindergarten through grade six.

2. The lowa Tests of Basic Skills gains in Total Reading, Total Language, and
Total Mathematics have exceed the annual minimum gains of one year (10
months) per year of study.

AVERAGE GAINS ON THE ITBS FROM 1997-2000

IOWA TEST OF BASIC | AVERAGE GAIN PER | PERCENT OF TYPICAL
SKILLS: YEAR (In years) GAIN (10mo.)
SUBJECT AREA
Total Reading 1.28 128%
Total Language 1.24 124%
Total Mathematics 1.39 139%
13 it a
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GRADE EQUIVALENTS

100

IOWA TESTS OF BASIC SKILLS: TOTAL REACING: 19899-2000

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Change In One Year
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NEDICAL CBNTER CHARTER SCHOCOL
IOAR TESTS OF BASIC SHILLS BY GRADE: TOTAL LANGUAGE: 1999-2000
- Change In One Year
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOCL
IOWA TESTS OF BASIC SKILLS: TOTAL MATHEMATICS: 1999-2000
Change In One Year
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D. The Governing Structure: Provision (6)
1. The governing body is the Board of Directors of Medical Center Charter School,
operating pursuant to its By-Laws.
2. The Board of Directors contracts with Terry-Heard Manangement, Inc. and JLM
Management Inc. to operate the schools as Chief Executive Officers.

E. Qualifications of Professional Employees: Provision (7)
1. Professional employees are certified or hold a minimum of a bachelor's degree with
educational experience.
2. Continuing education has exceeded the charter specifications of 20 hours per year
with six days of school presented workshops and other inservice opportunities.
3. Criminal history checks are done for all employees and volunteers on the
campuses.

F. Annual Budget Adoption: Provision (8).
1. The Board of Directors approves a budget prepared by the CEQO’s in consultatuon
with their accountants, McGee Wheeler, and Co., P.C.
2. The Cerified Public Accountants advise management concerning in house
financial procedures and provide quarterly reports {o the school.
3. Teachers, staff, and administrators make funding and budget recommendations for
budget planning.

G. The Annual Audit and PEIMS Information: Provision (10}

1. The annual audit has performed by a CPA firm approved by the TEA, Bloomstrom
and Co., P.C., after the close of the fiscal year.

2. PEIMS information is submitted by the Director of Administration and employees
attend training sessions for using approved software. Submissions are made with
the assistance of Region V.

3. The physical and management startup environment for MCCS was provided by
Saint Nicholas School, Il, L.P. Startup expenses were deferred without interest
until they could be paid. MCCS has operated with a surplus for the last two years.

H. Describe the facilities: Provision (11)

1. The first campus is located at 1920 N. Braeswood, Houston, 77030. It is a private
school campus, with 19% of the classroom space reserved for the charter school.

2. The second campus, 10420 Mullins, Houston, 77096, was approved by the State
Board of Education. It is also a private school campus with 63% of classroom
space reserved for the charter school

3. Both campuses are widely known as workplace schools with the majority of parents
working in the medical center.

. The geographical area served: Provision (12).
1. The area served is U.S. Postal ZIP Code 77030, including all employees of the
Texas Medical Center, and U.S. Postal ZIP Code 77096.
2. After the registration deadline of February 1, registration has been open-
enrotfiment.
3. MCCS has served students from seventeen school districts throughout the
Houston and Galveston area.

17 G118
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J. The districts in the geographical area: Provision (13)
1. The only district in the physical geographical area is the Houston ISD.
2. The impact forms in previous years have been sent to the Houston ISD, the Alief
ISD and the Fort Bend ISD.

K. Enroliment History
1. Projected enroliment was originally 110 students. Additional enroliment has been
approved for 360 students.
2. The current enroliment is 270. The school has grown from 115 to 270, an average
growth of 34% per year.

il. STATEMENT OF NEED
A. Describe the continuing need of this charter school.

1. Our charter parents and the community have made recommendations for the
charter's renewal because the school is meeting a need for parental choice.
Parents express a need for “something better”, or an altemative. They express a
feeling that the school is “like a private school” because they get to choose, and in
this case to choose a curriculum that is not offered in other public schools.

2. There is a strong demand for the educational program we are providing. The
growth in program offered and numbers of students enrolled demonstrate this
need. More than half of students entering the school are functioning below grade
level and need remedial work.

B. Explain why the charter school model is the appropriate vehicle to address this
need.

1. Charter schools in Texas were established at a time when high school graduates
too often were not performing well enough in basic skills to be able to function well
in our society. Some groups of students were not showing adequate leveils of
mastery. The preferred curriculum, methods and content of educational institutions
were not always research based. Innovation and reform models did not have high
visibility. Both campus charters and open-enroliment charters responded to those
needs. The charter schools have contributed with the districts to rising tests scores
in a climate of competition, innovation and focus on evaluation.

2. The charter school model is in a position to demonstrate very different approaches
and interpretations in public education that can be adapted elsewhere when they
are successful. The charter school model brings the possibility of failure to a low
performing school, which gives definitive meaning to the possibilify of success to a
high performing school.

. 3. With increasing numbers of students entering elementary schools and producing
facility demands, charter schools help provide campus space for the children of the
community. The charter schools have managed to provide facility space, not
withstanding the lack of funding for this purpose.

18
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4. The charter school model provides competition and diversity that will improve
performance in ail schools. .
In 1998 after the Texas State Board of Education awarded 41 additional
charters then-board chairman Dr. Jack Christie said, “This is a large step in the
bold experiment to create competition and excellence in the [Texas] public
school system.”
From Charter Schools in Action: Reviewing Public Education, by
Chester Finn, Jr., Bruno V. Manno, and Gregg Vanourek, copyright 2000
by Princeton University Press.

lll. VISION OF THE SCHOOL

A. The long-range vision of the school is expressed in the Mission Statement of
Medical Center Charter School, found in the Parent/Student Handbook:

The goal of Medical Center Charter School is to offer a model school
environment to inspire and serve families through high standards of personal
interaction and through a challenging curriculum that sets high standards of
achievement. The school environment strives to show respect for the individual
and teaches the values of duty, honor, and service: to individuals, to the family,
and to the community. It is our goal that each child will become a person of
integrity and will take responsibility for personal attitude, behavior, achievement,
and relationships. The school and parents can accomplish this by explicit
teaching of these values and the essential skills producing independence in
thinking and learning. The parent and student pledge that homework and ail
school requirements will be met as a condition of enroliment.

Self-respect, personal confidence, and an optimistic personality are benefits for
the child who has been successful in essential skills, can risk the effort to do his
best, wants to do what is right, and wants o help and give to others.

B The school offers a classical curriculum that meets the individual learning needs of
students and addresses the special requirements of the international community of the
Medical Center and the city of Houston.

1. The curricutum presents multilingual classrooms: Spanish (PK-6), French (Gr.PK-
6), and Latin (Gr.5 and 6).

2. Technology, phonetic and grammatical analysis of languages, development of
mathematical thinking, and the Core Knowledge sequence are important strands.

3. Prekindergarten and Kindergarten Montessori classes orient students to work
habits, caring attitudes, ground rules for behavior, and a concrete basis for the
development of knowledge.

4. Character development and self-discipline are explicitly taught

« Understanding why we fearn and how we learn are the Key to understanding
motivation.
» itis important that the entire school community be mofivated.

>
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s The Student/Parent Handbook is a summary of our agreement to work
together.

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

PARENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

STUDENT/PARENT HANDBOOK

We have received, read, and agree that our family will support and
comply with all policies and provisions of the Medical Center Charter
School Student/Parent Handbook as a condition for enroliment in
school.

Student Signature:

|Parents’ Signatures or Person with legal authority

5. Our vision supports academic focus on the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills,
and other goals of the school, including standardized national tests, and
intemational tests, if available.

IV. GOALS FOR THE SCHOOL
A. Student goals
1. Our goals and objectives for the next five years are:

To ensure consistent organization of curriculum and presentation based on the
TEKS '
To improve performance on the the minimum performance set by the state

To improve performance on the ITBS, a national standardized achievement test
To improve performance on required six weeks, mid-term, and final exams
prepared by administrators and faculty of the school.

To provide an orderly, safe, and cheerful environment supported by the
students, parents, and facuity that promotes personal and academic growth

2. The measurable school performance objectives for each goal listed above are:

The student performance will meet or exceed the minimum required by the
state for an Acceptable or higher level of accountability.

The Texas Learning Index will improve an average of at least 10% per year until
Exemplary accountability status is attained

There will be an average improvement of at least 10% per year in percentage of
students passing each test within each group tested.

The ITBS will be given each year, before school begins, in December, and at
the end of the year for a base line with gains of 110% or more annually in Total
Reading, Total Language, and Total Mathematics.

Required school tests will set minimum levels and equalize the testing standard
of the school.

Working relationships and perceptions of groups in the school will be measured
and reported including administrative, facuity, parents, and students.

3. Progress will be measured in this way:

»

These objectives will be organized and reported on a Scheol Scoresheet.(C),
which will be posted in the lobby of each campus.

PRSI
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e The Accountability Rating by the state will aiso reflect the measurable
objectives above.
4. Progress wili be reported in the annual report of other accountability measures to
the SBOE.

B. Other School Goals

1. Other school goals include continued enroliment growth.

2. The acquisition of a third campus (to be owned by Medical Center Charter
School) is a continuing goal. A third campus would enable us to offer 3yr PK
through grade 8 for 620 students. The campus might also include a separately
managed licensed childcare facility to accommodate younger siblings,
afterschool, and summer programs.

3. ltis anticipated that a grant proposal for land will be prepared and submitted by
the spring of 2001. In view of no current state funding for charter school facilities
such an objective will only be met by a substantial gift of property, the vaiue of
which would enable the offering of non-taxable bonds for the construction of a
campus.

4. These accomplishments, if achieved, will be reported to the SBOE in the annual
report of other accountability measures and possibly to the agency and public.

V. EDUCATIONAL PLAN
A. INTRODUCTION: Describe the educational program:

+ Student needs are evaluated by scores in readiness and language skills, or
vocabulary and reading comprehension, and students are assigned to multi-aged
classrooms. The curriculum adjusts to custom fit the student in a three grade range
that includes remedial, average, and advanced placement.

o Study Skilis classes are held for students testing below grade level and English
Second Language students.

« Students are presented an enriched environment of foreign languages, computer
centers, classroom work centers, and additional assistance from their teachers. -

+ The educational program of the school will continue to be strengthened over the
next five years:

1. The minimum curriculum required by Section 28.002, Texas Education Code
is described by the Scope and Sequence Correlation with TEKS for Language
Arts, Mathermatics, Science, and Social Studies.

2. Unique Curricular Experiences are offered:

a. English, Spanish, French, and Latin
b. Technology, with classroom computers, calculators, and other equipment
c. Practicatl life skills and other concrete learning from the Montessori
curriculum
d. Character development, self-discipline, and social skills
+ The cormnerstones of the curriculum and are taught through established
ground rules based on the Montessori method and values in classical
literature.
* They are the basis for the calm classroom atmosphere that gives
personal support, a time on task focus, and high achievement.
+ Character development is not an add-on or enrichment curriculum; it is
the foundation that enables learning and personal development. Social
21 3 00
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skills are an integral part of character development and include personal
care, table manners, and personal relationships.

+ Some examples of character qualities are: alertness, ambition,
appreciation, bravery, cheerfulness, consideration, contentment,
cooperation, courage, and courtesy.

3. The TEKS goals, objectives, and content are corollated with the Scope and
Sequence information and address goals, objectives, and content in all subject
areas and grade levels. The Scope and Sequence Correlation with TEKS for
Language Arts, Mathermatics, Science, and Social Studies is based on the
Star-Spangled Skills for Student Success, Curriculum Resource, by Jimmie
Driver, with modifications for Medical Center Charter School.

4. The curriculum plan of the school incorporates TEKS requirements. Teacher
Year Plans follow the curriculum plan as well as Lesson Plans, classroom
instruction, and teacher evaluations. Student assessment by Criterion
Referenced Tests, school required tests (end of course), the TAAS, and the
ITBS standardized tests will show the effectiveness of the curriculum plan.

5. Students will be on track to meet state graduation requirements if they are
passing state required tests at the elementary level such as the TAAS. Each
year additional requirements will be evaluated.

6. Teaching methods used in the school enhance student learning. For example,
the foliowing describes the pedagogy of reading and mathematics:

e Reading instruction includes a comprehensive language arts approach of a
sequence of the 44 phonetic elements of English in materials that are more
than 90% decodable and predictable. The English ianguage is presented so
that most first graders complete the sequence and are competent
independent readers, recognizing 2000 or more words. Less dependence
on context for word recognition focuses attention on comprehension. With
increasing student proficiency, the reading material includes words that
expand the vocabulary. The student becomes ready to read literary works
of classical authors in complete original form, many of whom wrote for
children. It is a lost dimension in education and a lost sensitive period of
childhood to present diminished “readability” versions of literature. Oral
phoneofogical work, oral language instruction, and oral and written
comprehension skills support comprehension and vocabulary deveiopment.
Language material is supplemented with early teaching of the parts of
speech and diagramming of sentences. The Latin (romantic) basis of the
four languages we teach is a unifying element. The formal teaching of
handwriting includes the calligraphy skills of Italic Handwriting.

¢ Mathematics instruction proceeds from intuition and the concrete to
abstractions and symbol processing. Practical problem solving and projects
using manipulatives in small groups develop concepts. Students recognize
that there are many ways to accomplish a task, and are involved in
discovering algorithms and sharing approaches. Teachers present
mathematical routines and oral drilis daily to supplement the lesson.
Concepts are introduced in years before mastery is required and are
revisited with varieties of format. At strategic points after a concrete basis
has been established, students overlearn (or memorize) and are tested on,
in a traditional format, basics such as arithmetic facts and their application to
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computation and problem solving. Evaluations are based on mastery
concepts and skills. Most students will complete Aigebra | in grade 8.

7. The assessment of individual student progress is a key concept that determines
homeroom placement and student programs at MCCS.

Using the lowa Tests of Basic Skills, students are assigned to levels that w:!l
present the curriculum that they need.

Students entering PK and K take Criterion Referenced Tests that cdrro!ate
with the materials used for placement into the curriculum. They are followed
by the ITBS during the K year.

Early assessment of reading is continued every day in the classroom with
daily practice and evaluation of sounds, blending, decoding, and dictation,
with weekly records kept on every child.

The baseline of achievement is established upon enfrance and is evaluated
each semester by ITBS scores in Total Reading, Total Language, and Total
Mathematics.

This information is used for placement decisions and for assignment to
Study Skills classes.

Placement may be different for mathematics classes which is important for
the significant minority whose math skills predominate.

8. lIdentification of strengths and needs of individual students are accomplished by
analyzing the evaluation data. Teacher and parent insight also contributes.
Individual needs are met by placements into the curriculum, the Study Skills
program, tutoring, parent involvement, and individual attention.

9. Program goals and standards are being met as demonstrated by assessments
including the TAAS and ITBS, and by faculty, parentai, and student reporting.
10.Student evaluation results improve instructional programs. Programs are

reevaluated each semester to realign the emphasis indicated.

11.Professional development opportunities are offered to support the mission of
the schoal.

Beginning with a four day workshop on instruction and classroom
management each summer, a twenty day team teaching summer school
session follows.

Two inservice days are held during the school year for all teachers.

All teachers in grades two through six attend the Charter Resource Center
TEKS workshops in July.

Teachers attend workshops at Region IV, including sessions for TAAS
coordinators, grant writers, and special education coordinators.

All kindergarten and first grade teachers attend the Kindergarien and First
Grade Academies.

An annual Everyday Mathematics workshop presented by a consultant is
attended at Saint Nicholas Schools.

Neiheus Center courses are attended.

Core Knowledge Conferences are attended.

Workshops in Special Education and English Second Language are
presented by consultants.

Early dismissal every Thursday permits teachers meeting time for work in
curriculum, grading, classroom management, discipiine, team planning, or

other topics.
35 0
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o Throughout the year the teacher receives feedback on proficiency towards
school goals from a three stage ongoing evaluation pian: preparation of the
environment, curriculum and planning, and classrcom performance and
management.

B. Special Needs Students/Programs
1. Special Education students are accommodated. Board policies address these and
other issues: Information is taken from Medical Center Charter School:
SPECIAL EDUCATION POLICY MANUAL.

P

Child Find: It is the policy of this school that ongoing efforts will be made to
identify, locate and evaluate children below 22 years of age who reside within
the school attendance area as described in the charter application and have a
confirmed or suspected disability in accordance with all federal regulations and
state standards.

Confidentiality: it is the policy of this school that the confidentiality of personally
identifiable data relating to chiidren with disabilities and their parents and
families are protected at collection, storage, disclosure, and destruction, and
that one official of this school is assigned the responsibilities for protecting the
confidentiality of personally identifiabie data. This school follows federal
regulations and state standards related to the confidentiality of data. -
Procedural Safeguards. It is the policy of this school that the child with a
disability and his/her parent are provided with safeguards, as required by law,
throughout the identification, evaluation, and placement process, and the
provision of a free appropriate public education to the child.

Notice of Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee Meetings:
MCCS assures (in the case of non-adult students) that one or both parents of
the student with disabilities are present at each meeting or are afforded the
opportunity to participate. ‘

Assessment of Children to determine eligibility. Procedures will include
Evaluation, including Comprehensive Individual Assessment, Determination of
Needed Evaluation Data, Time Line, Purpose, Documentation, Observation,
Assessment of Physical, Mental, and Emotional Conditions, and Assessment of
Learning Competencies.

Development and Implementation of the Individual Educational Plan (IEP). At
the beginning of each school year, the school has in effect an |EP for every
special education student who is receiving special education and related
services from the school.

Least Restrictive Environment (LRE) Placement MCCS offers educational
programming and opportunities to students with disabilities within the regular
program and curriculum to the greatest extent possible and with individuals who
are not disabled.

Transition Planning: Beginning at age 14, transition planning is a consideration
of the ARD meeting during development of the Individual Education Plan. The
IEP goals and objectives are developed considering student description of
interests and postgraduate living experience expectations through the transition
pltan addendum.

Certified Personnel: MCCS currently serves ail special education students in
the mainstream setting. We contract with a special education consuitant who
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provides assessment and speech services. We also contract with a consultant
who conducts the ARD and meets with parents and teachers on a regular basis.
Training is regularly conducted with teachers regarding the referral and
ARD/IEP process. All contracted personnel are properly cerlified. We are
continually advertising and looking for additional special education certified
personnel. Cumrently one staff member holds an out of state special education
permit and two are in the process of applying for emergency permits in Texas.
Medical Center Charter School encourages the teaching staff, through
incentives, to enter certification programs through the local universities and
Region IV.

¢ Services to Expelled Students: A special education or 504 student may not be
expelled until an ARD meeting or 504 meeting is held to determine whether the
child’'s handicapping condition is retated to his conduct.

1. Other federal programs have been used in the school and are coordinated for
maximum impact with the special language and mathematics programs in Study
Skills, tutoring, summer, parent education, and other MCCS programs. Funding
programs that have been in pface include:

« Title | Part A: Helping Disadvantaged Children Meet High Standards

¢ Title | Part D: Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children and Youth

Who are Neglected, Delinquent, or At Risk of Dropping Out

Title Il Part B: Eisenhower Professional Development Program

Title IV Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Program

Title VI Innovative Education Program Strategies
e Title X: Public Charter Schools Grant

2. Children may qualify for other state programs, whose funding and programs are
also coordinated for maximum impact. The school has implemented the following
programs:

« Bilingual/ English as a Second Language (ESL): Every student that is enrolled
who has a home language other than English and who is identified by testing as
limited English proficient is provided an ESL program as required by the Texas
Education Code, Chapter 29, Subchapter B. The summer program includes
students entering pre-kindergarten who are ESL, and the school offers special
language programs. The Language Proficiency Assessment Committee
(LPAC) receives training in its duties.

» State Compensatory or Accelerated Education: Students who are are testing
below grade level on the ITBS participate in the coordinated programs of the
school to enhance academic success, especially Study Skills.

* Dyslexia: Screening and Treatment for Dyslexia and Related Disorders as
defined in TEC 38.003 is performed in connection with the ongoing testing and
evaluation program of the school and in accordance with special education
policy.

» Gifted and Talented: All students are tested upon entrance and yearly to
identify students as defined by Texas Education Code 29.121. Students who
score 89™ percentile or higher on the lowa Tests of Basic Skills in language,
reading, or mathematics will be eligible for the gifted and talented program. .

3. Students “At risk of dropping out of school” are identified as described in TEC -
29.081 or may be identified by a score below the 40™ percentile in a major area of
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the lowa Tests of Basic Skills. They receive educational support from programs

including Study Skills and other measures as indicated.

The extended school day and twenty day summer program provide opportunities

for other student activities and an enriched curriculum including art, music, soccer,

softball, swimming, pets and gardening.

» The extended school day is from 7:15 to 8:00 a.m. and from 3:15 to 4:00 p.m.

e Childcare from 6 a.m. and to 6 p.m. is available at the campus with Saint
Nicholas School but with separate registration, policy, and fees requirements.
Saint Nicholas Schools has provided a sliding scale for these services.

C. Admissions Policy

1.

The timeline for admitting students begins December 15" this year. New
applications will be available at that time and completed applications are accepted
with a stamped date and sequential number of receipt. After February 1, open-
enroliment is followed, with no zipcode or other additional requirement. During the
year at any time students may apply and be admitted if space remains. If the
application is complete students are scheduled for testing. Prekindergarten
students must qualify as ESL , homeless, or economically disadvantaged to be
elegible for attendance.

Students are tested for placement in groups according to the grade they are
projected to enter. Upon scoring the test, students are assigned to a homercom
level. If more students qualify than can be accepted, a lottery will be held.
Acceptance letters are sent to parents beginning March 1.

The testing process proceeds monthly for grades that have possible openings until
the school has no openings.

This process is non discriminatory on the basis of sex, national origin, ethnicity,
religion, disability, academic or athletic ability, or the district the child would
otherwise attend. Students are excluded by a documented history of a criminal
offense, a juvenile court adjudication or discipline problems under Subchapter A,
Chapter 37.

Vl. SCHOOL DEMOGRAPHICS

A. Enroliment projections for the next five years:

1.

2.
3.

The school has grown at an annual average rate of 34%. Althrough that should
decrease over time, the increase for this year was 59%.

There is parent interest in completing the schooi through grade 8.

The number of students in each homeroom is projected to be 24-28 with
enrichment  subject teachers (Study Skills, PE, ArtMusic, and
French/Spanish/Latin) adjusting the ratio to 1:19, and with assistant teachers
included to lower the ratio to 1.15. Each grade level is expected to include an
average of 56 students. '
Projections of growth for five years are:

2001-2002: 350

2002-2003: 440

2003-2004: 530... ..

2004-2005: 620 (maximum)

[t
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6. School demographics by race, ethnicity, and program are illustrated:

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOCL, HOUSTON
Percent of Student Population

10% -

PERCENT OF STUDENT POPULATION

0% | b
1997 1998

Bl African American O Hispanic

& Asian/Pacific Islander Native American Economically Disadvantaged

B Limited English Proficient B Special Education E Gifted and Talented

B. Describe the community or region of each campus:

1. The Medical Center campus, 1920 N. Braeswood, 77030, is south of Holcombe
Blvd. and because of new medical construction is moving toward being central to
the entire medical center area. The shuttle is hearby. The new light rail system will
be one block away on Fannin. The majority of school parents work in this area,
and many younger families live here as well. |t is an international community with
strong diversity of nationality, race, and economic status.

2. The Southwest Campus, 10420 Mullins, 77086, is in the Meyerland/ Bellaire area,
which is a favorite area of many who work in the medical center. It is accessibie to
many charter parents who live in the Missouri City and Bellaire areas.

3. A third campus would preferably be in the South Main area. Several tracts have
been identified as suitable. This area would be close to the South Loop and is on a
triangle with the other two campuses that places them about 20 minutes apart.

17 R
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VIl. GEOGRAPHIC BOUNDARIES AND STATEMENTS OF IMPACT
A. Description of area:
1. The proposed geographic boundaries are the zipcodes of each campus plus
those zipcodes of satellite healthcare operations of medical center institutions
located in zipcode 77030.
2. After February 1, applications may be accepted for open-enroliment of any
student.

B. The list of all districts that we have drawn students from in the geographical area
includes: Houston, Alief, Fort Bend, Stafford, Galveston, Friendswood, Aidine, Lamar,
Pasadena, Pearland, Cy-Fair, Galina Park, LaPorte, North Forest, Crosby, Waller, and
Spring. Sixty-eight percent of MCCS students come from HISD, seventeen percent
from Fort Bend, and seven percent from Alief.

School Districts
in the Harris Co./ Houston Area

C. The Statement of Impact form has been sent to Houston ISD, Alief ISD, and Fort
Bend ISD and the receipts will be sent to the Division of Charter Schools:
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Viil. COMMUNITY SUPPORT

A. Local and national groups are interested in the charter school.

1.
2.

Area hospitals are involved and continuing development is anticipated.

Charter Schools In Action, Renewing Public Education, by Chester Finn, Jr.,

Bruno V. Manno, and Gregg Vanourek, copyright 2000 by Princeton University

Press, lists Medical Center Charter School twice.

* “Finding a Serviceable Facility”, page 125, describes using a shared
buiiding.

¢ Many Kinds of Neighborhood”, describes where “neighborhoods transcend
contiguous geographic space to include workplaces, curricuiar philosophies,
values, etc.”, on page 232. _

Education Week published an article March 25, 1998, about MCCS entitled

“Worksite Charter Schools Take the Edge Off Commuting”, by Lynn Schnaiberg.

This may be seen at www.edweek.net. , then Archives, 1998, Medical Center

Charter.

Margot Heard was a conference speaker at the National Charter Scheol

Conference: Accountability, sponsored by Drexel University and Foundations

Technical Assistance Center, held April 15-17, 1998 in Atlantic City, New Jersey.

The Charter School in Action Workshop topic was “Scafing Up, the Crucial First

Two Years”.

The Forbes article, “Build It and They Will Come” was published in April, 1999,

and mentions Medical Center Charter School.

Margot Heard was a guest instructor in April, 1998, on the distance leaming

University of Houston course “Evaluating Gifted and Talented Programs”, where

she described instruction by levels instead of grades and mainstreaming gifted

and talented students. :

B. Discuss any business arrangements or partnerships..

1.
2.

Cooperative arrangements have been made with local hospitais.
Joint activities with the hospitals have included:

» Promotion of the school as an employee benefit
Promotion of enrollment

Information on intranets

Funding of science and mathematics teacher training
Sale of used equipment

Field trips and tours

Invitation of the children for holiday events and parties
Concerts by the students presented in the lobbies
Letters are included: Attachments 1-7
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C The Notice of Intent To Apply For Renewal of Open Enroliment Charter Schoo!
has been published in the Houston Chronicle, and mailed to the city council and
commissioner's court. Evidence of publication and delivery are enclosed.
Attachment 8

D. The notice of a hearing to publicly review the renewal application was published in
the Houston Chronicle. Evidence of publication and delivery are enclosed.
Attachment 9
1. The meeting was held at Medical Center Charter School, 1920 N. Braeswood, at

6:00pm on Friday, October 27™.
2. The Minutes of the Meeting: The meeting was a summary presentation of the
charter renewal application by Margot Heard and James McKey.

IX. HUMAN RESOURCE INFORMATION
A. Human resources policies

1. Salaries. Salary Scale
s Bachelor's degree, no certification: $24,000 minimum
+ Certified teacher: $27,000 minimum. Will increase to $30,000 in 2001.

» Other considerations are previous work history, responsibility, and salary,
proposed duties and responsibilities, length of employment at MCCS, teacher
evaluations, and student performance.

2. Hiring, dismissal, and Contracts: All MCCS non-leased employees at this time
are professional. Professional employees are offered an annual contract when
their employee file including credentials is complete. Sample Contract:
Attachment 10

3. Teacher Evaluations are completed throughout the year by principals and
administrators and are signed by the teacher and evaluator.

| 4. Selections From the Faculty Handbook: Policies

Benefits: Contract employees are eligible for medical and dental benefits upon
employment. Full time non-contract employees are eligible for medical and
dentat benefits after S0 days.

» The school has a cafeteria plan whereby costs toward medical insurance,
child or grandchild tuition, or 401k contributions apply as pre-tax expenditures,
which results in a tax savings.

» The school offers employee medical insurance, dental insurance, and life
insurance at rates announced each year. Saint Nicholas Schools also offer
parent and grandparent discounts of 50% (or no more than one-third of
income) for tuition and childcare expenses at Saint Nicholas Schools.

» Charter employees receive Texas Teacher Retirement.

Absence from work:

+ Full time salary employees are allowed five personal days per year earned at
the rate of one day per month worked that year if required notice is given.

e Emergency absence must be reported by 6:30 am that day to the office so
that staffing may be planned. An employee who is absent must call the office
before 4pm each day to report whether he will be returning the next day for
staffing purposes. In the case of absence due to illness, a doctor's excuse
may be required. '
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» tUnapproved absence may place the employee on probation, and additional
incidents may result in termination. Staff will not be excused for late arival,
extended lunch breaks, or leaving work early, without approval in writing
(unless for illness) from the Principal.

¢« Absence from work will result in reduction in pay unless approved for illness
or, in the case of a personal day, in writing by the Principal in advance.

» Staff may have personal leave without pay (if approved in advance) if suitable
substitutes can be arranged, with the exception of days immediately before or
after a scheduled holiday, when absence is never approved.

+ Family leave will be given; please give adequate notice when possibie.

B. Administrators
1. A notarized Biographical Affidavit is attached for the following administrators

James L. McKey. Attachment 11
Margot T. Heard: Attachment 12
William H. Heard: Attachment 13
Graciela Garcia: Attachment 14
Hazel Harrison: Attachment 15

2. The powers and duties of administrators are as follows:
a. The schooi's Chief Executive Officers are Terry-Heard Management, Inc., and

JLM Management, Inc. The job description for the CEO’s is to manage the
financial and education operations of the charter school under the policies and
directives of the Board of Trustees of Medical Center Charter School.
Organizational Chart. Attachment

The Organizational Chart illustrates the chain of command. All administrators
are leased part-time employees from Saint Nicholas Schools. Most full time
charter teachers are charter contract employees. Attachment 16

C. For Faculty and Staff

1.
2
3.

The qualifications for teachers is to be certified or to hold a minimum of a
bachelor's degree and have teaching experience.

The qualifications for assistant teachers or substitutes is to have a minimum of a
high school diploma and have pre-service training or educational experience.

The administrative, facuity and staff size is thirty. There are thirteen homeroom
teachers, four language teachers, two physical education teachers, and three
music or art teachers for a total of 22, or 16 full time equivalent teachers. Present
enroliment is 270 and the teacher-to-student ratio is 1:17. Including four assistant
teachers, the ratic is 1:14.

Job descriptions for faculty and staff include instructional and non-instructional
duties such as preparation and teaching, faculty and parent meetings, record
keeping, before and afterschool duties, routines of taking students to the
restrooms and food service, and teaching practical life.

o R
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The Faculty Handbook describes some duties.

Curriculum and teaching: _

s Year Plans are due as announced prior to the summer session and the school
year. Lesson Plans are due each week to the Director by Thursday at the
faculty meeting.

o Weekly exams and key papers must be submitted to the Director or Principal
to be ready for the teacher to send home Friday. If a student's average drops
below 80 in any subject, the Principal must be notified and the student may be
placed in Study Skills tutoring.

e Procedures and reguirements regarding homework assignment books,
grading, grades, grade books, lesson plans, class lessons, methods, and
classroom management are included in the Teacher Notebook and teacher
manuals and are required.

» Report cards are issued each six weeks period and averaged grade sheets
are due as announced. Non-homercom teachers are required to submit
grades to the homeroom teachers a minimum of one day before the
homeroom teacher's grades are due.

+ Classroom Schedules must be followed exactly and coordinated smoothly by
staff.

e The annual and faculty calendars list events and due dates.

The weekly Faculty Meetings are appropriate times to present guestions,
problems, and opportunities.

Displays and Housekeeping: :

« Each teacher should prepare displays of academic work, art work, and other
displays producing an attractive environment and showing the quality of
teaching, work, and units being taught in that classroom. They must be kept
fresh and updated, and must relate to the required Curriculum and Materials.

s Each day teachers, assistants, and students, using practical life skills, must
leave classrooms in good order, clean, and ready for class:

D. Code of Conduct
1. Student Behavior Requirements are described in the Student/Parent Handbook.

DISCIPLINE

SUMMARY OF THE GROUND RULES FOR STUDENTS:

e THE BELL: When the teacher rings the hand bell: Students stand, watch
the teacher, fold their arms in front of them, wait in silence, listen to
directions, and wait to move until the bell has been set down.

¢ SITTING ON CIRCLE (FLOOR): Students sit straight attentively with legs
crossed, hands in lap.

» STANDING FOR CLASS: Students stand behind chairs quietly with hands
resting until given instructions.

« TO SPEAK: Student raises hand, waits to be recognized, and then speaks.
Yes and no, preferably used with ma’am or sir, are required.

¢ LINING UP: Students are to get in line when directed, have hands down by
their sides, face forward, and walk silently.

_* it r: 2
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« RUGS AND MATERIAL: Carry all materials carefully and with both hands.
Walk around rugs, keep all work pieces on the rug, and mark rugs with
student name cards. Put materials away according to lesson directions.
Everything in the classroom has a designated place.

QUIET VOICES: Students use quiet voices inside the building.
SITTING IN CHAIRS: Students sit facing forward, legs under the desk or
table, and feet flat on the floor.

o DESKS: Students keep their desks neat and clean with books and tablets
stored as instructed, with two pencils and one eraser and any other
materials in the zippered school supply case.

o TABLE MANNERS: Students sit comrrectly, use a napkin, hold and use
silverware correctly, eat without spilling, use appropriate conversation, and
finish their meal on time.

s GREETING AND DEPARTURE: Students speak to adults first, greet the
teacher and adults upon arrival, and get signed in for attendance. When
students leave they are taken to carpool, checked out, and say good-by to
the adult. They are expected to greet the parent or person picking them up,
and maintain ground rules until off school property.

o UNIFORM AND NEATNESS: The complete uniform and neat appearance is
a requirement to attend class. Shirts tucked in, ties tied, belts on, correct
socks, shoelaces tied, and neat and clean hair and nails are required at all
times. The complete PE uniform is required for participation. Students will
not be admitted to class without complete uniform.

+ BOOKS AND MATERIALS: Students are required to have books and
supplies at school each day as required. Composition books, paper,
pencils, and ink will be needed and may by purchased in the office.
Supplies for Art and Music are required for participation.

» PARENTAL TEACHING:. Parents are asked to teach their children the
ground rules of the school Not caring for the property of others, not
showing respect and manners toward adults, and any manner of hitting
other students will be swiftly and firmly corrected.

2. School Policy regarding suspension and suspension.

DISCIPLINE MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES for not following the ground rules may
include (1) issuing of a discipline notice to parents; (2) assignment of compositions
that analyze behavior in terms of responsibility, duty, personal honor, and service to
others, including family and school; (3) confiscation of items that are not allowed at
school; (4) in-school suspension; (5) detention, (6) practical life duties; (7) loss of
privilege; (8) probation; or (9) expulsion from school.

DISCIPLINE NOTICES: Discipline Notices may be sent home for incorrect or
incompiete uniform, excessive tardiness or absence, incomplete work, or poor
conduct. Before returning to class any corrective written assignments must be made,
a conference held (if requested), and the notice signed by the parent and retumed to
the front Office desk before going to class. If a student returns to school without such
compliance the resuit will be an immediate suspension. If parents cease to support
and comply with the policies of the school to which they agreed upon upon enroliment
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of their child, the student will need to be withdrawn. The school has a written proc‘é'ss;’
for expulsion.

GENERAL MISCONDUCT VIOLATIONS: Any conduct that would be a violation of
the laws of the State of Texas or the United States of America or one listed in General
Misconduct Violations must be reported to the principal, who in turn must notify the
parent within 24 hours of receiving the report. Disciplinary action may include serious
action including removal from class, suspension, removal to an alternative education
program, or expulsion.

The Code of Conduct of the School describes student expulsion policies. Prior to an
expulsion a hearing will be held in which the student is afforded due process.

3. Attendance requirements are described in the Student/Parent Handbook, and are
required to meet conduct requirements and the mission of the school.

TARDINESS AND ABSENCE: Elementary students are tardy if they arrive in
their seats after 8:00 am. Students absent or tardy are not entitled to complete
work or exams missed without an excused absence slip. An acceptable written
excuse from the parent must be given to the Administrator upon arrival in case
of tardy arrival, or upon return from absence, or an excused absence will not be
given. Absence without prior approval from the office is not excused without an
acceptable written excuse for excludable illness, doctor ordered absence from
school, or death in the family. Absence, with prior approval from the office
required, will be excused for reasons of medical appointments or religious
observance only. Students may not be absent for family travel or any other
reason. All unexcused work will receive a grade of zero.

X. BUSINESS PLAN

A. Financial Management:
1. The current year's budget with revenues and expenditures to date is attached.
Attachment 17
2. The 2001-2002 projected budget is enclosed. Attachment 18
3. The Business Procedure Handbook procedures for MCCS daily operations
Attachment 19
¢ Financial: Deposits are prepared daily by the Administrator with cash receipts
given and taken to the CEQ for depositing into the bank. Data entry is made by
the person responsible for Accounts Receivable. Accounts Payable checks are
approved by the CEQ and then written. Reconciliation and other record
keeping is completed for review by the CPA monthly.
¢« Food Service: Cards or tickets are sold to the students for breakfast or lunch
and the designated teacher punches used units.
4. The current monthly budget status report to the Board of Directors is included in
Attachment 17
5. The financial and payroll accounting system, being used this year is SchoolWorks.
With both student and financial components, it gives us the capacity to meet
PEIMS requirements. PEIMS information is submitted by the Director of
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Administration. Four employees have attended training sessions, and data entry is
in progress. Submissions are made through the assistance of Region IV,

6. The outside annual audit is performed by a CPA approved by the TEA |,
Bloomstrom and Co., P.C., after the close of the fiscal year. The 1999 audit report
is attached. Aftachment 20, The 2000 audit is in progress.

B. Facility Management

1. Description, addresses
The original campus is located at 1920 N. Braeswood, Houston, 77030. it is a
private school campus, with 19% of the classroom space reserved for the charter
school. |t is fenced, locked, and has video surveillance and keypad entry. A gate
and stairway lead to the charter classrooms. The school also uses a playing field,
classroom computer centers, a commercial kitchen, a dining recom, a clinic, and
office space.

2. The second campus, 10420 Mullins, Houston, 77086, was approved by the State
Board of Education. It is also a private school campus with 69% of classroom
space reserved for the charter school. This neighborhood, in the Meyerland area,
is popular with medical center families. The campus is four acres, fenced, locked,
and has video-surveillance and keypad entry. A charter office, a six classroom
building, a soccer field, driveway, and parking expansion have been added for
charter school growth. The schools each share a commercial kitchen, clinic, and
some office space.

3 Acquisition of land and a permanent charter school facility is anticipated in the next

few years.

4. Lease agreements are attached. Attachment 21,22

C. Student attendance accounting

» Procedures: Attendance: Attendance forms are turned into the office every day
by the homeroom teacher with absent students listed. Attendance is taken daily
at noon and turned into the office for recording into software.

« A current school year calendar is attached. Attachment 23

e Teacher/student contact hours are 8 am. to 4 p.m. with early arrival time of
7:15am.

« Students eligible for a Public Education Grant may enroll at any time under school
board policy, space permitting.

D. Transportation and food service

1. Transportation will be provided for students eligible for special eduation as required
by their Individual Education Plan (IEP).

2. Saint Nicholas School provides van service for a fee.

3. Provisions for food service are made, including free/reduced breakfast and lunch
under the Child Nutrition Program.

4. The school contracts food service with Saint Nicholas Schools

5. Breakfast and lunch cards or tickets are available for purchase in the office.

[ e
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E. Outreach and Marketing Plan to attract students
1. Daily tours of campuses for prospective parents and interested persons at 8:30

am.

Workplace postings of letters, posters, and brochures

Workplace intranet postings of information

Attending workplace vendor events with literature and personnel available

Giving out literature outside grocery stores and posting inside

Apartment building postings of literature in mail or laundry rooms

Direct mail cards in nearby neighborhoods

A teacher and class was featured on a local TV talk show

Local newspaper features have been done

10.National newspaper, magazine, and CNN features have been done

11. Parents have brought their friends and co-workers

12. Monthly prospective enroflment noon Brown Bag parent meetings and tours

13. Uniforms result in questions about the school because students make a good
impression.

CENDOBWN

Xl. GOVERNANCE OF THE SPONSORING ENTITY

A. Profile of the sponsoring entity board members

1. Describe members, including names, background and experience, and three
references for each. Attachments 24

2. Notarized Biographical Affidavit for each member attached. Attachments 25-29
3. Describe the following

Officer positions are President, Vice-President, and Secretary

Selection of officers and members is by vote of the board.

Removal of officers and members is by vote of the board.

Vacancies are filled by vote of the board.

Terms of the board members are four years.

Terms are not staggered.

4, The CEQO presents textbook selections to the Board of Trustees for approval.

Selections are prepared by administrators and facuity.

Q0o UTw

B. Governance Structures and Processes
1. Steps are being taken to maintain continuity.between the founding coalition’s
vision and future governing boards. The written structures of the school define
policies, procedures, and curriculum. A team of administrators work together to
establish procedures and routines that furthur efficiency and success. The faculty
is growing in size and contribution. The CEQ’s coordinate this development.
2. There is one board.
3. The procedures for receiving and responding to complaints from parents and
employees are described in the Handbooks.
« Parents and employees are asked to first consult with the teacher or
administrator as relevent,
* Second, to consult with the principal.
Third, to consult with an appeointment with the Admmtstratlve Team of directors
and principals.

»

R
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» Fourth, if necessary, a letter should be addressed to the President of the
Board of Directors for board consideration.

4. A productive relationship between administrators and teachers is fostered by the
following: Administrators have interviewed and selected the teachers. Contracts
and the Faculty Handbook define the agreement. Orientation to the job and one
week of inservice before summer school, and summer workshops help faculty
prepare. During the school year weekly faculty meetings are held. Faculty
calendars are prepared with due dates and events. Conference time is available
each day with administrators. The principals and curriculum director are in each
classroom most days. Assistance with materials, year plans, lesson plans, and
classroom management is given. Inservices from outside sources are presented.
Teachers are backed up by administrators and have authority over their students
as defined by the school. Teachers receive regular evaluations and in turn
submit a questionnaire, both of which are factored into the School Scoresheet.

5. Each month an average of 75 parents participate in school activities. Each month
many parents have telephone or personal conferences with administrators and
with teachers. Parents have times each month to participate in school meetings:
¢ Curriculum (Home/School Connection, third Thursdays at 5:30 p.m.}),

o Recruitment {Brown Bag Meetings at noon first Thursdays),

¢ School Committees, meet on fourth Thursdays at 5:30p.m.

¢+ Homercom meetings on Mondays at 4:00 p.m.

Notes from parent meetings are discussed by administrators and are responded
to with changes in communication and program to increase effectiveness.
Parents and students have full access to teachers and administrators. Parent
concerns have a complaint procedure to follow. Parents and older students
complete questionnaires each marking period that are factored into the School
Scoreshset.

6. The Private Entity

+ Leases have been signed with Saint Nicholas School, Ltd. and Saint
Nicholas School, Il, L.P. for the use of buildings, furniture, equipment, and
maintenance, and for administrative, curriculum, and teaching services.

+ The Board of Directors has a management agreement with Saint Nicholas
School, II, L.P. for the school to provide school management services to
Medical Center Charter School.

s The individuals involved in management are Margot T. Heard and James L.
McKey, who were the founders of the charter school.

s The CEO and founders of the charter school are also presidents of the
corporations that are the general partners of Saint Nicholas School, Ltd. and
Saint Nicholas School, I, L.P.

Xll. EVIDENCE OF ELIGIBILITY OF SPONSORING ENTITY

L. Medical Center Charter School, the sponsoring entity, was established for
charitable and educational purposes after the granting of the open-
enrollment charter school to the founders. It was established to sponsor
Medical Center Charter School, a first generation open-enroliment school
that offers a preparatory program for students at two campuses, 1920 N.
Braeswood and 10420 Mullins, in Houston.

R
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M. A copy of the 5016(3) determination letter, Articles of Incorporation, and
bylaws are attached. Attachment 30-32
N. The sponsoring entity was established in 1996 and the only activity is the
operation of the charter schoot.
1. Financial history: The entity does not have any financial transactions except those
of the charter school.
Credit report pending, to be sent
Most recent IRS filing is included: Attachment 33
There have been no liens.
There has been no litigation.
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ATTACHMENT NO. |

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS

HousToN
¥/ HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER Employee Assistance Programs
b

October 23, 2000

Texas Education Agency
W.B. Travis Building

1701 North Congress Avenue
Austin, Texas 78701

Dear T E A

As director of the Employee Assistance and Work/Life Programs for the University of
Texas-Houston Health Science Center [ am responsible for providing help and resources
to our students, faculty, and staff. One of the resources that I find extremely helptul to
our UT-HHSC family is having a school near our medical center for our employees’ and
students’ children. That school is the Medical Center Charter School.

QOur employees and students who take their children to Medical Center Charter School
report back to me many reasons why they are so pleased with the school. Just some of the
reasons include: the high quality education their children are receiving, the low student-
to-teacher ratio, the close proximity to their jobs, and the availability of the School’s
entire staff, including extended hours and sick care availability.

Our University is delighted to have this valuable resource available to our employees and
[ am sure the other facilities of the Texas Medical Center are equally pleased. We hope
your agency will do whatever it takes sothat the Medical Center Charter School can
continue to be available to our population, as there is no other resource like this one any
where nearby.

Sincerely, :

%%,WM

Sherry M. Wilson, LMSW-ACP
Director, UT-Houston Employee Assistance and Work/Life Programs

Cc: Mr. Jim McKey

[l
£,
<L

UT-Houston » 7000 Fannin, Suite 1670 + Houston, Texas 77030_—5502 + (713} 300-3EAP 1-800-346-3549 FAX (713) 500-3330
Located in the Texas Medical Center’
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O TEXAS ORTHOPEDIC HOSPITAL

A Speciah)’ Sur(ger)/, Rehabilitacion and Sports Medicine Center

#ﬁ 7401 South Main Street, Houston, TX 77030
sv N Phone (713) 799-8600

www.texasorthopedic.com Physician Referral (toll free) (888) TOH-HELP

ATTACHMENT NO. 2

State Board of Education
Texas Education Agency
Division of Charter Schools
1701 N. Congress Ave.
Austin, TX 78701

October 20, 2000

Dear Board Members,

Texas Orthopedic Hospital is pleased to support the Medical Center Charter School and
to extend our confidence in the programs that you offer.
They voice their appreciation for

I have had the pleasure of meeting and working with the administrative team, several of
the teachers and students. While touring the facility, I found the atmosphere to be one of
security and devotion. There is certainly a higher standard of learning that occurs at the
Medical Center Charter School. '

I appreciate the relationship that our hospital shares with the children and staff and I look
forward to future involvement. You have a wonderful team of teachers at your
facility....keep up the great work.

Sincerel

[

-
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http:www.texasorthopedic.com

OQctober 27, 2000
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

State Board of Education
Charter Renewal Application Committee

RE: Medical Center Charter School - Renewal
of Charter

Dear Sirs/Madams:

| am writing in support of the Medical Center Charter School’s application renewal.

It is crucial for parents to be allowed to choose and make decisions for our children's
education. MCCS provides our children with strong learning skills and study habits that
will go a long way for their future success. At the same time, we know the children are
safe in a smaller scaled and controlled environment that the public school systems.

he curriculum is strong, structured and rigorous. Providing good
learning habits in the early educational years for long term success is significant and
MCCS provides these tools. They teach crganization and discipline.

This is an excellent enrichment

opportunity for these young minds.

The charter schools are very important to our community because it is an alternative to
the publicschool systerns. (N
I ~d. | highly recommend this charter’s application. We should be
able to dictate where and how our children wiil be educated.

As you well know, MCCS demonstrated a significant improvement in the TAAS scores
in 1999 and they will do just as well in the future years.

One of the areas | feel that the TEA could help charter schoois and the Medical Center
Charter School is in additional funding to hire good, strong teachers. | am not implying
that MCCS does not have good teachers, but their pay is significantly lower than in the
normal public school systems. They eventually move on because they work many long
hours without adequate compensation. If this improved, the turnover would be less
likely. Articles suggest this to be one of the main concems and affects all charter
schools as well as the MCCS.
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Again, | strongly request that you approve the renewal application for the Medical
Center Charter School. | would be happy to speak with you further if you wish.

Sincerely,




ATTACHMENT NO. 4

October 24,2000

State of Texas Board of Education:

[ would like to express my views on the Medical Center Charter School. [ am a middle

class citizen who wants the best education for ||| | | | |}@B RN

I had attended public school during high school. I had gone to a private school up until
that point. When I attended the public school, I was bored. I was not challenged and
because of this, I slacked off on my studies. Sometimes, I would skip class. Fortunately,
I was not a ‘bad’ kid. I did not get into drugs, but I wonder what would have happened if
I had been around the wrong influences.

Because the public school I attended was so big, [ became a number. I went from a
private school of 700 (K-12) to a public school with 700 students in my graduating class.
I felt my teachers really did not care about how I did in my studies as long as I was in
class. Only one teacher figured me out. [l held me after class one day and told
me that ] knew I was not doing my best. | challenged me to bring up my grade to an
“A”. [ was the only teacher who noticed and encouraged me. You see, as long as [
made a passing grade — the teachers did not worry. This is what is wrong with public
schools,

Perhaps the teachers themselves are frustrated and because of this the children get lost in
the numbers. As long as a student is “passing”, noone notices him/her. Only if they fail,
do the alarms go off. And to the contrary, if a student makes straight A’s, then they are

learning enough. Who is to say that these same straight A students do not get bored and
may later get into trouble.

I believe that kids should be challenged. They should be able to learn as much as they
can, They should not have time to sit idly and contemplate trouble. This is why I feel the
charter school system is a good one - particularly MCCS.

I had my doubts about MCCS at first since the organization of the school was not great at
first. I think with the new buildings, this will change. What I have seen so far, is that

I have attended all of the . I have seen how much the parents
are concerned with their children’s education. Some of them have expressed their
concerns with the public school system. Some have children that were bored in public
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school. Some have children that need extra help. This is what [ like about the charter
school systetn. They go by levels, not grades. This enables kids to learn as much as they
can; they can catch up where needed or progress if not challenged. They are not limited
to stay within the traditional ‘grade level’.

There is a great need for this type of school. I feel that because it is small by public
school standards, this is a benefit. The parents and the teachers are able to communicate
with each other more, thereby keeping closer tabs on their children. One of the
requirements to attend this school, is that the parents must sign an agreement that they
will attend alt the meetings. If not, they must have a family representative attend.

The school helps the community in that it has children from different economic
backgrounds. I know this because

Some of these kids perhaps have not had the discipline at home and school to
learn respect. This is why it helps to have a smaller school, so that parents and school
can work together. I also think that it helps to have people of all races and socio-
economic levels together so we can erase all the bias that children are exposed to because
of their surroundings.

The charter school system enables parents to be more proactive in their children’s
education. No matter what socio-economic level, the common bind that ties us together

is that we . We all care enough to look for better ways to
. If you see what ||| | |G - you would

agree.

I had my doubts, but I believe that with time this school will prove that charter schools
should be a ‘freedom of choice’ given to all parents. Why should children be forced into
one public school system? I am not saying to do away with the public school system. It
needs to improve immensely. The standards need to be raised. Until then, children
should not suffer the consequences. They should be allowed the freedom to learn as
much as they can regardless of their socio-economics. After all, isn’t this what our
country is about — freedom? For this reasorn, I ask that you continue to support MCCS.

Sincerely,




ATTACHMENT NO. 5

To : The State Board Of Education,

The Medical Center Charter School has been a great
educational asset ||| |GG 1< cducational
high standard curriculum has given || the opportunity to grow
in their Reading, Language, Math, History, Science, French, and Spanish.
In our community we need this type of curriculum available to teach our
children at the tender ages of 4-12 their basic skills.I have recruited family
and friends to The Medical Center Charter School to receive the educational
benefits that is available in our community.

Sincerel

» ~
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October 23, 2000

The Charter school has helped BBl academically and spirituality. I there is a continued need for
this type of school to help students and parents be successful.

If you look at the news daily, you will see evidence of schools not meeting educational demands to

make children go above and beyond their level. Charter schools are appropriate for parents and students
who want to put education first.

Sincerely,

L‘vaj sl -

!
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ATTACHMENT NQ. 7
October 25, 2000

State Board of Education
Charter Renewal Application Committee

RE: Medical Center Chatter School — Renewal of Charter Application

To the Charter Application Renewal Committee:

We have been
asked by the administraton to give our comments related to MCCS’ operations.

B (CCS provides first-rate

MCCS has been and currentl
educational opportunities

I feel that the charter school progré.m is needed in our communities because charter schools
rovide a viable alternative to public schools. We reside inm
and the schools, although excellent, do not provide the type of curnculum that 1 te

would adequately challenge all children.

The Fort Bend school
half of the semester, at best. We felt that this alone mean
This is what began the search tor

were not reading until the 2*

alternatives

Another problem that I encountered with public schools are the age restrictions. My
_. If we had enrolled [JJj in public school at age]f] (almost H
would have been forced to attend kindergarten. However, my [JJJj Towa test scores proved
him to be 2™ grade level! I felt that my -would not have been adequately challenged in
public school kindergarten. Allowing the students to be grouped according to academic
ability versus age only is another benefit provided by MCCS, which is not an alternative,
provided in public schools. : :
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There is 2 noted difference in the way that charter schools approach education. There seems
to be a “cookie-cutter” type mentality inl public schools i.e., they all do the same thing. It’s
scary but most of the public schools that I have encountered (either by visiting or in tutoring
other children) appear to be teaching 2 TAAS based curriculum. 1In other words, public
school students seem to be taught items that are on the TAAS test only. This was also a
concern of ours and MCCS and other charter schools do not teach TAAS only. Rather
MCCS teaches 2 well-rounded curriculum that is inclusive of TAAS guiding principles.

MCCS is also teaching I o bc more organized and detail oriented. The public
schools that [ have visited did not encourage the children to use assignment books, which is
a basic foundation of MCCS’ ideals. MCCS also encourages excelient handwriting skills in
their students, something else that is lacking in public school curriculums.

MCCS offers French and Spanish to its students. There is not a school in Fort Bend or
Houston school districts that offer both French and Spanish (that I am aware of). This is an
excellent benefit and a2 wonderful enrichment opportunity for elementary students.
Elementary students can grasp alternative languages better at their age than the latter years ¢
believe that this is 2 proven fact but I was unable to locate the research that I had found in
the past on that subject).

1 only have one complaint that I have addressed with MCCS administration on more than
one occasion. MCCS does not encourage a parent/teacher organization. Ms. Heard does
not feel that there is 2 need for such an organization. Education of children cannot be solely
the responsibility of the school that children attend. Parents have to be involved to insure
that the educational needs of the children and parents are adequately addressed. Even
though Ms. Heard is an exceptional administrator in many ways, she downplays the need for
a parent/teacher organization. If a strong parent/teacher organization was encouraged,
organized and utilized, MCCS would be an award winning school because the needs of the
students would be more adequately addressed and the parents could help the school
streamline many of it’s administrative tasks.

I conclude this letter with a plea that MCCS’ application be renewed. TAAS scores have
improved over the 5 years that MCCS has been in operation. Enrollment has definitely
increased. Since MCCS offers so many opportunities that are not available at the school
districts in the area, | feel this is one of the many reasons that the MCCS should conunue
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NOTICE OF INTENT
TO APPLY FOR
RENEWAL OF
OPEN-ENROLLMENT
CHARTER SCHOOL
The Medical Center Char-
ter School, a 501 {C} (3)
non profit carporation, is
apalving to the State Board

of Education for approval :
to continug to operate an -
open-gnrollment  charter
schooi (" charter

school* } fo be located at
1920 N. Braeswood, Haus-
ton, Texas 77030 and 10420
Mullins, Houston, Texas
77094, Charter schools are
public schools established
by nonprofit organizations,
institutiens of higher edu-
catign, or governmental
entities. These schools are
publicly funded and are
free from many state
regulations that apply fo
other public schools. The
follawing descriptive infor-
mation about the proposed
scheol is being provided far
the benefit of the commu-
nity in which the school is
located, .
Name of the sponsoring
entit:  Medical Center
Charter School

Lhief Executive Officers of
the school: Margot
T.Heard and James L.
McKey

Board members of the
sponsaring entity:

Dr. R. Vermon Colritts

Dr. Leonard F. Crabtree
Dr. Gurney F. Pearsalt
Herbert L. Davis

Richard L. Gann

Location of the school: The
school’s administrative of-
fice is located af 1920 N.
Brasswood, Houston,
Texas 77030.

Brief description of the
schogl: Aedical Center
Charter School is an open
enroliment charter school.
offering praparatory in-
struction to Pre- K through
grade & . The S5chool
presentty  has an enrcll-
ment of 270 students.
Grade levels to be served:
Pre-K through 8.

The State Board of Educa-
tion invites comments
about any aspect of the
schaol or its sponsoring en-
tity. Comments must be
communicated in the form
of & signed letter directed
to the Siate Board of Edu-
cation, Only lefters specifi-
cally addressing a specific
proposed schaol will be
considered by the board.
Lerters may be sent fo the
following address: Texas
Edycation Agency, Divi-
sion of Charter Schools,
170% North Congress Ave-
nue, Austin, Texas 78701,
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CLASSIFIEDS

NOTICE OF INTENT TO
HOLD PUBLIC HEARING
TO REVIEW THE RE-
NEWAL APPLICATION

CENTER CHARTER
HOOL

A public hearing will be-
held on Friday. Octaber 27,

2000 at &:00 p.m. at the ‘
Medical Center Charter P
School, 1920 N. Braes-

wood, Houston, Texas

77030, for the purpoase of

reviewing the Apoplication

filed By Medical Center

Charter School fo renew its

five(5) year open enroli-

ment charter.
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ATTACHMENT NO. 10

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Teacher Employment Contract

THIS AGREEMENT, effective , is entered into by and between MEDICAL
CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL. (hereinafter called "the SCHOOL") and
(hereinafter called "TEACHER"). TEACHER's residence address is

The SCHOOL wishes to hire TEACHER and TEACHER wishes to be employed by the
SCHOOL, to teach in the SCHOOL; and both parties wish to enter into an agreement to set forth
the terms of such employment.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms of the employment of TEACHER by the
SCHOOL, and in consideration of the salary paid TEACHER by the SCHOOL, the parties agree
as follows: '

() The SCHOOL hereby hires TEACHER to teach at the SCHOOL, and TEACHER
hereby accepts and agrees to this employment at the assigned position.

(2)  This agreement is for the SCHOOL year commencing on the day of ,
, and terminating on the day of,

(3)  The SCHOOL shall pay TEACHER and TEACHER shall accept from the SCHOOL
in full payment for TEACHER'S service hereunder, compensation in the amount of

($ ) for the contract period. The full Contract amount
shall be paid in ( ) payments of (3 ) each,
on the 5th and 20th day of the month, from, and including through

(4)  TEACHER agrees to perform the responsibilities of his or her position and to use
his or her best efforts in such performance. TEACHER also agrees to attend all faculty meetings,
special inservice meetings scheduled by the SCHOOL, and any special function of the SCHOOL,
as requested by the Principal. In addition, TEACHER agrees to follow all reasonable rules set down
by the Principal, or the Board of Directors, including the handbooks of SCHOOL policies.

TEACHER also agrees to exemplify impeccable character, principles and ideals in the
performance of all his or her duties, and to refrain from any act which would discredit or reflect
unfavorably on the SCHOOL. '

(5)  The SCHOOL will be closed atotal of ____ days during the school year
for various holidays set out in the SCHOOL calendar. In addition, TEACHER will be allowed five
(5) days off with pay, provided that the dates are approved in advance by the administration, and
an additional four (4) days off with pay, to be taken during the Christmas holiday, and an
additional four (4) days off with pay, to be taken during the Easter holiday.

-
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{(6) -~ If TEACHER is unable to complete his or her contract due to accident or illness,
upon receipt of proper medical proof of such disability, the SCHOOL shall grant TEACHER a
medical leave of absence, but TEACHER shall not be entitled to pay while on a medical leave of
absence.

(7} If TEACHER fails to execute his or her duties, due to his or her absence, and has
submitted no medical proof that he or she is entitled to a medical leave of absence, he or she shall
be deemed to have breached the Employment Agreement, and shall be required to pay the
SCHOOL the sumof DOLLARS (3 ), to compensate the SCHOOL for
injury by reason of such breach. Such sum is not a penalty; it is mutually agreed to constitute
liquidated damages, since it is impossible to ascertain or estimate the exact cost, damage, or injury
which the SCHOOL may sustain by reason of the breach. Since such damage is likely to be less if
TEACHER provides at least two (2) weeks' notice of his or her intention to breach, both parties

agree that the sum of DOLLARS (§ ), shall constitute the
liquidated damages where such notice is provided.

In the event of a breach of contract by the TEACHER, under paragraph (7), the SCHOOL
may apply all or any part of the pay then due to the TEACHER in payment of the liquidated
damages sustained by the School.

(8)  If TEACHER wilfully breaches or habitually neglects the duties which he or she is
required to perform under the terms of this agreement, the SCHOOL, may at its option terminate
this agreement by giving written notice of termination to TEACHER without prejudice to any other
remedy to which the SCHOOL may be entitled either at law, in equity, or under this agreement.

(9)  Thisagreement may be terminated at any time by the mutual consent of both parties.

(10)  This agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of
Texas.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have affixed their signatures this . day
of .
Medical Center Charter School.
By:
Teacher Margot T. Heard, Principal

'z 4




ATTACHMENT NO. 11

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School:

N dal T70r TTorer X hodl

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Aftach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE. -
1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable): H&{jf [ “Btiee Harr o

2. Have you ever had your name changed? NO i yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female) Harrnagy’] ol
c.Other names used at any time nené -

3. Social Security Number':_— .

4. Date and Place of Birth: 4.6 P S/Z/Jy (aw/tu I rsse

5. Business Address: _[920 A Przl7sis 2267( "
Business Telephone: _ 113 T4 JAP0 -

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current addreds, giving:

o

ATE ADDRESS CITY AND STATE  ZIP CODE
1 95 Aprret #z2d Y 77077
/99711 R 2P0 Gyt Mepghis TN Kz

N}

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College f,mszysfg G Menhis Az, TN

g2 Stzediss Wm@gﬂf_%_
Ergnszy  Hodsa, 7 /4.

Y (PureHnuerady
7

Graduate Studies

J‘ l /, ” .
//meaff ffrfréz A
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: _/J8/2¢€

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School :

DIRFeTo R o DAL NS ] ﬂA—T!ﬂA/

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE ;

4 q58-- if 1Gae /ﬂm’lf’ﬂbﬁba”@-mm ANS TR (Cmey fANEIV LA,
51 - HPounts Rt~

Present employer may be contacted:  Yes | @ (Circle One)

Former employers may be contacted: Yes No (Circle One) .- -
a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? no ., If any
claims were made an the bond, give details: nonNeé.

b Have you ever been denied an mdwrdual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? 2

I yes, give details: A o

T

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for
termination): I/}

During the last ten {10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspengd or revoked?_J)0 If yes, give
details: 4

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? __ )0 If yes, give
details: ] :

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? no




17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeancr involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or st te regulatory agency?__ )

If yes, give details: T

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship? o

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a p!anti17 or defendant in any
lawsuit? __ )0 . If so, please furnish details: =5

)

Dated and signed this _Zo 74 dayof _/ nr Rl E .

A8200¢) . at _@MWM@M7 Y, TEAAS -
| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that [ am acting on my ‘own behalf, and that the

foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my kno

{Signatére of Affiant)
State of _7EXZ S

County of & #KLI S

Personally appeared before me the above named A~ A2 EL PARATRICE }/ e ST /‘/
personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the

above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are truefand correct to

the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this o 7/ day of
AC TOAESR- YT 2,008

{Notary Pub!ic) :
(SEAL) My commission expires _ /7 / Ll

% CHRISTINE GROENEWOLD
% yv COMMISSION EXPIRES

Novamber 12, 2003

14



http:4tf.t(L.L5

ATTACHMENT NO. 12

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
{(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School:

MEDICAL CEUTER CHARTER SCHOOL

In connection with the above-named organization and charter schoci application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)
IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE.

1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable): Gm,cie, L& G&Y’C iOl.

2. Have you ever had your name changed? I\f 0 If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female) _N/nn e
¢.Other names used at any time _AfpNn.¢

3. Social Security Number‘:__
4. Dateand Placeof Birth: _4 -20-(7  Corpus Cheisti , ¥

5. Business Address:  [920 Moarth Bh’LE,SWOOCL .
Business Telephone: _ {3~ 749({-4947 7

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current addreés.,giuing:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE
g 2_Mes MEADOW T 71477
B /90 o £I9S SYOS Wileres € # Jeol Hooston |, Tx 17084

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College_Twn years Study at University of Houston - Houston,Tj

Graduate Studies

Others

i gm, Houston, T

(,wHFr ed, & ® [aq|

i

L
o
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: Nornt

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School :

Divestmy af lastrnct i

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20} years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE .
gliﬂwum Saint Nicholas Schocls  ip¥20 Mullons - Teacher, Monttscors Divecto,

Cuvricelim, Drve ey

Present employer may be contacted: No (Circle One)

Former employers may be contacted: @ No (Circle One)

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? No If any
claims were made on the bond, give details: ‘

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? _ ND

If yes, give details: ",

]
4
¥

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for
termination): _ §p

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?__ N () If yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? If yes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? ‘\} 0

. G610
13

rh




17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency?__ Alo
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was ptaced under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship? NO

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit?__a/2 . If so, please fumish details:

Dated and signed this o 74 dayof _(OJA70LER
AZ mo  at ar 77, TEXAS

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my bwn behalf, and that the
foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my knoyiedge and beljef.

(Signature of Affiant)

State of __7£2XxA4S
County of _ A RLR S

Personally appeared before me the above named _ 4 RACc 1 =4 Aafc! ;‘}‘

personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and . correct to
the best of hisfher knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _ 3o 7 4~ day of
OCroBEL AT 20

otary Public)

e ————— .

L Il"‘"% ~
gﬁ?“ . CHAISTINE GROENEWOLD
: ..‘,;“5 MY COMMISSIDN EXPIRES
i Novamber 12, 2003

.
(o3
b
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(SEAL) My commission ex'pires g‘ZM:
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ATTACHMENT NO. 13

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT

(Print or Type)
Fu a:?e of Sponsaring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: ,t_‘{(é{ of g?&{.‘
& Ole v - 071— Y -

In connection with the above-named organization and chartef school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)
IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE.

1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable): {/iam A / o

2. Have you ever had your name changed? A/2 If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female)_ A/ /4
c.Other names used at any time /_A/%ae

3. Social Security Number':___
4. Date and Place of Birth: Zngagég 0 (235, af .&éic.g, feta 1

5. Business Address:_ /0, $20 A lias Aéaﬂa/g, X 2205 &
Business Telephone: __ 2/32 - 72¢-02223 ‘

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CiTY AND STATE ZIP CODE

194 -/%%3 ttoto Atwell Lhurtsn 7 22 05¢

14 ¥i- 199 £335 Creskbend T . % 29094

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College /§93-1957: Toncas sl o Lollpseeclon, 7X 124,

Graduate Studies jg¢ /- /8¢

12
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10.

11

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

List Membership in Professional So_cieties and Assaociations: Aﬂgcf“. /Vvd?éf.rer.‘ [ ;;

Present or Propased Position with the Proposed Charter School &,_.’a‘ 2.: y‘ .

Soudl west 2

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships} for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

[298-Pregent Mées 20, %20 Mu // s, /%ufu X 2222 iAck

7 22004 ge_g‘_'gu:ﬁ-f-

f‘.ﬁf_&l

(s« reverse .n-te)

V4 -/'a..: 4!.2? A' sop ﬂ‘af;-/ Lrive, /15«:/;# X

- . x oindmd SDO r. I3/

Present employer may be contacted: No {Circle One)
Former employers may be contacted: @ No (Circle One)

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? M . If any
claims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? _A/p
If yes, give details:

%

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or

governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held

in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for
termination): |4 nce Commisgon, +» J‘fjjé Censed o sef] [ cycane.

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupationat or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked? _A/p  If yes, give

details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? ___Neo If yes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? No

3C3
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state reguiatory agency?___ A%

If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
empioyee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or

in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatarship? _,r/a_

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit? 0 . If so, please furnish details:

Dated and signed this 3/57_ dayof __ o THBER ,
Mz at (7Y, TEXMS :

(raus 7oU, HALLS Caya . .
| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my éwn behalf, and that the
foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my know nd beligf, B
(Mgnature of Affiant) \

Stateof _77=xAS

County of _g/ A £LLS

Personally appeared before me the above named ___fy £ &/AM 1 HEJKP

personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are frue and correct to
the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this #7357 day of
00 roR E L A 2000
(Notary Public) .
(SEAL) My commission expires H/’ZA@

a 14 w o

-,
[ !-:

T




ATTACHMENT NO. 14

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School:
Medical Coder CL&H Sehoul

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.}

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE. -

1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable): MHLgaf £ Uen I—Err;; f-ldan{

2. Have you ever had your name changed? Aég_ If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female) Tervy
c.Other names used atany time ___~ Alene

3. Social Security Number™; _-

4, Date and Place of Birth: Augusf 30, 1942 Lg,rec[o P Téra:

5. Business Address: 470 N, Bvagswood #au;z‘;n , T T723p
Business Telephone: _713. 74t. 4417

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current addreds, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE

12/93  Present 5535 Lymbay Housbm , Tx 77094
E'far —11]43 llore  Athell Houcton, TX 77046
b/%h - "8/41  £335 Creckbend Heuclrn, TX 77024

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College_1/t1 = § /sy Univwsﬂ:}f of Texas at Auctin &on
i H.E.

Graduate Studies Maone

QOthers




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

18.

List Membershlp in Professional Societies and Associations:

Mandzssorn: .ra ael‘iz_

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School: __ € € o

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

1995 Fepndt Mecs 1920 N. Braesussod. Cép , Pnicpad
1987  Precent ink Nichg Sed o0 d o s 4

lesse d S'ac‘gmghj-.___d\z)l ) Pn‘na'ﬁg(

{981 - 1453 4
180 - {ag) n__4ox Sherman Teacher
Present employer may be contacted: (Yes No (Circle One)
Former employers may be contacted: No (Circle One)
a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? Np . If any

claims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? 0

If yes, give details:

%

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or

governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held

in the past. (State date license was |ssued |ssuer of license, date terminated, reasons for

termination): 1983 Chal { 2 . nees
A, ’hg.ih'rt' Simct 149 §

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked? 0 If yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? NQ If yes, glve
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? NO




17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency?
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you cccupied any such
pasition or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship? No

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any

lawsuit? Nﬂ _ . if so, pleése furnish details:

Dated and signed this ___31% dayof _ (Debobev ,
182000 ., at K\'

| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my own behalf, and that the

foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge anc’wellef |
]
: (Signaﬁre of Affiant)

State of ™~ T &= xAS

County of _ e ceys

Personally appeared before me the above named ﬂ (N g %Q& ! ﬂ& gg‘c&
personally known to me, who, being duly swom, deposes and ®ays that he/she executed the

above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of hisfher knowledge and belief.

. . st
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2\ day of
Ociambexr 492 Q00

-

(Notary Public)
(SEAL) My commission expires _/ [Z gg’gg

gEv

14




ATTACHMENT NOQ. 15

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT

(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: _pAdED184 L CENIER

L /5 e )(¥

M&L@M 1S THE SAME. .

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach

addendurn or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.}

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE.

1.

Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable)_ TAMES 2AWSON McKEY

2. Have you ever had your name changed? a7 _If yes, give reason for the change:
b.Maiden Name (if female)
c.Other names used at any time
3. Social Security Number*:__-
4. Date and Place of Birth: _T"wey 2%,/932, MEAR ATHEMS, 7?5&45
5. Business Address: /920 N, BRAES WooP
Business Telephone: __ (7/2) Z9/= G280
6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:
DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ~ ZIP CODE -
(949 - PRESENT 5814 SauTHMNSTER. , MOSTON, TEXAS 77435
7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College «. 4m4f CoeeEcE ( Nowir LRSS Lo S
(oW popTH ZEXAS pai/ELSITY)
Graduate Studies _mrpse 0 I7D. FROM UNIKERSI1TY 0F MausToN d

STl aE L AW [V _/TEE

Cthers

GE2
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations. _ 7&EXAS  RAL.

Assagarsria M

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School: € £O - -

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

(2882000 SELE EMPLOYED AS ATTORNEY -MEDIATIR

Present employer may be contacted:  Yes No (Circle One) NoT AHPLIEABLE
Former employers may be contacted: Yes No (Circle One) weor grreieAgr s
a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? YES if any

claims were made on the bond, give details: ___ 04/ E

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? AA
If yes, give details:

.,‘
List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or _
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for
termination): s 268

During the 1ast ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?___A/g _ If yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? __ N4 If yes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? __A/h

»

H o
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nalo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency?_ Y& S

If yes, give details: Z REFERRED A CASE To ANCTHER ATIIRNEY, WHE BECAME
ATIPRNEY OF RELORD. T TL0K NO PART [N HANDLING THECASE : CLIENT (N TrAeRY
¥ NODBTECTIONS) AND WIRKED wwiTH OTHELLANYIER U8 T/ HE ALl ECEDLY

MISHANDLE D CASE . I WAS REPRIVANDED FOR FAIURE 70 KERPLLIENT ADISE D
18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key

employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship?__a/

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit?____an . If so, please furnish details:

Dated and signed this 3457 dayof __An T4AER - .
10 2000 3t _4ousrop) . HARS CounTY, TEXAS i

| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my own behalf, and that the

foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my k ledge and beiief,
%ignature of Affiant) ’

State of TEXAS
County of_ 2427215

Personally appeared before me the above named _THMES LAWSON MEKEY
personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3757 day of
(DerPoBE R ¥ 2 poo )
Y@HM L/(Jémadé/
Notary Public)
(SEAL) My commission expires < /// IR

& J CHRISTINE GROENEWOLD

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
November 12, 2003

~1
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ATTACHMENT NO. 16

Medical Center Charter School
Organization Chart

Board of Trustees
Chairman of the Board:
R. Yomon Colpitts
Chiof Executive Officers
James L. MeKey
Margot T. Heard
|
I | 1
Dirsctor of Administration ~ Divector of Instruction Accountant
Hazel Harmison Graciela Garcia Contract
l |
| | |
Principal Assistant Principal Accounts Recsivable
MCCS SW MCCS, Med Canter MCCS, SNS
Hoadmastsr, SS, SW Principal, SNS Night Desk
William Heard Jackie Sayers
|
| l I |
Administrator Administrator Director of Childeare Administrator Administrator
MCCS,SW SNS, SW SNS, SW SNS,NCCS, SW SNS, MCCS Med Contor
Robin Grawford Mary Dodd Dubbert Eva Podroza Brenda Crawford Moming Desk
Chartor Offico Moming Desk Night Desk
™
L Y
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ATTACHMENT NO. 17

Charter School: Medical Center Charter School Page 1
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001

Charter School Budget Categories

Temporarily
Object Unrestricted Restricted Total 30-Sep-00
Code Net Assets Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 30
Estimated Revenues:
Local Sources 5749 $52,613 -$275
State Sources 5829 $1,333,235 $124,900
Federal Sources 5929 $139,538
Other Sources 5919 $50,000
Total Estimated Revenues $0 $0 $1,575386 $124,625
Estimated Expenses: 2
Payroll Costs 6100 $317,982 $28,826
Professional and Contracted 6200 a $1,115,086 $867
Supplies and Materials 6300 $42,450 $579
Other Operating Costs 6400 : $91,043 $167
Debt Expense 6500 ; $2,810
Total Estimated Expenses $0 $0 $1,569,371  $30.439
Gains 7950 $6,015 $94,186
Losses 8950 $0
Change in Net Assets $0 $0
Net Assets at End of Year $0 $0 $0
J72

»
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Charter School Page 2
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001

Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Instruction iR .
Payrolil Costs 6100 $317,982
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $216,068
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $33,000
Other Operating Costs 6400 $0
Debt Expense 6500 ! $0
Total instruction $0 $0 $567,050
Instructional Resource 12

Media Services

Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 ! $13,500
Supplies and Materials 6300 ; ‘ $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 $50,000
Debt Expense 6500 ! $2,810
Total Instructional Resources and $0 $0 $66,310

Media Services

Curriculum Development
and Instructional Staff 13
Development

Payroll Costs 6100 . 30

Professional and Contracted 6200 $41,252

Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0

Other Operating Costs 6400 | $6,500

Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Curriculum and Instructional Staff $0 $0 $47,752
Development

Texas Education Agency June 99 20fVl




Charter School Page 3
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001
Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)
Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssels
Instructional Leadershi 21 )
Payroli Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $103,369
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Interest 6500 | $0
Total Instructional Leadership $0 $0  $103,369
School Leadership: 23 J
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 : $175,462
Supplies and Materials 6300 ! $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt interest 6500 | 30
Total School Leadership $0 $0  $175462
Guidance, Counseling and
Evaluation Services 3
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $8,750
Supplies and Materials 6300 ’ . $4,050
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Interest 6500 | $0
Total Guidance, Counseling and $0 $0 -$12,800
Evaluation Services
Texas Education Agency June 99 3ofvl
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Charter School Page 4
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001
Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)
Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets Net Assets
Social Work Services: 32
Payrotl Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Expense 6500 ; $0
Total Social Work Services $0 $0 $0
Health Services: 33
Payroll Costs 6100 $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 50
Supplies and Materials 6300 $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 $0
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Health Services $0 $0 $0
Student Transportation 34
Payroll Costs 6100 ! $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $6,875
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Student Transportation $0 $0 $6,875
A . 475
Texas Education Agency June 89 4 of Vi




Charter School Page 5
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001

Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Food Services: 35
Payrolt Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $94,289
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | - %0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Food Services $0 $0 $94,289
Cocurricular/Extracurri 36
Activities:
Payroll Costs 8100 : $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 $6,063
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $1.623
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Cocurricular/Extracurricular $0 $0 $7.686
Activities:

General Administration 41

Payroll Costs 6100 ! $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $95,374 $867
Supplies and Materials 6300 l $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $22,234
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total General Administration $0 $0  $117,608
- 076
Texas Education Agency June 89 5cf VI




Charter School Page 6
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001

Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Plant Maintenance and

Operations: 51
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $354,084
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $5,250 $167
Debt Expense 6500 | $0 '
Total Plant Maintenance $0 $0  $359,34 $167
and Operations
Security and Monitorin 52
Services:
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 ! $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 : ‘ $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Security and Monitoring 30 $0 $0
Services: ' S
|
|
Data Processing Servic 53 i
Payroll Costs 6100 | . $0 ‘
Professional and Contracted 6200 | : $0 |
Supplies and Materials 6300 : $0 ‘
Other Operating Costs 6400 : ) $5,436
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Data Processing Services $0 30 $5,436

-~
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Charter School Page 7
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2001

Charter School Budget Categories {Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code  Code NetAssets Net Assets

Community Services: 61 ‘
Payroif Costs 6100 : $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 30
Supplies and Materials 6300 $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 : $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Community Services $0 $0 $0
Fund Raising: 81
Payroil Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 : $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $5,400
Other Operating Costs 6400 ! $0
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Fund Raising $0 $C $5,400

.,
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ATTACHMENT NO. 18

Charter School: Medical Center Page 1
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2002 Year 2

-

Charter School Budget Categories

Temporarily
Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Net Assets Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year $0
Estimated Revenues:
Local Sources $72,054
State Sources $1,533,220
Federatl Sources ' $103,002
Other Sources $50,000
Total Estimated Revenues 30 $0 $1,758,278
Estimated Expenses:
Payroll Costs 6100 i $403,786
Professional and Contracted 6200 : $1,099,034
Supplies and Materials 8300 $85,173
Other Operating Costs 8400 | $93,949
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Estimated Expenses $0 $0 $1,681,942
Gains 7950 $76,334
Losses 8950 $0
Change in Net Assets $0 $0 30
Net Assets at End of Year $0 $0 30
: 979
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Charter School Page 2
For the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2002 Year 2

Charter School Budget Categories {Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Instruction 1
Payrolt Costs 6100 | $403,786
Professional and Cantracted 6200 | $200,928
Supplies and Materials 6300 . $37,950
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Instruction _ $0 $0  $642,664
Instructional Resource 12
Media Services
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $15,525
Supplies and Materials 6300 $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 $50,000
Debt Expense 6500 ! _ $0
Total Instructional Resources and $0 30 $65,525
Media Services
Curriculum Development
and Instructional Staff 13
Development -
Payroll Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | ¥ $40,565
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $6,500
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Curriculum and Instructional Staff $0 $0 $47,065

Development

a8
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Charter School Page 3
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, Year 2
Charter School Budget Categories (Continued)
Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets Net Assets
Instructionai Leadershi 21 ‘
Payroll Costs 6100 | 30
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $106,897
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Interest 6500 $0
Total Instructional Leadership 30 $0  $106,897
School Leadership: 23
Payroil Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $196,305
Supplies and Materials 6300 | 30
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0
Debt Interest 6500 | $0
Total School Leadership $0 $0  $196,305
Guidance, Counseling and
Evaluation Services kY|
Payroll Costs 6100 I $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 $9,763
Supplies and Materials 6300 . $4,658
Other Operating Costs 6400 $0
Debt Interest 8500 | $0
“Total Guidance, Counseling and $0 $0 $14,421
Evaluation Services
3ofVi
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Charter School

Page 4

For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, Year 2

Charter School Budget Categorles (Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets Net Assets

Social Work Services: 32 ;

Payroli Costs 6100 $a

Professional and Contracted 6200 : $0

Supplies and Materials 6300 | - $0

Other Operating Costs 6400 $0

Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Social Work Services $0 $0 $0
Health Services: 33

Payroll Costs 6100 | $0

Professional and Contracted 6200 | $0

Supplies and Materials 6300 $0

Other Operating Costs 6400 $0

Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Health Services $0 30 $0
Student Transportation 34

Payroll Costs 6100 i $0

Professional and Contracted 6200 | $6,875

Supplies and Materials 6300 : $0

Other Operating Costs 6400 | $0

Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Student Transportation $0 $0 $6,875

Texas Education Agency June 99 4 of VI
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Charter School Page 5
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, Year 2

Charter Schooi Budget Categories (Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Food Services: 35 ,
Payrolt Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $108,432
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 8400 | $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Food Services 50 $0  $108,432
Cocurricular/Extracurri 36
Activities: '
Payroll Costs 6100 : $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 ! $4,648
Supplies and Materials 6300 ! $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $1,244
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Cocurricular/Extracurricular $0 $0 $5,892
Activities:
General Administration 41
Payrolt Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 ! $95,577
Supplies and Materials 6300 ! ; $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $21,059
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total General Administration $0 $0 $116,636

TaxasEducatioriAgency June 99 5ofVi L e o e




Charter School Page &
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, Year 2

Charter School Budget Categories {Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cade Code NetAssets NetAssets

Plant Maintenance and

Operations: 51 _
Payrolt Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $354,085
Suppiies and Materials 6300 | 30
Other Operating Costs 6400 | $3,500
Debt Expense 6500 i $0
Total Plant Maintenance $0 $0  $357,585
and Operations
Security and Monitorin 52
Services: .
Payroll Costs 6100 ! $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | ‘ $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 : $5,436
Debt Expense 6500 ! $0
Total Security and Monitoring $0 $0 $5,436
Services:
Data Processing Servic 53
Payroll Costs ' 6100 ! $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 i $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 l $0
Debt Expense 6500 $0
Total Data Processing Services $0 $0 $0

L f
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Charter School Page 7
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, Year 2

Charter School Budget Categories {Continued)

Temporarily
Function Object Unrestricted Restricted Total
Code Code NetAssets NetAssets

Community Services: 61 )
Payroli Costs 6100 $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 ! $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 $0
Debt Expense 6500 | $0
Total Community Services $0 50 $0
Fund Raising: 81
Payrofl Costs 6100 | $0
Professional and Contracted 6200 | $0
Supplies and Materials 6300 | $0
Other Operating Costs 6400 $6,210
Debt Expense 6500 ; $0
Total Fund Raising $0 $0 $0

- G&3
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ATTACHMENT NO. 19
OFFICE HANDBOOK FOR SAINT NICHOLAS SCHOOLS

Saint Nicholas Schools
Giving Receipts and Handling Cash

Only authorized persons may accept cash, the Administrators, Mary Dodd and Hazel.

Each school has a separate Receipt Book for cash. They are labeled on the front. Each Receipt Book
is numbered in a sequence. Complete one for each school before another is begun. When completed,
they are stored in the financial office.

If you receive cash you must issue a receipt and immediately put the cash in the safe. If you receive a
check put it into the check box. When closing the desk each night the closer must check the
reception desk for checks possibly left on the desk by parents and put them into the check box,
especially important on the fifth of the month. Do not put any checks received on the sixth in that
day’s first deposit because of late payment charges. In general, we will prepare a deposit any day for
$100 or more, and always for income from the 5™ and last day of the month.

All checks that are mixing income between the schools should be returned to be re-written. Do not
accept mixed income checks or cash. In the case of cash accept exact change only. Ifit is an
overpayment they will have a credit.

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

The only income for the charter school is full or reduced breakfast and/or lunches ($40 and $8)and
semester school supply packets. Receive this income, give a receipt for cash and put into the safe and
put checks into the check box.

PREPARING THE DEPOSITS
Separate all checks into three schools. Return any mixed checks.
» Photocopy each school’s checks separately.
e Prepare the deposits.
e Stamp each check for deposit only with the appropriate account number
¢ Use tapes to verify cash and check amounts for each deposit.
» Each deposit is entered into the Deposit Notebook for each school with the following stapled
toit: the tapes for cash and checks, the copies of the checks, the Accounts Receivable
software printout, the deposit slip, and the deposit receipt from the bank.

e Store the receipt books, check copies, charge copies, checks, in their secure place. You may be
asked to take the deposit to the bank, or leave it in a bank bag in the safe.

» Keep the three schools’ Deposit Notebooks in their designated place. They will be checked by
the Accountant.

ey
i)
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ATTACHMENT NO. 20

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements
For the year ended August 31, 1999 and 1998

BLOMSTROM & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
8323 Southwest Freeway, Saite 650
Houston, Texas 77074
Tel: (713) 771-4385
(800) 235-0517
. FAX: (713) 771-5553 067
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Blomstrom & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

8323 Southwest Freeway, Suite 650
Houstan, Texas 77074

(800) 2350817
(713) 771-4385
Fax (713) 771-5553

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Medical Center Charter School
1920 N. Braeswood
Houston, Texas 77030

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Medical Center Charter School (MCCS) as of
Angust 31, 1999 and 1998 and the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the
years then ended. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An zudit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our andit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Medical Center Charter School as of August 31, 1999 and 1998, and the result of its operation and
its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with generaily accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 3, 1999
on our consideration of MCCS’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its comphancc with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,

Cur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of MCCS
taken as a whole. The accompanying supplemental schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whele.

Houston, Texas
December 3, 1999
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Financial Position

August 31,1999 and 1998
1999 1998
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash - Frost National Bank checking 5 22,024 $ 23459
Accounts Receivable 16,125 - 1,500
Total Current Assets 3 38,149 $ 24959
Property and Equipment (at cost):
Furniture and Equipment 3 6,883 s 3,601
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,349 1,609
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 4,534 1,992
TOTAL ASSETS 3 42,683 $ 26951
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Trade b 10,533 5 42,521
Accounts Payable - St. Nicholas II, Curr Oper 93,484 59,570
Accounts Payable - St. Nicholas II, Pre Oper, Net 97,008 60,295
Cther Payable 21,439 15,930
Deferred Revenue - TEA 15,305 73,191
Reimburseable to 5t. Nicholas II - 16,535
Frost Bank - Credit Loan Payable 11,810 17,640
Total Current Liahilities 5 250,079 £ 285,682
Net Assets (Deficit)
Unrestricted $ (207,396) $ (258,731)
TOTAL LIABILYTIES AND NET ASSETS $ 42683 $ 26,951

The accompanylng neles are an integral part of this statement, 3
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Activities
Jor Years Ending August 31, 1999 and 1998
1999 1998
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Support:
Texas Education Agency - Tuition 687,320 483,823
TEA - Child Nutrition Program 16,200 14,834
Other TEA Grants (Note 10) 42,216 48,326
Total Support 745,736 546,983
Fees and Other Revenue:
Child Nutrition Fees 28,100 26,490
School Supplies 2274 4,131
Fundraising 14,963 -
Other 4,463 7,284
Total Fees and Other Revenue 49,800 37,905
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT 795,536 584,888
EXPENSES
Program Services:
General School Operations 624,112 588,824
Title I - Part A 25,536 18,330
National School Breakfast/I unch Program 16,200 14,834
Title [V -Part A 1,326 711
Title VI 599 444
Title IIB 727 -
ESEA - Charter Schools 9000 25,000
Technology 5,028 3,841
Support Services
Administrative and General 50,823 32,268
Fundraising 10,850 -
TOTAL EXPENSES 744,201 684,252
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Deficit) 51,335 (99,364)
NET ASSETS - (Deficit) BEGINNING (258,731) (159,367)
NET ASSETS - (Deficit) ENDING 3 (207,396) 3 (258,731)
P ]
g
4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows

Angust 31, 1999 and 1998
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1499 1998
Change in Net Assets s 51,335 $  (99,364)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Used by Operating Activities
Depreciation 740 1,198
Decrease (Increase) in Due from State - 4,519
Decrease (Increase) in Due from Employee - 400
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses - 12,329
Decrease (Increase) in Due from Contributors _ - 15,000
Decrease (Increase) in Receivable (14,625) {1,500)
Increase ( Decrease) in Accounts Payable (31,988) 100,110
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities - (8,816)
Increase (Decrease) in Other 5,509 231D
Increase (Decrease) in Due to State {57,386) 3.414
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (46,415) 29,973
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Equipment (3,282) {858)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities . (3,282) (858)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Loan Principal ) (5,%30) (2,360)
Loan from St. Nicholas ' 70,627 -
Repayment of Loan frotm St. Nicholas (16,535) (3,296)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 48,262 (5,656)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {1,435) 23,459
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 23,459
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 5 22,024 s
Memo:
Interest Paid : 1120 $ 2,044

The accompanying are an integral part of this siatement. 5




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Functional Expenses
Jor Year Ending August 31, 1999
Proeram Services
ESEA Titk [
General Pan A Nanioral School Take IV ESEA
School Improving Breakfast and Part A Tide
Operations Basic Programs Lumch Program Drug-Fres Vi
EXPENSES
Paytoll Costs
Teachers and Other Professional Personnel H 144,052 5 13,314 $ - 5 1,326 s 550
Support Personnel 27439 12,202
Emphoyes Bencfits 22,499
Total Prymil 1 193 990 § - 23,536 £ - § 1,326 $ 599
Professional and Contracted Services
Professionat Services -4 77,582 3 - Y - 3 - b1 -
Education Service Center Services 1,733 -
Contracted Maintenanze and Repair Services 20,532
Utilities 43,300
Rentals - Operating [esses 198,302
Total Professional and Contracted Services 5 341,449 5 - ] - 3 - $ -
Supples and Materials
Supplies and Materiak for Maintenance and/
ot Operations ‘ 3 - 8 - 5 - 3 -
Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 40,023 .
Food Service 34,041 16,200
Supplies and Materials - General
Torat Supplies and Material 3 74,069 $ - 3 16200 $ - S -
Other Cperating Cosis
Advertising L 2,033 s - H - 5 - s -
Insurance and Bonding Costs 10,426
MisceBancous Operatmg Costs
Totat Other Operating Costs $ 12,459 5 - $ - § - H -
Other Expenses
Interest Expenses H 1,120 $ - b - 8 - s -
Field Trips 285
Total Other Expenses $ 1.405 1 - $ - 5. . H -
Total Expenses Before Depreciation ) 623,372 $ 25.536 5 16200 % 1326 5 559
Deprecution Expenss 740
Toml Expenses 5 624,112 5 25.536 H 16200 S 1.326 b 599
iYG 2
. LR SaE

The accompanying notes are an integral part af this satement,




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOQL
Satemera of Functional Expenses
Jor Year Ending August 31, 1999

. Support Servicss
Title 1B ESEA Total Total
Professioml Charter Technobogy Program Administrative All
Development Scheols Alflotment Services and General Funds
$ 27 6,000 H - 4 166,018 $ - 3 166,018
3,000 42 661 42,661
22,499 22.49%
5 7 9,000 $ - $ 231178 § - $ 231,173
s . - 3 - % TS - H 77,582
- - 1,733 1,733
20,532 20,532
43,300 43,300
198,302 198,302
3 - - $ - $ 341,449 § - 3 341,449
$ - - b4 5,028 3 5028 § - 5 5,028
40,028 40,028
50,241 - 50,241
5 - - s 5,028 § 95207 $ - 3 93,297
s . - s - 5 2033 § - s 2,033
10,426 10,426
- 61,673 61,673
3 - - § - 3 12459 § 61,673 3 74,132
$ - - s - 3 L,i20 % - 5 1,120
285 285
5 - -8 . 1405 § -3 1,405
3 727 5,000 5 5,028 3 681,788 § 61,673 $ 743,461
740 740
3 727 9,000 5 5,028 5 682,528 § 61,673 3 744.201
The accomparnying notes are an integral part of this statement. 7
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Sigtement of Functional Ecpenses
Augnust 31, 1938
Progrmm Services
ESEA Title !
General Pant A National School Tide IV ESEA
School Ionproving Breakixs and Parr A Tutle
Operations Basic Programs Lanch Program Drag-Fres v
EXPENSES
Payrwll Costs
Teachers and (hber Professional Personnel 5 112,043 3 17,195 H . H 1k 5 376
Support Persannel 71,375
Employee Benefite 13.635
Total Payroll s 97,053 3 17,195 H - 3 711 $ 376
Professions] and Cantracted Sarvices
Professional Services £ 98,804 $ - 5 - s - s -
" Education Scrvice Center Services 1,135 &8
Contracted Maimtenance and Repair Services 22,528
Unilities
Rentals - Operating Loases 183,100
Total Professiona] 2nd Contracted Services $ 304,432 - 1,135 5 - $ - 3 68
Supplics and Muserials
Supplies aad Materials for Maiotenance and/
or Operations S 6,758 b1 - H - s - 3 -
Textbooks and Other Reading Matenials 34,750
Food Service 30,666 14,334
Supplies and Materials - Genemi
Total Supplies and Materials $ TLi74 $ - 5 14.834 $ - H -
Other Operating Costs
Advertising [ s s - 8 N - % -
Insrmce and Bonding Coxts 3,049
Miscellancous Operating Costs 6.912
Total Gther Operating Costs H 10.376 3 - $ - H - 5 -
(rther Expenses
[nterest Expeuses 3 3,226 H - 5 - 5 - H -
Field Trips 363
Tomal Cther Expenses 3 3.591 } - 5 - $ - 5 M
Total Expenscs Before Depreciarion s 587,628 £ 13.330 5 14.334 $ 71 3 444
Depreciation Expense 1,198 .
Tatal Expenses s 588,824 § 18330 5 14334 ] Tt $ 444
. G

The accompanying noles are an imegral part of this starement [ q g




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Functional Expenses
August 31, 1998
Support Sarvices
Tille B ESEA Tol Total
Professional Charter Technalogy Program Administrative All
Development Schools Allotment Services and General Fands
H - H 25,000 $ - 1552325 - 155325
11378 - 71,378
13,635 13,635
$ - $ 25,000 H - 240,335 - 240,335
s - H - 8 - 93,304 - 98,304
1,203 1.203
12528 22,528
183,100 - 133,100
- - 3 - 3 - 305,635 - 305,635
3 - 5 - $ - 6,758 - 6,758
3341 38,591 33,551
45500 - 45,500
$ - H - 3 3,341 90,849 - 90,849
$ S .5 . 418 - 415
3,049 3,049
6,912 32,268 39,180
$ - $ - 3 - 10,376 32,268 42,644
s - 3 - 3 - 3,226 - 326
365 365
- - - 3.9 - 3.5
- $ 35000 § 3.341 650,785 32268 683,054
1,198 ) 1,198
$ - 3 25000 § 3.341 650,984 32263 684,252

The accomparying notes are an integral part of this sictement,
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to the Financial Statements

August 31, 1999 and 1998

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

QOrganization and Nature of Activities

The Medical Center Charter School (MCCS) offers a model school environment to inspire and serve families
through high standards of personal interaction and to present a challenging curriculum that sets high standards
of achievement in public education. MCCS, incorporated January 26, 1996, is a Texas nonprofit corporation,
organized pursuant to the provision of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 501 (c) (3), for the purpose of
establishing and operating an open enrollment charter school in the medical center area of Houston. MCCS is
part of the public school system of the state and is entitled to distribution from the State’s available school fund.
However, MCCS does not have the authority to impose taxes or charge tuition.

Financial Statement Presentation

The organization follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 116, Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made and No. 117, Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Statement No. 116 requires the Organization to distinguish between contributions that increase
permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net assets, It also requires
recognition of contributions, including contributed services meeting certain criteria, at fair values. Statement
No. 117 establishes standards for general purpose external financial position, a statement of activities and a
statement of cash flows, or for the modified cash basis of accounting, a statement of assets, labilities and fund
balance, and the related statements of support, revenues and expenses, and cash flows.

Basis of Accounting

The financial staternents have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Net assets and revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the organization and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets—Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets—Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met, either by actions of the organization and/or the passage of time. When restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Support and Revenue

MCCS receives its grant and contract revenue primarily through the State’s Department of Education, Texas
Education Agency. Revenue recognition depends on the contract. MCCS recognizes contract tevenue {up to
the contract ceiling) from its tuition reimbursement contract based upon the anoual (school-year) average daily
attendance. Revenue on other grants and contracts are based upon compliance with the terms of the
grants/contracts,

LA
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements

August 31, 1999 and 1998

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The organization records depreciation on fixed assets using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation expense for the year ended
August 31, 1999 was $740.

Advertising Expense
MCCS policy on advertising and marketing expenses is to recognize the advertising expense when the expense
is incurred. '

NOTE 2: BANK LOAN PAYABLE
At August 31, 1999, MCCS had a unsecured line of credit with a bank available as needed with an interest rate

of 10%. As of August 31, 1999 and 1998, $11,310 and $17,640 of the line of credit was outstanding. The
maturity date of the unsecured line of credit is January 31, 2000.

NOTE 3: INCOME TAXES

The organization is a nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

NOTE 4: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE ALLOCATION

The costs of providing the School’s various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a
functional basis in the schedule of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services on the basis of time records and actual costs by the School’s management.

NOTE 5: COMMITMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES

MCCS receives funds through federal grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulation of the
grantor. Expenses charged to the grant program are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agency. In
the opinion of management, thers are no contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and
regulations governing the grants; therefore, no provision has besn made in the accompanying financial
statements for such contingencies.

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MCCS and Saint Nicholas School, Ltd. (SNS T} and Saint Nicholas Schools IT (SNS II) entered into various

leases, and other reimbursements contract, SNS I and SNS II have agreed to supply a portion of the building,
land, and equipment, as well as certain supplies and contract personnel.
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 1999 and 1998

NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

C. Pension Plan
1 Plan Description

MCCS contributes to the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (the “System™), a public employee
retirement system. It is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with one
exception: all risks and costs are not shared by the District, but are the liability of the State of Texas.
The System provides service retirement and disability retirement benefits, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The System operates primarily under the provisions of the Texas
Constitution and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The Texas legislature has the authority
to establish or amend benefit provisions. The System issued a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the District. That report may
be obtained by writing the Teacher Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas
78701-2698 or by calling (800) 877-0123.

2. Funding Policy

Under provisions in State law, plan members are required to contribute 6.4% of their annual covered salary and
the State of Texas contributes an amount to 6.0% of the MCCS’s covered payroll. The MCCS’s employees’
contributions to the System for the years ending August 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 werz $5,829, $6,342, and
$6,423, respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the
State on behalf of the District was $6,423.

NOTE 8: OTHER TEA GRANTS

The other TEA Grants consisted of:

1999 1998
Technology Allotment - Textbooks $ 5028 $3,841
Title IB - Professional Development 7217 0
ESEATitleIPart A 25,536 13,330
ESEA Title VI 599 444
Title I'V - Part A Drug-Free ' 1,326 711
ESEA Charter Schools Grant . 8000 25,000
Total Other TEA Grants §42216 £48.326




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements

. August 31, 1999 and 1998
NOTE 9: DUE TQ STATE
The liability to the state consists of:
1999 1998
Overpayment of TEA-Tuition Reimbursements $ 15,805 $73,191
Overpayment of Title 4, Safe Schools-Drug Free 0 .0

$ 15,805 $73,191

NOTE 10: GOING CONCERN

During its first two years of operations, Medical Center Charter School sustained operating losses in both years.
However, the school operated at a profit during this current fiscal year. The step initiated by management to
reduce expenses and increase revenue through increased enrollment has had a positive impact on the school’s
operations this fiscal year.

The school still has a cumulative deficit of approximately $215,000. These losses have been financed by
deferring payments to private schools from which MCCS leases classroom and office space. Management of
MCCS are also the general partners of the private schools and has indicated that they will continue to defer
MCCS’ operating losses as the school becomes profitable.




Blomstrom & Co., P.C.

Cerrified Public Accountants

8323 Southwest Freeway, Suite 650
Houston, Texas 77074

(800) 235-0517
(713) 771-4385
Fax (713) 771-5553

Independent Auditor’s Report on

YEAR 2000 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Medical Center Charter School
1920 N. Braeswood
Houston, Texas 77030

The Year 2000 supplemental information on pages 16 and 17 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required for not-for-profit
organizations. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not
express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the School is or
will become year 2000 compliant, that the School’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the School does business are or

will become year 2000 compliant.
oo, V& [

Houston, Texas
December 3, 199¢
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YEAR 2000 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

In accordance with Govemmenial Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) Technical Bulletin 98-1,
“Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues,” as amended by GASB Technical Bulletin 99-1, following are
disclosures zbout year 2000 issues in general and of the stage of work in process or completed at year end
by Medical Center Charter School (“School™) to address year 2000 issues for computer systems and other
electronic equipment.

The year 2000 issue is the result of many shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and
other equipment may adversely affect operations in the year 1999 and beyond. For many years,
programmers eliminated the first two digits from a year when writing programs. For example,
programmers would designate January 1, 1965 as “01/01/65”nstead of “01/01/1965”. On January 1, 2000
at 12:00:01 a.m., the internal clock in computers and other equipment will roll over from “12/31/99” to
“01/01/00”. Unfortunately, many programs (if not corrected) will not be able to distinguish between the
year 2000 and the year 1900. This may cause the programs to process data inaccurately or to stop
processing data altogether. Another factor that may cause problems in programs is the leap year
calculation. Some programs are unable to detect the year 2000 as a leap year.

Problems affecting 2 wide range of activities will likely result if computers and other electronic
equipment that are dependent upon data-sensitive coding are not corrected. These problems have

the potential for causing a disruption to some government operations and may temporarily
increase the cost of those operations.

There was no significant amount committed — contracted at August 31, 1999 — by the School to
address year 2000 issues for computer systems and other electronic equipment

The following stages of work have been identified by GASB Technical Bulletin 98.1,
“Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues,” as amended by GASB Technical Bulletin 99-1, as
necessary to address the year 2000 issue. These stages were adapted by the GASB from U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Division of Market Regulation Year 2000 (Y2K)
Work Program (January 1998).

L. Awareness Stage — Encompasses establishing a budget and project plan for dealing with
the year 2000 issue.

2. Assessment Stage — When the organization begins the actual process of identifying all of
its systems (preparing an inventory) and individual components of the system. An
organization may decide to review all system components or, through a risk analysis,

identify only mission-critical systems and equipment - - systems and equipment critical
to conducting operations.

3. Remediation Stage — When the organization actually makes changes to systems and
equipment. This stage deals primarily with the technical issues of converting existing
systems, or switching to compliant systems. During this stage, decisions are made on

how to address year 2000 system or equipment issues, and the required changes are

made.
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4, Validation/Testing Stage - When the organization validates and test the changes made
during the conversion process. The development of test data and test seripts, the running
of test scripts, and the review of test results are crucial for this stage of the conversion
process to be successful. If the testing results show anomalies, the tested areas need to be
corrected and retested.

The School currently is in the validation/testing stage as defined above. However, the completion
of these stages of work is not a guarantee that the School is or will become year 2000 compiiant

.
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Supplemental Schedule of Functional Expenses

Jor the Year ended August 31, 1999
. Program Services
ESEA Tule [
Dara General Part A " National School Tide IV
Comtrol School Improving Breokfast and Part A
Codes Operations Basic Programs Lunch Program Drug-Free
EXPENSES
0010  Instruction and Instructional-Related Services 5 - 3 - b3 - % -
0011 Instruction 193,590 13,314 1,326
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 21,5616 12,222
0013 Curriculum Development and lostructionat
Staff Development 41,587
Total Ipstruction and Instructional-
Related Services L 257,193 % 25,536 5 - 3 1,326
0020  Instructional and School Leadership
0023 School Leadership 5 63206 % - 8 - 8 -
Total [nstructional and School Leadership 3 63,206 § R - 3 -
003¢  Suppornt Services - Student
D031 Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation Services 5 3,174 8 - s - % -
0032 Social Work Services
0035 Food Service 34,041 16,200
0016 Cocwrricular/Extracurricular Activities 421
Total Support Service - Student $ 37636 % - § 16200 $ -
0040 Administrative Support Services s - 3 -8 -
0041 General Administration 2210
Total Administrative Support Servicas s 2210 § - 3 - % -
0030 Support Services - Non-student Based 5 - 3 - 8 -
0051 Plant Maimtenance and Operations 262,134
0053 .~ Data Processing Services 1,733
Total Support Services - Non-studert Based b 263,867 % - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 5 624,112 $ 25,536 16200 § 1,326
NOTE: Data Controi Codes refer to the account cods siructure prescribed by the
Texas Education Agency in the Special Supplement to Financial Accounting
and Reparting-Nonprofit Charter School Chart of Accounts module of the
Financial Accountalrility System Resource Guide.
. roa
104

19

The accomparying nates are an integral part of this statement.
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
Supplemenrtal Schedule of Functional Expenses

Jor the Year ended August 31, 1999
Support Services
ESEA Tittle IR ESEA Total Total
Title Proftssional Charter Technology Program Administrative All
i} Development Schools Allotment Services and General Funds
b - 3 - 3 - -
599 727 §,000 215,956 215,956
3,000 36,838 - 35,338
41,587 41,587
5 599§ 77§ 9000 $ -5 294381 § . 294,381
s - - 3 - - 3 63206 § - 63,206
$ - - 8 - -8 63,206 $ - 63,206
s - 5 - - 8 - 3 3114 % - 3,174
50,241 - 50,241
421 - 421
5 - % - 3 - § - 3 5386 3 - 53,836
b - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 1,617 1,617
2210 60,056 62,266
s -3 -3 - 8 - s 2210 S 61,673 63,883
s - $ - 3 - 3 - 5 - 8 - -
262,134 262,134
5.028 6,761 6,761
3 5028 § 268395 3§ - 2638 895
5 599 S 727 3 9000 $ 5028 § 682528 § 61,673 T44.201
20

The accomparnying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOUL
Supplemental Schednle of Functianel Expenses
August 31, 1998

Program Services
ESEA Title 1
Data General Part A National School Title TV
Control School Improving Breakfast and Parta
Codss Qperations Basic Programs Lunch Program Drug-Frae
EXPENSES
0010 Inseruction and Instructional-Related Services b1 642§ 17,195 $ - 5 -
0011 - Inatruction 92,196 ‘
0oLz Instructional Resources and Media Services 32,390 - 711
0013 Curriculurn Development and Instructonal 3,205
Staff Development 18,984 1,135
Total Instruction and lnstructional-
Retated Services $ 153,117 § 18,330 ] - 3 71
0020 Instructional lnd Scheol Leadership 3 26,632
0023 School Leadership 11,291 § - s - .
Tetal Ingtnactional and School Leadership b 37923 § - S - -
0030 Support Services - Studemt
0031 Guidance, Counseling and Evehuation Services s 1359 % - M - 5 -
0032 Social Work Services
0035 Food Service 30,666 14,834
0038 Cocurricular/Extracwmicular Activities 143
Total Support Service - Student 3 44390 % - 8 14834 % -
0040 Administrative Support Services s 31374 - - 5 - § -
0041 General Administration 72,953
Towl Administrative Support Services 5 104332 'S - 8 - 3 -
0050 Support Services - Non-student Based $ 7419 S - 5 - 8 -
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations 240,802
0053 Daa Processing Services 841
Tom{ Support Services - Non-student Based s 249062 § - $ -
TOTAL EXPENSES s 583.824 5 18,330 3 14,834 S 71

NOTE:  Data Control Codes refer to the sccount code structupe prescribed by the
Texas Education Agency in the Special Supplement to Financial Accounting
and Reporting-Nonprofit Charter School Chart of Accounts moduule of the
Financial Accountability Systera Resource Guide.

—
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOGL
Supplemental Schedule of Functional Experzes
August 3], 1998

Suppon Services
ESEA Title B ESEA Toal Towl
Title Professional Charter Technology Program Administrative Al
Al Development Schools Allotment Services and General Funds
H] - s S 1573 £ 3 25115 H - s 25,115
5,349 2,263 100,308 100,308
444 7,148 - 40,693 . 40,693
3,205 - 3,205
. . 20,119 20,119
3 [ITH. - 8 12967 § 3,841 $ 189,440 s - 3 129,440
) 5 11,153 '
$ - 8 . | - s 11,291 ] - s 11291
-3 .08 1mIs3 § - 49076 3 -8 49,076
H -3 - 8 850 § - 3 14,429 $ - 5 14429
45,500 - 43,500
145 - 145
H - % - 3 350 § - s 60,074 $ - $ 50.074
s -5 S - s S 3374 H . 5 37
72.953 32,268 185,226
s - -3 -3 - 3 104,332 13 32,268 5 136,600
s -3 - 5 N - s 7,419 $ - H 2419
240,802 . 240,302
341 $41
. 249,062 5 - $ 249,062
3 [T - 5 25000 S 3.34) 6351.984 H 32,268 s 634,252
2

The accampamying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Blomstrom & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

8323 Southwes! Freeway, Suite 650
Houston, Texas 77074

{800) 235-0517
(713) 771-4385
Fax (713) 771-5553

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL -
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees

Medical Center Charter School
1920 N. Brasswood

Houston, Texas 77030

Members of the Board of Trustess:

We have audited the financial statements of Medical Center Charter School as of and for the years ended August
31, 1999 and 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 1999. We conducted our audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Medical Center Charter School’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Medical Center Charter School’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A materia] weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and federal awarding agencies and pass
through entities and is not intended to be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

{5/%% ¢l e
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Houston, Texas
December 3, 1999
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ATTACHMENT NO. 21

LEASE OF SCHOOIL FACILITY

STATE OF TEXAS -
COUNTY OF HARRIS

This Lease Agreement is made and entered into by and between
SAINT NICHOLAS SCHOOL, LTD. ("Lessor")}, and MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER
SCHOOL, ({"Lessee™),

In consideration of the obligation of Lessee to pay the rent
provided in this Lease and in consideration of the other terms,
covenants, and conditions of this Lease, Lessor hereby demises and
leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby takes from Lessor the following
real property:

(1) all elementary class rooms and the playing
field, which are part of the improvements
described in Exhibit "A"™ attached heretc and
made a part hereof for z2ll purposes; and

(2) the right to equal use of administrative
offices, and all common areas, halls, and
stairways, which are part of the improvements
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and
made a part hereof for all purposes; and

(3) the fixtures and equipment described in
Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a part
hereof for all purposes (the "lease
premises"),

to have and to hold for a term commencing on September 1, 1998, and
ending August 31, 2001, on the following terms and conditicns:

ARTICLE I
Acceptance of Existing Premises

1.1 Lessee acknowledges that it has, prior to the execution
of this Lease, inspected the leased premises. By occupying the
leased premises, Lessee shall be deemed to have accepted the
premises and to have acknowledged that the premises comply fully
with Lessor's covenants under this Lease.

LRTICLE IT
Rent

2.1 Rental shall accrue under this Lease from September 1,
1997, and shall be payable at the place designated for the delivery
of notices to Lessor at the time of payment.

-
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2.2 Lessee shall pay to Lessor rental in the aggregate amount
of FORTY-NINE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS
($49,845.00), payable 1in -advance, 1in fifteen equal monthly
installments of THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE DOLLARS
($3,323.00), beginning on or before June 1, 1987, with a like
amount being due and payable on or before the first day of each and
every succeeding calendar month during the term of this Lease.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall pay to Lessor on the
commencement date the sum of THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-
THREE DOLLARS (3%3,323.00) as a security deposit, to be held by
Lessor without interest and to be applied to the last accruing
installments of Rental under this Lease.

ARTICLE III
Use and Care of Premises

3.1 The leased premises shall be used and occupied for the
purpose of operating an open-enrollment charter school and for no
cther purposes, without the prieor written consent of Lessor.

3.2 All property kept, stored or maintained within the leased
premises by Lessee shall be at Lessee's sole risk,

3.3 Lessee shall not conduct within the leased premises any
objectionable activity, nor permit any objectionable or unpleasant
odors toc emanate from the premises, nor take any other action which
would disturb or endanger the public.

3.4 Lessee shall take good care of the leased premises and
keep them free from waste at all times. Lessee shall keep the
leased premises, including signs, sidewalks, service ways, and
loading areas adjacent to the premises neat, clean, and free from
dirt or rubbish at all times.

ARTICLE IV
Maintenance and Repair of Premises

4.1 Lessee shall keep the leased premises in good, clean
condition and shall make all needed repairs, including, but not
limited to, the foundation, exterior walls, and roof. Lessee shall
be responsible 25.00% of all maintenance or repair charges, and
Lessor shall be responsible for 75.00% of said charges. If any
repairs required to be made by Lessee hereunder are not made within
ten (10) days after writien notice delivered to Lessee by Lessor,
Lessor may at its option make such repairs without liability to
Lessee for any loss or damage by reason of such repairs, and Lessee
shall pay to Lessor on demand as additional rental under this Lease
its pro rata share of the cost of the repairs, together with
interest at the maximum legal rate in effect in the State of Texas

-

e,

LI


http:3,323.00
http:3,323.00
http:49,845.00

from the date of payment by Lessor until repaid by Lessee. At the
expiration. of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender the leased
premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear, loss by
unavoidable casualty, alone excepted.

ARTICLE V
Alterations and Fixtures

5.1 Lessee shall not make any alterations, additions, or
improvements to the leased premises without the pricr written
consent of Lessor. All alterations, additions, improvements, and
fixtures, that may be made or installed by either party on the
leased premises shall become the property of Lessor and at the
termination of this Lease shall remain on and be surrendered with
the leased premises, unless Lessor requests their removal, in which
event Lessee shall remove the same and restore the leased premises
to their original condition at Lessee's expense. Any linoleum,
carpeting, or other floor covering of similar character that may be
cemented or otherwise affixed to the floor of the demised premises,
and any paneling or other wall covering, shall also become the
property of Lessor, all without credit or compensation to Lessee.

5.2 Lessee shall not permit any lien or obligation to be
imposed on the leased premises by reason of any alteration, repair,
labor performed, or materials furnished to the leased premises for
or on behalf of Lessee, and Lessee will discharge any such lien or
charge immediately after the lien attaches or the charge becomes
due and payable.

ARTICLE VI
Utilities

6.1 Lessee shall promptly pay all charges for electricity,
water, telephone service, and other utilities furnished to the

leased premises.

6.2 Lessor shall not be liable for any interruption or
impairment whatscever in utility services.

ARTICLE VII
Insurance and Indemnity

7.1 Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or to any other
person on the leased premises for any loss or damage to the person
or property of Lessee or such other person caused by any act of
negligence whatscever or due to improper construction, conditien,
or repair of the building, and Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify
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Lessor and hold it harmless from any loss, expense, or claim
arising out of any such damage or injury.

7.2 Lessor shall procure and maintain throughout the term of
this Lease policies of insurance providing fire and extended
coverage on the building and other improvements, general liability
insurance on the premises, and medical payments coverage for all
children, whether enrolled in the open-enrollment charter school or
the day care facility. Lessor shall pay 75.00% of the total premium
and Lessee shall pay 25.00% of the total premium.

' ARTICLE VIII
Non-Liability for Certain Damages

Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any injury to person
or damage to property caused by escape or leakage of gas, water,
steam, electricity, or o¢il on or into the leased premises, nor
shall Lessor be liable to Lessee for any loss cor damage that may be

occasioned by or through the acts or omissions of any persons

whatsoever.

ARTICLE 1IX
Access to Premises

9.1 Lessee shall have the right to the exclusive use of all
elementary class rooms and the playing field, and shall have the
right to egual use of administrative offices, and all common areas,

halls, and stairways.

9,2 Lessor shall have the right to the exclusive use of the
areas designated for infants, including infant orientation, and the
right to equal use of administrative offices, and all common areas,
halls, and stairways. :

9.3 In addition, Lessor shall have the right to enter upon the
areas reserved for the exclusive use of the Lessee, at reasonable
hours for the purpose of inspection. Lessor shall not be liable to
Lessee for any expense, loss, or damage caused by any such entry on
the leased premises.

ARTICLE X
Damage by Casualty

10.1 Lessee shall give immediate written notice to Lessor of
any damage caused to the leased premises by fire or other casualty.

10.2 In the event that the leased premises are damaged or
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destroyed by fire or other casualty insurable under standard fire
and extended coverage insurance and Lessor does not elect to
terminate the Lease as provided below, Lessor shall proceed with
reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense to rebuild
and repair the leased premises. If the leased premises are damaged
or destroyed by fire or other casualty so as to render un-leasable
more than fifty percent (50%) of the floor area of the entire
building in which the leased premises are located, Lessor may elect
either to terminate this Lease or to proceed to rebuild and repair
the leased premises. Lessor shall give written notice to Lessee of
its election within sixty (60} days after the occurrence of the
casualty and, if it elects to rebuild and repair, shall proceed to
do so with reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense.

10.3 Lessor's obligation to rebuild and repair under this
Article X shall be limited to restoring the damaged portion of the
leased premises to substantially the condition in which Lessor had
placed the leased premises at the time of Lessor's original tender
of possession to Lessee, as modified by ordinary wear and tear
preceding the damage or destruction. Lessee agrees that, promptly
after completion of any such work by Lessor, it will proceed with
reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense to rebuild,
repalr and restore its signs, fixtures, and equipment, and perform
any other work necessary to open the leased premises for business.

10.4 During any period of reconstruction or repair of the
leased premises, this Lease shall continue in full force and
effect, except that the Rental shall be abated for the length of

time necessary for the reconstruction or repairs in proportion to |

the amount of floor area of the leased premises rendered unusable.
There shall be no abatement of any other amounts payable by Lessee
under the terms of this Lease.

10.5 Any insurance against casualty loss which may be carried
by either Lessor or Lessee shall be under the sole control of the
party carrying the insurance, and the other party shall have no
interest in any proceeds of that insurance. Lessor and Lessee
hereby expressly waive any cause of action or right of recovery
which either of them may hereafter have against the other for any
loss or damage to the leased premises or to the contents of the
premises belonging to either caused by fire, explosion, or other
risk covered by the Texas standard form of fire and extended
coverage policy.

ARTICLE XI
Eminent Domain

11.1 If the whole or any substantial part of the leased
premises should be taken for any public or gquasi public use under
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any law, ordinance, or regulation or by right of eminent domain or
by private purchase in lieu thereof, then it is agreed that at the
option of either party to this Lease, this Lease shall be cancelled
as of the date of the taking, and both parties shall be relieved of
all obligations imposed by this Lease. Should this Lease contract
be cancelled by any such event, it is agreed that the Lessee shall
have the right to recover only such damages suffered or sustained
by Lessee as are the result of the taking of the property belonging
to Lessee. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Lessee
shall have no claim against the Lessor and shall not have any claim
or right to any portion of any amount that may be awarded as
damages or paid as a result of any such inveluntary conversion,
whether brought abcut by suit or agreement, for the cancellation of
the Lease or for Lessee's leasehold interest. It 1s expressly
~understood and agreed that any and all such amounts shall belong to
the Lessor. All rights of the Lessee to damages for cancellation
of lease or loss of leasehold, if any, are hereby assigned by the
Lessee to the Lessor.

11.2 If less than a substantial peortion of the leased
premises should be taken for any public or quasi public use under
any law, ordinance, or requlation or by right of eminent domain or
by private purchase in lieu thereof, this Lease shall not
terminate. But the Rental under this Lease during the unexpired
portion of this Lease shall be reduced as of the date of the taking
in proportion to the ratio that the number of usable feet taken
bears to the total number of usable feet in the leased premises.
In the event of a taking such as that set out in this paragraph it
is agreed that the Lessee shall have the right to recover only such
damages suffered or sustained by Lessee as are the result of the
taking of property which belongs to the Lessee, It 1s expressly
understood and agreed that the Lessee shall have no claim against
the Lessor and shall not have any claim or right to any portion of
any amount that may be awarded as damages or paid as a result of
such taking for the loss of any part of Lessee's leasehold
interest. It is expressly understood that any and all of such
amounts shall belong to the Lessor and all rights of the Lessee to
damages for the loss of leasehold interest, if any, are hereby
assigned by the Lessee to the Lessor.

ARTICLE XII
Assignment and Subletting

12.1 Lessee shall not assign or in any manner transfer this
Lease or any estate or interest in this Lease, or sublet the leased
premises or any part of the premises without the prior written
consent of Lessor. Consent by Lessor to one or more assignments or
sublettings shall not operate as a waiver of Lessor's rights as to
any subsequent assignments and sublettings. Notwithstanding any
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assignment or subletting, Lessee shall at all times remain fully
responsible and liable for the payment of the rent specified in
this Lease and for compliance with all of its other obligations
under this lease.

12.2 In the event of the transfer and assignment by Lessor of
its interest in this Lease and in the building containing the
leased premises to a person, firm, or corporation assuming Lessor's
obligations under this Lease, Lessor shall be released from any
further cbhligations under this Lease. Lessee agrees to look solely
to the responsibility of the successor in interest of the Lessor.
Any security given by Lessee tc secure performance of its
obligations under this Lease may be assigned and transferred by
Lessor to a successor in interest of Lessor and Lessor shall
thereby be discharged of any further obligation for the security.

ARTICLE XIII
Property Taxes

13.1 Lessee shall be liable for all taxes levied against
personal property and trade fixtures placed by Lessee in the leased
premises. If any such taxes for which Lessee is liable are levied
against Lessor or Lessor's property, and i1f Lessor elects to pay
them, or if the assessed value of Lesscr's property is increased by
inclusion of personal property and trade fixtures placed by Lessee
in the Leased premises and Lessor elects to pay the taxes based on
that increase, Lessee shall pay to Lessor on demand that part of
the taxes attributable to Lessee's personal property and trade
fixtures.

13.2 As additional rental, the Lessee agrees to pay to the
Lessor, on demand, an amount equal to any additions to or increases
in any and all taxes, assessments, impositions, levies, charges,
exercises, fees, licenses, and other sums levied, assessed, or
imposed by any governmental authority ("taxes and assessments")
against the leased premises that shall become due and payable
during the term of this Lease that are in addition to or greater
than taxes and assessments for the year 1995. Lessor shall be
reguired to send Lessee copies of all tax bills pertaining to the
leased premises. Provided, however, that for any partial tax year
occurring during the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall be liable
for only that portion of any such taxes and assessments as the
number of days in the partial tax year bears to 365.

ARTICLE XIV
Events of Default and Remedies

14.1 The following events shall be deemed to be events of
default by Lessee under this Lease:
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a. Failure of Lessee to pay when due any installment of
rent or any other sums or charges due under this Lease.

b. Failure of Lessee comply with any term, provision, or
covenant of this Lease, other than the payment of rent, and failure
to cure that breach within thirty (30) days after written notice of
the breach to Lessee,

c. Insolvency of Lessee, a transfer by Lessee in fraud
of creditors, or assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors.

d. Commencement by or against Lessee proceedings in
bankruptcy, or for reorganization of Lessee, or for the re-
adjustment or arrangement of Lessee's debtis, whether under the
Bankruptcy Act of the United States of America or under any other
law, whether State or Federal, now or hereafter existing for the
relief of debtors, or commencement of any analogous statutory or
nonstatutory proceeding involving Lessee. The acceptance by Lessor
of Lessee's monthly payment as provided in this Lease subsequent to
the occurrence of any such event of default, or that set forth in
subparagraph (e) below, shall be as compensation for use and
occupancy of the leased premises, and shall in no way constitute a
waiver by Lessor of 1its right to exercise any of the remedies
provided bhelow on the occurrence of any event of default.

e. Appocintment of a Receiver or Trustee for all or
substantially all of the assets of Lessee.

f. Desertion or vacation by Lessee of any substantial
portion of the premises.

15.2 On the occurreﬁce of any of such events of default,
Lessor shall have the option tc pursue any one or more of the
following remedies without any notice or demand whatsoever:

a. Termination of this Lease, in which event Lessee
shall immediately surrender the leased premises to Lessor, and if
Lessee fails to do so, Lessor may, without prejudice to any other
remedy which it may have for possessicn or arrearages in rent,
enter upon and take possession of the leased premises and expel or
remove Lessee and any other person who may be occupying the
premises or any part of the premises, by force if necessary,
without liability for prosecution or any claim of damages; and
Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor on demand the amount of all loss and
damage that Lessor may suffer by reason of any such termination,
whether through inability to relet the leased premises on
satisfactory terms or otherwise.

b. Entry on and repossession of the leased premises and
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expulsion or remcval of Lessee and any other person who may be
occupying the premises or any part of the premises, by force if
necessary, without liability for prosecution or for any claim for
damages, and relet the leased premises and receive the rent; and
Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor on demand any deficiency that may
arise by reason of such re-letting. .

c. Entry on the leased premises, by force if necessary,
without liability for prosecution or for any claim for damages, and
performance of any of Lessee's obligations under the terms of this
Lease; and Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor on demand for any
expenses that Lessor may incur in thus effecting compliance with
Lessee's cobligaticn under this Lease. Lessee further agrees that
Lessor shall net be liable for any damages resulting to the Lessee
from such actions, whether caused by the negligence of Lessor or
otherwise. :

Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude
pursuit of any of the other remedies provided in this Lease or any
other remedies provided by law, nor shall pursuit of any of the
other remedies provided constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any
rent due to Lessor under this Lease or of any damages accruing to
Lessor by reason of the violation of any of the terms, provision,
or covenants contained in this Lease. Forbearance by Lessor to
enforce one or more of the remedies provided con an event of default
shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the
default.

14.3 1If, on account of any breach or default by Lessee in
Lessee’s obligations under this Lease, it shall become necessary
for Lesscor to employ an attorney to enforce or defend any of
Lessor's rights or remedies, Lessee agrees to pay any reasonable
attorney's fees incurred by Lessor for that purpose.

ARTICLE XV
Lessor's Lien

15.1 Lessee hereby grants to Lessor a valid first security
interest on all the goods, chattels, furniture, trade fixtures, and
property that Lessee may own and have on the leased premises at any
time or times during the term of this Lease, as well as on the
proceeds o©f any insurance accruing to Lessee by reason of any
destruction of or damage to any such property, to secure all rents
and other sums due or to become due Lesscor under this Lease, any
and all exemption laws being expressly waived in favor of the
security interest. It is agreed that this express security
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interest shall not be construed as a waiver of any statutory or
other liens given or that may be given to Lessor, but shall be in
addition to any such statutdry or other lien. It is agreed that in
the event of default by Lessee under this Lease, Lessor shall have
and be entitled to exercise all right and remedies provided or
granted to a secured party after default under the Uniform
Commercial Code with respect to any and all personal property on
the premises, including, without limitation, the right to take and

retain possession of any or all such property and to sell or.

otherwise utilize such property at public or private sale or in any
other manner authorized or provided in the Uniform Commercial Code.
On request by Lessor, Lessee agrees to execute and deliver to
Lesscor from time to time such UCC Financing Statements as Lessor
may deem necessary to perfect the security interest of Lessor in
the property described above and the proceeds of such property
under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code in force in the
State of Texas.

ARTICLE XVI
Subordination

16.1 This Lease is subject and subordinate to any mortgzage,
Deed of Trust or other liien which may now or hereafter encumber the
leased premises and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations,
replacements, and extensions of any such mortgage, Deed of Trust,
or lien. This clause shall be self operative and no further
instrument of subordination need be reguired by any mortgagee. In
confirmation of this subordination, however, Lessee shall, at
Lessor's request, execute promptly any appropriate certificate or
instrument that Lessor may request. Lessee hereby constitutes and
appeoints Lessor the Lessee's attorney-in-fact to execute any such
certificate or instrument for and on behalf of Lessee. In the
event of the enforcement by the Trustee or the Beneficiary under
any such mortgage or Deed of Trust of the remedies provided for by
law or by the mortgage or Deed of Trust, Lessee will, upon regquest
of any person or parties succeeding to the interest of Lessor as a
result of such enforcement, automatically become the Lessee of the
successor in  interest without change in the terms or other
provisions of this Lease.

ARTICLE XVII
Miscellaneous

17.1 In this Lease, the singular shall include the plural and
vice versa, and the masculine shall include the feminine or neuter.

17.2 If any clause or provision of this Lease is illegal,
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invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective
during the term of this Lease, it is the intention of the parties
that the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected by any such
illegality, invalidity, or un-enforceability, and the parties
hereby declare that this Lease would have been entered into without
the unenforceable portion.

17.3 This Lease may not be altered, changed, or amended
except by instrument in writing signed by both parties. The terms,
provisions, covenants, and conditions contained in this Lease shall
apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding on the parties
and on their respective successors 1in interest and legal
representatives, except as otherwise expressly provided.

17.4 The captions used in this Lease are for convenience only
and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions.

17.5 One or more waivers of any covenant, term, or condition
of this Lease by either party, or of any act by the other party
requiring consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or
render unnecessary consent to or approval of any subsequent similar
act.,

17.6 Whenever a period of time is prescribed in this Lease
for action to be taken by Lessor, Lessor shall not be liable or
responsible for, and there shall be excluded from the computation
of any such period of time, any delays due to strikes, riots, acts
of God, shortages of labor or materials, war, governmental laws,
regulations, or restrictions or any other causes of any kind
whatsocever which are beyond the reasonable control of Lessor.

17.7 Lessor covenants and agrees that, on payment by Lessee
of the rent and all other sums provided for in this Lease, and on
the observance and performance of all of the covenants and
agreements on the Lessee's part to be observed and performed,
Lessee shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Lease, at
all times during the continuance of this Lease have the peaceable
and quiet enjoyment and possession of the leased premises.

17.8 Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or
construed by the parties, or by any third party, as creating the
relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint
venture between the parties, it being understood and agreed that
neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provision
contained in this Lease, nor any acts of the parties, shall be
deemed to create any relationship between the parties other than
the relationship of Lessor and Lessee.

17.9 Lessee warrants that it has had no dealings with any
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broker or agent in connection with the negotiation or execution of
this Lease and Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold Lessor harmless
from and against any and all costs, expense, or liability for
commissions or other compensations and charges claimed by any
broker or agent with respect to this Lease.

17.10 Should Lessee fail to pay when due any installment of
Rent, or any other sum payable to the Lessor under the terms of
this Lease, interest at the maximum legal rate then payable by
Lessee in the State of Texas shall accrue from and after the date
on which any such installment or sum shall be due and payable, and
the interest shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor at the time of
payment of the sum on which the interest shall have accrued.

17.11 The term "Lessor" shall mean only the owner from time
to time of the leased premises. It is specifically understood and
agreed that Lessor shall have no personal liability with respect to
any of the covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Lease. 1In
the event of a breach or default by Lessor of any of its
obligations under this Lease, Lessee shall look solely to the
equity of the Lessor in the leased premises for the satisfaction of
Lessee's remedies, and Lessee shall have no right to seek, obtain,
or enforce a claim or judgement against Lessor for any deficiency
remaining, following exhaustion of Lessor's equity in the leased
premises.

17.12 The term "Lease Year", as used in this Lease, shall, in
the case of the first Lease year, mean the pericd that commences
with the Commencement Date of the Lease term and terminates on the
last day of the twelfth (12th) full calendar month after the
commencement, and the first Lease Year shall include twelve {12)
full calendar months plus the partial month, if any, at the
commencement of the lease term if the lease term does not commence
cn the first day of a calendar month. Each subsequent Lease Year
shall mean a period of twelve (12) full calendar months commencing
with the date following the last day of the first Lease Year, and
each subseguent anniversary of such day. The last Lease year of
the Lease term shall include the period which commences on the day
immediately following the last day of the preceding Lease Year and
terminates on the last day of the Lease term, and the parties
recognize that the last Lease Year may be less than twelve (12)
full calendar months, depending on the date of termination of the
Lease term.

ARTICLE XVIII
Notices

18.1 Wherever any notice is required or permitted under this
Lease, the notice shall be in writing. Any notice or document
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required or permitted to be delivered, whether actually received or
not, shall be deemed given when deposited in the United States
Mail, postage prepaid, Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested,
addressed to the parties at the respective addresses set out
opposite their names below, or at such other addresses as they have
specified by written notice delivered in accordance with this
paragraph.

SAINT NICHQOLAS SCHOQOOL, LTD.
1920 N. Braeswood Blvd.
Houston, Texas 77030

Medical Center Charter School
1920 N. Braeswood Blvd.
Houston, Texas 77030

EXECUTED the day of '

SAINT NICHOLAS SCHOOL, LTD., LESSOR

BY:

Terry-Heard Management, Inc., General Partner

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL, LESSEE

BY:

James L. McKey, Superintendent
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EXHIBIT “A”
BUILDING AND GROUNDS

Downstairs elementary suite, containing class rooms A and B, science and service areas,
restrooms, locker and storage rooms, and networked computer center

Up stairs elementary suite, containing class rooms C and D, science and service areas,
restrooms, locker and storage rooms, and networked computer center

The computer resource center and the library
The soccer field/playgrounds
Clinic

Copy room

Use, as needed, of the following common areas: Administrative offices, hallways,
stairways, elevator, courtyard, and porches
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EXHIBIT “B”
FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Science and restroom fixtures
Projectors, screens, and chalkboards
Student desks, tables, and chairs for 24 children

Teacher desks and chairs for 2 teachers




ATTACHMENT NO. 22

LEASE OF SCHOOL FACILITY

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF HARRIS

This Lease Agreement is made and entered into by and between
SAINT NICHOLAS SCHOOL II, L.P. ("Lessor"), and MEDICAL CENTER
CHARTER SCHOCL, ("Lessee').

In consideration of the obligation of Lessee to pay the rent
provided in this Lease and in consideration of the other terms,
covenants, and conditions of this Lease, Lessor hereby demises and
leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby takes from Lessor the following
real property:

(1) all elementary class rooms and the playing
field, which are part of the improvements
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and
made a part hereof for all purposes; and

(2) the right to equal use of administrative
offices, and all common areas, halls, and
stairways, which are part of the improvements
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and
made a part hereof for all purposes; and

(3) the fixtures and equipment described in
Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a part
hereof for all purposes {(the "lease
premises”), T

to have and to hold for a term commencing on March 1, 1996, and
ending May 31, 1997, on the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE I
Acceptance of Existing Premises

1.1 Lessee acknowledges that it has, prior to the execution
of this Lease, inspected the leased premises. By occupying the
leased premises, Lessee shall be deemed to have accepted the
premises and to have acknowledged that the premises comply fully
with Lessor's covenants under this Lease.

ARTICLE II
Rent

2.1 Rental shall accrue under this Lease from March 1, 1996,
and shall be payable at the place designated for the delivery of
notices to Lessor at the time of payment.
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2.2 Lessee shall pay to Lessor rental in the aggregate amount
of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FQUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED NINETY-FIVE DOLLARS
($154,995.00), payable im advance, in three equal monthly
installments of THREE THOUSAND FQUR HUNDRED NINETY-THREE DOLLARS
($3,493.00), beginning on or before the commencement date, and
twelve equal monthly installments of TWELVE THOUSAND FORTY-THREE
DOLLARS ($12,043.00} each beginning on or before June 1, 1996, with
a like amount being due and payable on or before the first day of
each and every succeeding calendar month during the term of this
Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall pay to Lessor on
the commencement date the sum of TWELVE THOUSAND FORTY-THREE
DOLLARS ($12,043.00) as a security deposit, to be held by Lessor
without interest and to be applied to the last accruing
installments of Rental under this Lease.

ARTICLE III
Use and Care of Premises

3.1 The leased premises shall be used and occupied for the
purpose of operating an open-enrollment charter school and for no
other purposes, without the prior written consent of Lessor.

3.2 All property kept, stored or maintained within the leased
premises by Lessee shall be at Lessee's sole risk.

3.3 Lessee shall not conduct within the leased premises any
objectionable activity, nor permit any objectionable or unpleasant
odors to emanate from the premises, nor take any other action which
would disturb or endanger the public.

3.4 Lessee shall take good care of the leased premises and
keep them free from waste at all times. Lessee shall keep the
leased premises, including signs, sidewalks, service ways, and
loading areas adjacent to the premises neat, clean, and free from
dirt or rubbish at all times.

. ARTICLE IV
Maintenance and Repalr of Premises

4.1 Lessee shall keep the leased premises in good, clean
condition and shall make all needed repairs, including, but not
limited to, the foundation, exterior walls, and roof. Lessee shall
be responsible 42.55 % of all maintenance or repair charges, and
Lessor shall be responsible for 57.45% of said charges. If any
repairs required to be made by Lessee hereunder are not made within
ten (10) days after written notice delivered to Lessee by Lessor,
Lessor may at its option make such repairs without liability to
Lessee for any loss or damage by reason of such repairs, and Lessee
shall pay to Lessor on demand as additional rental under this Lease

-2-



http:12,043.00
http:12,043.00
http:3,493.00
http:154,995.00

its pro rata share of the cost of the repairs, together with
interest at the maximum legal rate in effect in the State of Texas
from the date of payment by-Lessor until repaid by Lessee. At the
expiration of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender the 1leased
premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear, loss by
unavoidable casualty, alone excepted.

ARTICLE V
Alterations and Fixtures

5.1 Lessee shall not make any alterations, additions, or
improvements to the leased premises without the prior written
consent of Lessor. All alterations, additions, improvements, and
fixtures, that may be made or installed by either party on the
leased premises shall become the property of Lessor and at the
termination of this Lease shall remain on and be surrendered with
the leased premises, unless Lessor requests their removal, in which
event Lessee shall remove the same and restore the leased premises
to their original condition at Lessee's expense. Any linoleum,
carpeting, or other floor covering of similar character that may be
cemented or otherwise affixed to the floor of the demised premises,
and any paneling or other wall covering, shall also become the
property of Lessor, all without credit or compensation to Lessee.

5.2 Lessee shall not permit any lien or obligation to be
imposed on the leased premises by reason of any alteration, repair,
labor performed, or materials furnished to the leased premises for
or on behalf of Lessee, and Lessee will discharge any such lien or
charge immediately after the lien attaches or the charge becomes
due and payable.

ARTICLE VI
Utilities

6.1 Lessee shall promptly pay all charges for electricity,
water, telephone service, and other utilities furnished to the
leased premises.

6.2 Lessor shall not be 1liable for any interruption or
impairment whatsoever in utility services.

ARTICLE VII
Insurance and Indemnity

7.1 Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or to any other
person on the leased premises for any loss or damage to the person
or property of Lessee or such other person caused by any act of
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negligence whatsoever cr due to improper construction, condition,
or repair of the building, and Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify
Lessor and held it harmless from any loss, expense, or claim
arising out of any such damage or injury.

7.2 Lessor shall procure and maintain throughout the term of
this Lease policies of insurance providing fire and extended
coverage on the building and other improvements, general liability
insurance on the premises, and medical payments coverage for all
children, whether enrolled in the open-enrollment charter school or
the day care facility. Lessor shall pay 57.45% of the total premium
and Lessee shall pay 42.55% of the total premium.

ARTICLE VIII
Non-Liability for Certain Damages

Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any injury to person
or damage to property caused by escape or leakage of gas, water,
steam, electricity, or o¢il on or into the leased premises, nor
shall Lessor be liable to Lessee for any loss or damage that may be
occasioned by or through the acts or omissions of any persons
whatsoever.

ARTICLE IX
Access to Premises

9.1 Lessee shall have the right to the exclusive use of all
elementary class rooms and the playing field, and shall have the
right to equal use of administrative offices, and all common areas,

halls, and stairways.

9.2 Lessor shall have the right to the exclusive use of the
areas designated for infants, including infant orientation, and the
right to equal use of administrative offices, and all common areas,
halls, and stairways.

9.3 In addition, Lessor shall have the right to enter upon the
areas reserved for the exclusive use of 'the Lessee, at reasonable
hours for the purpose of inspection. Lessor shall not be liable to
Lessee for any expense, loss, or damage caused by any such entry on
the leased premises.

ARTICLE X
Damage by Casualty

10.1 Lessee shall give immediate written notice to Lessor of
any damage caused to the leased premises by fire or other casualty.
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10.2 In the event that the leased premises are damaged or
destroyed by fire or other casualty insurable under standard fire
and extended coverage insurance and Lessor does not elect to
terminate the Lease as provided below, Lessor shall proceed with
reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense to rebuild
and repair the leased premises. If the leased premises are damaged
or destroyed by fire or other casualty so as to render un-leasable
more than fifty percent ({50%) of the floor area of the entire
building in which the leased premises are located, Lessor may elect
either to terminate this Lease or to proceed to rebuild and repair
the leased premises. Lessor shall give written notice to Lessee of
its election within sixty (60) days after the coccurrence of the
casualty and, if it elects to rebuild and repair, shall proceed to
do so with reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense.

10.3 Lessor's obligation to rebuild and repair under this
Article X shall be limited to restoring the damaged portion of the
leased premises to substantially the condition in which Lessor had
placed the leased premises at the time of Lessor's original tender
of possession to Lessee, as modified by ordinary wear and tear
preceding the damage or destructicn. Lessee agrees that, promptly
after completion of any such work by Lessor, it will proceed with
reasonable diligence and at its sole cost and expense to rebuild,
repalr and restore its signs, fixtures, and equipment, and perform
any other work necessary to open the leased premises for business.

10.4 During any period of reconstruction or repair of the
leased premises, this Lease shall continue in full force and
effect, except that the Rental shall be abated for the length of
time necessary for the reconstruction or repairs in proportion to
the amount of floor area of the leased premises rendered unusable.
There shall be no abatement of any other amounts payable by Lessee
under the terms of this Lease.

10.5 Any insurance against casualty loss which may be carried
by either Lessor or Lessee shall be under the sole control of the
party carrying the insurance, and the other party shall have no
interest in any proceeds of that insurance. Lessor and Lessee
hereby expressly waive any cause of action or right of recovery
which either of them may hereafter have against the other for any
loss or damage to the leased premises or to the contents of the
premises belonging to either caused by fire, explosion, o¢or other
risk covered by the Texas standard form of fire and extended
coverage policy.

ARTICLE XI
Eminent Domain

11.1 If the whole or any substantial part of the leased
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premises should be taken for any public or quasi public use under
any law, ordinance, or regulation or by right of eminent domain or
by private purchase in lieu-thereof, then it is agreed that at the
cption of either party to this Lease, this Lease shall be cancelled
as of the date of the taking, and both parties shall be relieved of
all obligations imposed by this Lease. Should this Lease contract
be cancelled by any such event, it is agreed that the Lessee shall
have the right to recover only such damages suffered or sustained
by Lessee as are the result of the taking of the property belonging
to Lessee. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Lessese
shall have no claim against the Lessor and shall not have any claim
or right to any portion of any amount that may be awarded as
damages or paid as a result of any such inveluntary conversion,
whether brought abocut by suit or agreement, for the cancellation of
the Lease or for Lessee's leasehold interest. It is expressly
understood and agreed that any and all such amounts shall belong to
the Lessor. All rights of the Lessse to damages for cancellation
of lease or loss of leasehold, if any, are hereby assigned by the
Lessee to the Lessor.

11.2 If less than a substantial portion of the leased
premises should be taken for any public or guasi public use under
any law, ordinance, or regulation or by right of eminent domain or
by private purchase in lieu thereof, this Lease shall not
terminate. But the Rental under this Lease during the unexpired
portion of this Leass shall be reduced as of the date of the taking
in proportion to the ratic that the number of usable feet taken
bears to the total number of usable feet in the leased premises.
In the event of a taking such as that set out in this paragraph it
is agreed that the Lessee shall have the right to recover only such
damages suffered or sustained by Lessee as are the result of the
taking of property which belongs to the Lessee, It is expressly
understoecd and agreed that the Lessee shall have no claim against
the Lessor and shall not have any claim or right to any portion of
any amount that may be awarded as damages or paid as a result of
such taking for the loss of any part of Lessee's leasehold
interest. It is expressly understood that any and all of such
amounts shall belong to the Lessor and all rights of the Lessee to
damages for the loss of leasehold interest, if any, are hereby
assigned by the Lessee to the Lessor.

ARTICLE XII
Assignment and Subletting

12.1 Lessee shall not assign or in any manner transfer this
Lease or any estate or interest in this Lease, or sublet the leased
premises or any part of the premises without the prior written
consent of Lessor. Consent by Lessor to one or more assignments or
sublettings shall not operate as a wailver of Lessor's rights as to
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any subsequent assignments and sublettings. Notwithstanding any
assignment or subletting, Lessee shall at all times remain fully
responsible and liable for -the payment of the rent specified in
this Lease and for compliance with all of its other obligations
under this lease.

12.2 In the event of the transfer and assignment by Lessor of
its interest in this Lease and in the building containing the
leased premises to a person, firm, or corporation assuming Lessor's
obligations under this Lease, Lessor shall be released from any
further obligations under this Lease. Lessee agrees to look solely
to the responsibility of the successor in interest of the Lessor.
Any security given by Lessee to secure performance of its
obligations under this Lease may be assigned and transferred by
Lessor to a successor in interest of Lessor and Lessor shall
thereby be discharged of any further obligation for the security.

ARTICLE XIII
Property Taxes

13.1 Lessee shall be liable for all taxes levied against
personal property and trade fixtures placed by Lessee in the leased
premises. If any such taxes for which Lessee is liable are levied
against Lessor or Lessor's property, and if Lessor elects to pay
them, or if the assessed value of Lessor's property is increased by
inclusion of personal property and trade fixtures placed by lLessee
ir the Leased premises and Lesscor elects to pay the taxes based on
that increase, Lessee shall pay to Lessor on demand that part of
the taxes attributable to Lessee's personal property and trade
-fixtures.

13.2 BAs additional rental, the Lessee agrees to pay to the
Lessor, on demand, an amount equal to any additions to or increases
in any and all taxes, assessments, impositions, levies, charges,
exercises, fees, licenses, and other sums levied, assessed, or
imposed by any governmental authority ("taxes and assessments')
against the leased premises that shall become due and payable
during the term of this Lease that are in addition to or greater
than taxes and assessments for the year 1995, Lessor shall be
required to send Lessee copies of all tax bills pertaining to the
leased premises. Provided, however, that for any partial tax year
occurring during the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall be liable
for only that portion of any such taxes and assessments as the
number of days in the partial tax year bears to 365.

ARTICLE XIV
Events of Default and Remedies

14.1 The following events shall be deemed to be events of
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default by Lessee under this Lease:

a. Failure of Lessee to pay when due any installment of
rent or any other sums or charges due under this Lease.

b. Failure of Lessee comply with any term, provision, or
covenant of this Lease, other than the payment ¢f rent, and failure
to cure that breach within thirty (30) days after written notice of
the breach to Lessee.

c. Insolvency of Lessee, a transfer by Lessee in fraud
of creditors, or assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors.

d. Commencement by or against Lessee proceedings in
bankruptcy, or for reorganization of Lessee, or for the re-
adjustment or arrangement of Lessee's debts, whether under the
Bankruptcy Act of the United States of America or under any other
law, whether State or Federal, now or hereafter existing for the
relief of debtors, or commencement of any analogous statutory or
nonstatutory proceeding involving Lessee. The acceptance by Lessor
of Lessee's monthly payment as provided in this Lease subsequent to
the occurrence cf any such event of default, or that set forth in
subparagraph (e) below, shall be as compensation for use and
occupancy of the leased premises, and shall in no way constitute a
waiver by Lessor of its right to exercise any of the remedies
provided below on the occurrence of any event of default.

e, Bppointment of a Receiver or Trustee for all or
substantially all of the assets of Lessee.

f. Desertion or vacation by Lessee of any substantial
portion of the premises.

15.2 On the occurrence of any of such events of default,
Lessor shall have the option to pursue any one or more of the
following remedies without any notice or demand whatsocever:

a. Termination of this Lease, in which event Lessee
shall immediately surrender the leased premises to Lessor, and if
Lessee fails to do so, Lessor may, withcut prejudice to any other
remedy which it may have for possession or arrearages in rent,
enter upon and take possession of the leased premises and expel or
remove Lessee and any other person who may be occupying the
premises or any part of the premises, by force if necessary,
without 1liability for prosecution or any claim of damages; and
Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor on demand the amount of all loss and
damage that Lessor may suffer by reason of any such termination,
whether through inability to relet the leased premises on
satisfactory terms or otherwise.
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b. Entry on and repossession of the leased premises and
expulsion or remcval of Lessee and any other person who may be
occupying the premises or any part of the premises, by force if
necessary, without liability for prosecution or for any claim for
damages, and relet the leased premises and receive the rent:; and
Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor on demand any deficiency that may
arise by reascn of such re-letting.

¢. Entry on the leased premises, by force if necessary,
without liability for prosecution or for any claim for damages, and
performance of any of Lessee's obligations under the terms of this
Lease; and Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor on demand for any
expenses that Lessor may incur in thus effecting compliance with
Lessee's obligaticn under this Lease. Lessee further agrees that
Lessor shall not be liable for any damages resulting to the Lessee
from such actions, whether caused by the negligence of Lessor or
otherwise.

Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude
pursuit of any of the other remedies provided in this Lease or any
other remedies provided by law, nor shall pursuit of any of the
other remedies provided constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any
rent due to Lessor under this Lease or of any damages accruing to
Lessor by reascn of the violation of any of the terms, provision,
or covenants contained in this Lease. Forbearance by Lessor to
enforce one or more of the remedies provided on an event of default
shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the
default.

14,3 If, on account of any breach or default by Lessee in
Lessee's obligations under this Lease, it shall become necessary
for Lessor to employ an attorney to enforce or defend any of
Lesscor's rights or remediss, Lessee agrees to pay any reasonable
attorney's fees incurred by Lessor for that purpose.

ARTICLE XV
Lessor's Lien .

15.1 Lessee hereby grants to Lesscr a valid first security
interest on all the goods, chattels, furniture, trade fixtures, and
property that Lessee may own and have on the leased premises at any
time or times during the term of this Lease, as well as on the
proceeds of any insurance accruing to Lessee by reason of any
destruction of or damage to any such property, to secure all rents
and other sums due or to become due Lessor under this Lease, any
and all exemption laws being expressly waived in favor of the
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security interest. It is agreed that this express security
interest shall not be construed as a waiver of any statutory or
other liens given or that may be given to Lessor, but shall be in
additicn to any such statutory or other lien. It is agreed that in
the event of default by Lessee under this Lease, Lessor shall have
and be entitled to exercise all right and remedies provided or
granted to a secured party after default under the Uniform
Commercial Code with respect to any and all personal property on
the premises, including, without limitation, the right to take and
retain possession ¢of any or all such property and to sell or
otherwise utilize such property at public or private sale or in any
other manner authorized or provided in the Uniform Commercial Code.
On request by Lessor, Lessee agrees to execute and deliver to
Lessor from time to time such UCC Financing Statements as Lessor
may deem necessary to perfect the security interest of Lessor in
the property described above and the proceeds of such property
under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code in force in the

State of Texas.

ARTICLE XVI
Subordination

16.1 This Lease is subject and subordinate to any mortgage,
Deed of Trust or other lien which may now or hereafter encumber the
leased premises and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations,
replacements, and extensions of any such mortgage, Deed of Trust,
or lien. This clause shall be self operative and no further
instrument of subordination need be required by any mortgagee. In
confirmation of this subordination, however, Lessee shall, at
Lessor's request, execute promptly any appropriate certificate or
instrument that Lessor may request. Lessee hereby constitutes and
appoints Lessor the Lessee's attorney-in-fact to execute any such
certificate or instrument for and on behalf of Lessee. In the
event of the enforcement by the Trustee or the Beneficiary under
any such mortgage or Deed of Trust of the remedies provided for by
law or by the mortgage or Deaed of Trust, Lessee will, upon request
of any person or parties succeeding to the interest of Lessor as a
result of such enforcement, automatically become the Lessee of the
successor 1in interest without change in the terms or other
provisions of this Lease. .

ARTICLE XVII
Miscellaneous

17.1 In this Lease, the singular shall include the plural and
vice versa, and the masculine shall include the feminine or neuter.
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17.2 If any clause or provision of this Lease is illegal,
invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective
during the term of this Lease, it is the intention of the parties
that the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected by any such
illegality, invalidity, or un-enforceability, and the parties
hereby declare that this Lease would have been entered into without
the unenforceable portion.

17.3 This Lease may not be. altered, changed, or amended
except by instrument in writing signed by both parties. The terms,
provisions, covenants, and conditions contained in this Lease shall
apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding on the parties
and on their respective successors 1in interest and legal
representatives, except as otherwise expressly provided.

17.4 The captions used in this Lease are for convenience only

‘and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisiocns.

17.5 One or more waivers of any covenant, term, or condition
of this Lease by either party, or of any act by the other party
requiring consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or
render unnecessary consent to or approval of any subsequent similar
act.

17.6 Whenever a period of time is prescribed in this Lease
for action to be taken by Lessor, Lessor shall not be liable or
responsible for, and there shall be excluded from the computation
of any such pericd of time, any delays due to strikes, riots, acts
of God, shortages of labor or materials, war, governmental laws,
regulations, or restrictions or any other causes of any kind
whatsoever which are beyond the reasonable contrel of Lessor.

17.7 Lessor covenants and agrees that, on payment by Lessee
of the rent and all other sums provided for in this Lease, and on
the observance and performance of all of the covenants and
agreements on the Lessee's part to be observed and performed,
Lessee shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Lease, at
all times during the continuance of this Lease have the peaceable
and quiet enjoyment and possession of the leased premises.

17.8 Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or
construed by the parties, or by any third party, as creating the
relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint
venture between the parties, it being understood and agreed that
neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provision
contained in this Lease, nor any acts of the parties, shall be
deemed to create any relationship between the parties other than
the relationship of Lessor and Lessee.
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17.9 Lessee warrants that it has had no dealings with any
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation or execution of
this Lease and Lessee agrees to indemnify and held Lessor harmless
from and against any and all costs, expense, or liability for
commissions or other compensations and charges claimed by any
broker or agent with respect to this Lease.

17.10 Should Lessee fail to pay when due any installment of
Rent, or any other sum payable to the Lessor under the terms of
this Lease, interest at the maximum legal rate then payable by
Lessee in the State of Texas shall accrue from and after the date
on which any such installment or sum shall be due and pavable, and
the interest shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor at the time of
payment of the sum on which the interest shall have accrued.

17.11 The term "Lessor" shall mean only the owner from time
to time of the leased premises. It is specifically understood and
agreed that Lessor shall have no personal liability with respect to
any of the covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Lease. In
the event of a breach or default by Lessor of any of its
obligations under this Lease, Lessee shall look soclely to the
equity of the Lessor in the leased premises for the satisfaction of
Lessee's remedies, and Lessee shall have no right to seek, obtain,
or enforce a claim or judgement against Lessor for any deficiency
remaining, following exhaustion of Lessor's equity in the leased
premises.

17.12 The term "Lease Yesar", as used in this Lease, shall, in
the case of the first Lease year, mean the period that commences
with the Commencement Date of the Lease term and terminates on the
last day of the twelfth (12th) full calendar month after the
commencement, and the first Lease Year shall include twelve (12)
full calendar months plus the partial month, if any, at the
commencement of the lease term if the lease term does not commence
on the first day of a calendar month. Each subsequent Lease Year
shall mean a period of twelve (12) full calendar months commencing
with the date following the last day of the first Lease Year, and
each subsequent anniversary of such day. The last Lease year of
the Lease term shall include the period which commences on the day
immediately following the last day of the preceding Lease Year and
terminates on the last day of the Lease term, and the parties
recognize that the last Lease Year may be less than twelve (12)
full calendar months, depending on the date of termination of the
Lease term. ,

ARTICLE XVITI
Notices

18.1 Wherever any notice is required or permitted under this
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Lease, the notice shall be in writing. Any notice or document
required or permitted to be delivered, whether actually received or
not, shall be deemed given-when deposited in the United States
Mail, postage prepaid, Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested,
addressed to the parties at the respective addresses set out
opposite their names below, or at such other addresses as they have
specified by written notice delivered in accordance with this
paragraph.

Saint Nicholas School II, L.P.
1920 N. Braeswood Blwvd.
Houston, Texas 77030

Medical Center Charter School

1920 N. Braeswood Blvd.
Houston, Texas 77030

EXECUTED the day of , 19

SAINT NICHOLAS SCHOOL II, L.P., LESSOR

BY:
Terry-Heard Management, Inc., General Partner

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL,LESSEE

BY:

James L. McKey, Chairman,
Medical Center Charter School

™
fan
Ly

-13-

1h




EXHIBIT “A”
BUILDING AND GROUNDS

Downstairs elementary suite, containing class rooms A and B, science and service areas,

restrooms, locker and storage rooms, and networked computer center

Up stairs elementary suite, containing class rooms C and D, science and service areas,
restrooms, locker and storage rooms, and networked computer center

The computer resource center and the library
The soccer field/playgrounds

Clinic

Copy room

Use, as needed, of the following common areas: Administrative offices, hallways,
stairways, elevator, courtyard, and porches
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EXHIBIT “B”
FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Science and restroom fixtures
Projectors, screens, and chalkboards
Student desks, tables, and chairs for 24 children

Teacher desks and chairs for 2 teachers
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ATTACHMENT NO. 23

2000-2001 Charter School Calendar
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ATTACHMENT NO. 24

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

R. Vernon Colpitts, M.D., Chairman of the Board, is a practicing obstetrician
and gynecologist and is Clinical Instructor of Obstetrics and Gynecology with
Baylor College of Medicine, Clinical Associate Surgeon of Gynecology with
M.D.Anderson Hospital, Active Staff of OB/GYN with Methodist Hospital and St.
Luke’'s Hospital, and Clinical Associate GYN with the University of Texas
Medical School. :
References: Mrs. T. Robert Ingram, Robert G. Robertson, William H. Heard

Leonard E. Crabtree, D.D.S., is a practicing dentist and Adjunct Associate
Professor, University of Texas Dental Branch. He is a Fellow of the Academy of
General Denistry, Fellow of the Royal Society of Health, a member of the Texas
Dental Association, the American Dental Association, the American Academy of
Imptant Denistry, and the Federation Dentarie Internationale. He has been a
director of the Houston District Dental Society.

References: Lloyd Koenig, William Essl, Fr. Ted Valencia

Herbert L. Davis, is a Quality Supervisor for Ingram Cactus Co. , a
manufacturer of oilfield equipment. He attended Texas Southern University prior
to being associated with Brown and Root Co. and has been a supporter of
quality in education.

References: Robbie Jenkins, Thelma Davis, Gerald Shanks

Richard Lee Gann, has B.S. from University of Oklahoma in 1953 with a major
in pharmacy and minor in chemistry. Retired from pharmacy, he has been
associated with Lion’s Club and Elks. His main hobbies are lapidary and
collecting fossils and minerals which he has shared with the students.
References: Charles Anderson, Jack Farnham, Rolando Rangetl

Gumey F. Pearsall, M.D. is a practicing pediatrician and is Assistant Clinical
Professor in Pediatrics and Clinical Instructor in Community Medicine with
Baylor University, College of Medicine, and is a Diplomat with the American
Board of Pediatrics and a Fellow with the American Academy of Pediatrics. He
is presently pediatrician with Patrice House, medical advisor with Houston
Headstart Program, and Founder Member of the Clear Creek Foundation. - In
1973 he was a member of the Houston Independent School District Board of
Education. In Desert Storm he was Commander of 4005th Augmentation
Hospitai.

References: Dr. Paul Minifee, Dr. Gary Lepow, Dr. Roosevelt Alcorn

i




ATTACHMENT NO. 25

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Spons

(1 A Fads s, - # i, (z oA

oring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: MED 1eAL Cavr=rR

LY e

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)
IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE. -

1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable). Ro BER I~ VERNON (o £/ 1zS

2. Have you ever had your name changed? ¥@ If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female) .
c.Other names used at any time __pMgNME

sociat Security Number [ REEEGEGEEE
SALISBIRY
4. Date and Place of Birth; g%{/ﬁ[/? CBLli TS NVEN BRYNS Wit , CAN,

Business Address: X
Business Telephone: __ (z/2) 7297 ~/z4)

w

“o

o

List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE

J262-FRET'S - = AS 27449

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College__MOUNT stieisen) JMIVERSITY ; SACK VILLE NEW Bpupsw 10K,
AN,

Graduate Studies __Mc &/ L mzsggr_z; MINTA EAL. QQE&EG . Qtd&

Others
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10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Assaciations: S#ERIONHV MEDIEAL-

5 _Coynry MEDICHL SICLETYs

TEIANS MEDICAL ASSoaIfrra M, CEVIRAL ASSTC (#TI6N OBGYN

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter Schoot . _rﬂf EY IPE/VZ —

2244 £ D

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

(242 - FRESEN | SECFR EMROYE ) mEplode Dae For—

. Present employer may be contacted: No (Circle One) gor SIPPeid # B2 E
Former employers may be contacted: @ No (Circle One) Mg r AlPLio #BLE

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? y. 774 If any
¢laims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond .
cancelled or revoked? __ A&

If yes, give details:

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for

termination): _zzexAs MEDC AL Assacidis oM . (SSRED /&2

STiel AeriwE

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?_p\/2  if yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract}
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? MO If yes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? _ A2

13
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misgemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state reguiatory agency? N2
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship? No

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit? No . If so, please furnish details:

Dated and signed this dayof _peroBER .

W20 . 3t _tays roN, 2ARZLS Loy M;g[ , TEAXAS.
| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my éwn behalf, and that the
foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of mgkngwledge and beliw

(Signature of Affiant)
Stateof _ 7= XAS

County of <20 2215
Personally appeared before me the above named [C9RELT VERNON ColpirTs

personally known to me, who, being duly swom, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn o before me this ‘5& da of
Lo BEX : r00g |

—K 3

(Notary Pubhc) Cj

{SEAL) My commission expires \\\\39\ 1 Oo—~

AWFHR.  VIOKIE SENGBUSCH

¥ My COMMISSION EXPIRES
i November 29, 2002

14
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ATTACHMENT NO. 26

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: MepicAL CeENTER

SCHopl., AND THE SPANSORING ENTITY HAVE THE SAME NAME .

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE.
1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable)._ £ EONARD EUg ENE CRABTREE

2. Have you ever had your name changed? /A If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female)
c.Other names used at any time

3. Sacial Security Number‘:__

4. Date and Place of Birth: _MAREH /¢, 19.F%, TULSA, OKLAHIMA

5. Business Address: MMMM&M57
Business Telephona _(743) 423 -0700

6. List your residences for the last ten (10} years starting with your current address, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE
- z n E

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College 3 £ - Vit &
Graduate Studies __ UMIVERS (7Y oF TEXAS DEnrhl. BRINGH
Others
16
’ 12

rd!




10.

1.

12

13

14.

15.

186.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: _4mZRi1CAN erﬁi_'
£

_HOUSTON DENTAL SActETY
Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School : _ afZMBER O F ToARD

OF DIREQGTDRS, \icE FRESIDENT

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE
(243 -PRESENT, ENELEACED 8/ THE Pe\wATE LAATICE QF
_GEvERAL DENTISIRY

Present employer may be contacted:  Yes No (Circle One) pyo 7~ apprioAB8LE
Former employers may be contacted: Yes No (Circle One) Ao 7~ FRILICABLE

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? NO if any
claims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been deniéd an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? AJO
If yes, give details:

%

[}
List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or .
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for

termination). /943 REaSnER TE&EXAS DENTAL. LICENSE: [ HAVE
FRAFICED DEATISTAN Sinva i f 263, MYy it ENSE IS UALID

o RATE

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?__ a0  [f yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by {directly or through contract}
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? NC If yes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? __ N2

Ly

J

1 —
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you heen the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency? ¥ £S
If yes, give details: __gecowin e DENTAEC ASSisrayr 76 TAKE

z & AN Aoiroa glitielt 15 AMow
%E&M’PS{LLMS -

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship?__ Mo

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit?__Y£LS . If so, please furnish details: LD LAW =
PAri2 v SErre =D o7 0F Cool T

Dated and signed this dayof _ Qe 7o 8ER
Az pan | at XAS .

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that | am acting on my own behalf, and that the

foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my i

(Signature of Affiant)
State of TEXAS
County of _s£4€41.5

Persenally appeared before me the above named
personally known to me, who, being duly swormn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of his/fher knowledge and belief.

th

Subscribed and sworn to before me this __ 30 day of
Oeropgepr AT 2 002
(Notary Public)
(SEAL) : My commission expires _§ 2 ~ O3

RHODA C MANN

NOTARY PUBLIC

2} State of Texas
Comm. Exp. 08-22-2003

id




ATTACHMENT NO. 27

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: MEDIL AL CENTER.
AN c - e -
THE NAME OF 7FHE S‘c'ﬁ-jy b LS _THE SAME.

In connection with the above-named organization and charter schoo! application, | herewith
make representations and supply information about myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STﬁ}TE- '
1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable):_  #ERBERT LEE DAVIS

2. Have you ever had your name changed? N If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female)
¢.Other names used at any time ___ /o5

3. Social Security Number*:__—
4. Date and Place of Birth: _%ﬁé_,__ﬂézzt_éuﬁ; TEARS

5. Business Address: o7 TEXAS 7%
Business Telephone: 26/ —35p 85

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE

1997 PRESELT /343l JRESIDENTS DRWE LEST lpn 1277047
4P T B JOQT 5920 SouritFErEsD Al , rEX TT7032R

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College_ 772X 4s SourMHSoA UMINERS T

Graduate Studies

Others




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: VO

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School . . # s1zman =72
OFE BaRP AF DIRECTHARS

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE
g 4 T (AMESS L. /€500 Sourhd AN _
'7' % SLPECIRL IS T
(975~ 1382 BRIDNY Ro0T THOMISON , I'X -

(o

Present employer may be contacted: No (Circle One)
Former employers may be contacted: No (Circle One)

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? y.724] If any
claims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? __N®
If yes, give details:

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for
termination): NO

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?_ Af@  If yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through coniract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? Ne If yes, give
details:

. Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? No

>

| T

Ay vy
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency?___No©
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship?__ @

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any
lawsuit? __ No . ¥ so, please fumnish details:

Dated and signed this 38 74 dayof _ACc 7o BEL '
£ , at -

(Signature of Affiant)

State of __ 77&=xA S
County of _se R 2 1S

Personally appeared before me the above named __ M ERBERT L EL DAVIS
personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ForH day of
Oereoep=sr AT 2 ono

ol
(Notary Public) .
My commission expires Z//’%;}

s@t"‘% Chi: ,aluéﬁﬁéﬁvow

*T o SOMMISSION EXPIRES
L N Novairber 12, 2003
.,,mjﬁé

14
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ATTACHMENT NO. 28

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: __#/&p /4 ¢
= - - J

CENTER LHARIER SAfgal, 4 sorfe] (r) Now-FRo
W“ME~

L]

In connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith
make representations and supply information abeut myself as hereinafter set forth. (Attach
addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)

IF ANSWER IS "NO” OR "NONE", SO STATE.
1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable):_ FOIAHARRD LEE FAMNN

2. Have you ever had your nameé changed? 2 _ If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female)

¢.Other names used at any time NENE
3. Social Security Number*:_—
4. Date and Place of Birti: Z [ETS

5. Business Address: RETNRAED
Business Telephone: Ao QLPule #BLE

6. List your residences for the iast ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE

— J—

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees |

College_ a1 VERSITY OF aKLAHIMAE , T.S.

Graduate Studies___ a2 o =

Others




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: AMcpien M
£ i sdciarioal

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter Schoot : MEMABEL oF
Bosp D pF DIRESCTORS

List complete employment record (up to and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:

DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

L8299 66 Lok ERD L2585 PASHRDEN A — PHARMALIS T
(G7) = (@ 2% CREST PrsdM. PASADE A B Cuapihe 15 7

Present employer may be contacted:  Yes No (Circle One) po7 APOLICADLE
Former employers may be contacted: No (Circle One)

a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond?_ysMeserair~ I any
claims were made on the bond, give details: __ Ard £ £2:m T 2F Axy IIND

b Have you ever been denied an individual or pos:tlon schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked? __ A/®
If yes, give details:

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or
governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for

termination): L/d soase D LPAAMANIS] (N FoLllWiN g STATES % OKLAS 1to i

(1953); (aies 1S g(19.55); b Yomtisil (H5¢)s TEAAS (1958)

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revoked?___p/a  If yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? Mo If yes, give
detaiis:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? __ ¥ @

13
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency? N
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, fiquidation or conservatorship?__ Al

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any

lawsuit? NO . If so, please furnish details:

Dated and signed this _, 20 74 day of _ /¢ 7PBER

I 2000 . at Iy, 7TEXAD
| hereby certify under penalty of perjury that [ am acting on my own behalf, and that the
foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my kng Ieﬁe and bgli

(Signature of Affiant)
Stateof _ 7EXA S

County of HARE LS

Personally appeared before me the above named e

personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this T TH day of
OcToBEL A9~ 2 200
(Notary Public) -
(SEAL) My commission expires 2%//2//3

¥ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

‘}',;i :\ég-“ Novamber 12, 2003

A i"%’; CHRISTINE GROENEWOLD

A <
14 149
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ATTACHMENT NO. 29

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
OPEN-ENROLLMENT CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICANT
BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT
(Print or Type)

Full Name of Sponsoring Entity and Name of Proposed Charter School: pdEp i AL Cewrem
CHPRIER ScHeol 85 A Sa/ (g);x; MoA LPREE +7 CORPORATIEN. THE

NAEME OF TS SPINSaRiNGE EnTITY AND FHE SCHo0b IS [HE .SIME
tn connection with the above-named organization and charter school application, | herewith

make representations and supply information about myseilf as hereinafter set forth. (Attach

addendum or separate sheet if space hereon is insufficient to answer any questions fully.)

IF ANSWER IS "NO" OR "NONE", SO STATE.

1. Full Name (Initials Not Acceptable): GURN EY F/EeDS PEALSA¢ &

2. Have you ever had your name changed? ¢ If yes, give reason for the change:

b.Maiden Name (if female)
¢.Other names used at any time

3. Social Security Number*:,__

4. Date and Place of Birth: ECEMBER / SAAS

5. Business Address. 44 2% FANNIN, S1ir& (400, MHOISTEN, TX 77030
Business Telephone: _ (7/3) 750~ 2 45

6. List your residences for the last ten (10) years starting with your current address, giving:

=

DATES ADDRESS CITY AND STATE ZIP CODE
L (=) L £

7. Education: Dates, Names, Locations and Degrees

College __ UMIVERSITY AF MICHIGCAN
Graduate Studies _MEHARRY MEDICAL SQHAsL , NASHVILLE TENN

QOthers

-
o
[

12




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

List Membership in Professional Societies and Associations: AmEprein prediepe Assoc,,

25 4wﬁ%ﬂw%wl€5
ABN¥D HousToNy LEDIATRICS

Present or Proposed Position with the Proposed Charter School: _ MEMBER oF /&
BapRD OF DIREAT oS

List complete employment record (up tc and including present jobs, positions, directorates
or officerships) for the past twenty (20) years:
DATES EMPLOYER ADDRESS TITLE

vE L/

OE LRl L o THE FRACTICE

Present employer may be contacted:  Yes No (Circle One) ywor APPLIL L E
Former employers may be contacted:  Yes No (Circle One) wpr AfPLLe s z
a Have you ever been in a position which required a fidelity bond? NO_ If any

claims were made on the bond, give details:

b Have you ever been denied an individual or position schedule fidelity bond, or had a bond
cancelled or revoked?
If yes, give details:

S

List any professional. occupational or vocational licenses issued by any public or

governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority which you presently hold or have held
in the past. (State date license was issued, issuer of license, date terminated, reasons for

termination): Wﬁm@ﬁﬁd&mmaammm_
LIC B ASE &g Ao SEEGZ Cﬁﬁg,ﬂizgﬂl L 8m X Tiis /A
AcrivE FRiAre ABRREr PRACIICE ‘

During the last ten (10) years, have you ever been refused a professional, occupational or
vocational license by any public or governmental licensing agency or regulatory authority, or
has such license held by you ever been suspended or revcked? ¢ K yes, give
details:

Will you or members of your immediate family be employed by (directly or through contract)
or receive remuneration from the proposed charter school? NO _ Ifyes, give
details:

Have you ever been adjudged bankrupt? __xp

o

en

IS
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17. Have you ever been convicted or had a sentence imposed or suspended or had
pronouncement of a sentence suspended or been pardoned for conviction of or pleaded
guilty or nolo contendere to any information or indictment charging any felony, or charging a
felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, or have you been the subject of any
disciplinary proceedings of any federal or state regulatory agency?__ pp
If yes, give details:

18. Have you ever been an officer, director, trustee, investment committee member, key
employee, or controlling stockholder of any business, which, while you occupied any such
position or capacity with respect to it, became insolvent or was placed under supervision or
in receivership, rehabilitation, liquidation or conservatorship? __ A0

19. Are you now, or have you been, within the past five years, a plantiff or defendant in any

“lawsuit? __ A0 . lf so, please furnish details:
Dated and signed this day of _ A 78 AER
, at . /35

| hereby certify under penaity of perjury that | am acting on my own behalf, and thatt
foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my kngwl

Stateof _ 7= xA 5
County of 44215

Personally appeared before me the above named _GuRNE ) FlEL DPS FEARS fot
personally known to me, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the
above instrument and that the statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to
the best of histher knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _ S0k%~ day of
OATBAER ( T \Z, ddg). L
(Notary Publi \ l
(SEAL) My commission expires 1)} ol L03~—

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

November 29, 2002

14




ATTACHMENT NO. 30

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY '

DISTRICT DIRECTOR n*
P, 0. BOX 2508 '
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:
Date:  SUN 18 W9, 76-0506915
DLN:
17053125073007
MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL Contact Person:
1920 N BRAESWOOQD D. A. DOWNING
HOUSTON, TX 77030-3711 Contact Telephone Number:

(513) 241-5199
Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Form 990 Required:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
Yes

Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplied, and assuming your operations will be as
stated in your application for recognition of exemption, we have determined
you are exempt from federal income tax under section 501(a) of the Intermal
Revenue Code as an organization described in section 5301(c)(3).

We have further determined that you are not a private foundation within
the. meaning of section 509(a) of the Code, because you are an organization
described in sections 509(a){1) and 170(b)}{1)(A)(ii).

If your scurces of support, or your purposes, character, or method of
operation change, please let us know so we can consider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundation status, In the case of an amend-
ment to your organizational document or bylaws, please send us a copy of the
amended document or bylaws. Also, you should inform us of all changes in your
name or address. '

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the Federal
Insurance Contributions Act (social security taxes) on remuneration of $100
or more you pay te each of your employees during a calendar year. You are
not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

Since you are not a private foundation, you are not subject to the excise
taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code, However, you are not automatically exempt
fram other federal excise taxes, If you have any questions about excise,
employment, or other federal taxes, please let us know.

Grantors and contributars may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your section 509(a}(l)} status, a grantor or contributor may not rely
on this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware
of, the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the
part of the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or
she acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that
you would po longer be classified as a section 503(a)(1) organizatiom.

153

153

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of the




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or for your use
are deductible for federal estate and gift tax purposes if they meet the
applicable provisions of Code sections 2055, 2106, and 2522,

Contribution deductions are aliowable to donors only to the extent that
their contributions are gifts, with no consideration received. Ticket pur-
chases and similar pavments in conjunction with fundraising events may not
necessarily qualify as deductible contributions, depending on the circum—
stances. See Revenue Ruling 67-246, published in Cumulative Bulletin 1967-2,
on page 104, which sets forth guidelines regarding the deductibility, as chari-
table contributions, of payments made by taxpayers for admission to or other
participation in fundraising activities for charity.

In the heading of this letter we have indicated whether you must file Form
990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax, If Yes is indicated, vou
are required to file Form 990 only if your gross receipts each year are
normally more than $25,000. However, if you receive a Form 990 package in the
mail, please file the return even if you do not exceed the gross receipts test.
If you are not required to file, simply attach the label provided, check the
box in the heading to indicate that your annual gross receipts are normally
$25,000 or less, and sign the return.

If a return is required, it must be filed by the 15th day of the fifth
month after the end of your annual accounting period. A penalty of §10 a day
is charged when a return is filed late, unless there is reasonable cause for
the delay. However, the maximum penalty charged cannot exceed $5,000 or 5 per-
cent of your gross receipts for the year, whichever is less, This penalty may
also be charged if a return is not complete, so please be sure your return is
complete before you file it.

You are not required to file federal income tax returns unless you are
subject to the tax on unrelated business income under section 511 of the Code.
If you are subject te this tax, you must file an income tax return on Form
990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Returm. In this letter we are
not determining whether any of your present or proposed activities are unre-
lated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

You need an emplaver identification number even if you have no employees.
If an employer identification number was not entered on your application, a
number will be assigned to you and you will be advised of it, Please use that
number on all returns you file and in all correspondence with the Internal
Revenue Service,

Revenue Procedure 75-50, published in Cumulative Bulletin 1975-2 on page
587, sets forth guidelines and recordkeeping requirements for determining
whether private schools have racially nondiscriminatory policies as to
students, You must comply with this revenue procedure to maintain your
tax-exempt status.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum

Letter 947 {DO/CG)




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your exempt
status and foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely yours,

District Director

185
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MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

You indicate that you will not finance your activities with tax-exempt

bonds or certificates of participation, Therefore, this determination letter
is based on the understanding that vou will not raise funds through such
financing. If in the future you wish to raise funds by either of these
methods, you should request a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service,

1111 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20224, Attn: CP:E:EO:R,
according to Revenue Procedure 90-4, 19%0-2 I.R.B. 10,

i%¢
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The * Texas

SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL
CHARTER NUMBER 1385851-01

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that the attached Articles
of Incorporation for the above named corporation have been received in this office and are
found to conform to law,

ACCORDINGLY, the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtue of the authority
vested in the Secretary by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Incorporation.

Issuance of this Certificate of Incorporation does not authorize the use of a corporate name
in this state in violation of the rights of another under the federal Trademark Act of 1946,
the Texas trademark law, the Assumed Business or Professional Name Act, or the common
faw.

Dated: January 26, 1996
Effective: January 26, 1996

o).

Antonio O. Garza, Jr. Isv
Secretary of State

pa
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ATTACHMENT NO. 31

ARTICLES OF INCORPARATION or
MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOGL

The andersigned natural Persou, who is a citizen of the State
of Texas, and of the age of 18 yearz or more, acting ac
incerporator, purauant the Texiag Nen-prefic Corperation Act, does
hexsby adopt the following Articlas af Incorporation fer such
corporation:

ARTICLE I.

The name of this cerporation is: Medical Center Charter
School.

ARTICLE I7T.

The corporation ia a nonprofit corperatiaon.
ARTICLE III,

The period of its duration is perpatual.
ARTICLE IV,

The ganeral purposes for which the corporatinn ig organized
are exclusively aducational and charitable, and will nat permit
discrimination in violation of local, state, or foderal lag. Tha
general purposes include, but are nat limited ta&, tha followirg:

1. The establishment and operation of an Open~anrcllmant
charter school, pursuant to Chaptay 12, Subchapter D. of
the Texas Bducatioq Code, and 25 U.s.¢. Section 501 (=)
(3.

2, The receipt and maintenancs of a fund nr fonds of real of
parsonal Property, or Loth, and, sabject to  the
reatrinotions and limitatisns herein set forth, the use
and application of the whols ar any part of the incone
and principal thereof Tfor charitabhle ar aduraticnal
purposes either directly or by contributionz tao
organizations that qualify as exXempt organizations under
Section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code and its
Regqulations as they new axist or ae they way be amended.

3. No part of the pnet earnings of the corporation zhall
inure tc the benafit of any directsr gr o2f ficer of tha
caocporation, or any private individual (except that
reasonable compenszation may be pald for wzrvices rendared
to or for the sovporation affecting one ar mpare of its
Purpoges), and no director or officar of the earporation,
or any private individual, zhal! ba anticled to ghare in
the distribution of any ofF the corporake sassets on

o
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oG



http:direct.or
http:priva.te
http:organ:i.:r:ati.o.ns

digeolution of the sorporation.

4. The corporation shall not Garty on  propaganda, ner
paxticipate in, or inptervene in (including the
publication or distrikution of statements) any political
Campaign on hebalf of any candidate Ior public officse.

5. The corporation shall distribute its income for wach
tazable year at su~h time and in 2uch manner 4% not to
become subject to bax on undistributed income impozed by
applicable provisions of tha Internsl Revenue Code of
1386, or carresponding provisionz of IRy subseguent
federal tax laws.

6. The c<orporaticn shall not 2ngage in any act of galf-
dealing asz defined in Section 4341(4) of the Internal
Revenus Code or corresponding provizionz of an
subzegquent provisions of any subsagueat federal tax lays,

7. The corporation shall not retajn any excesg buziness
holdings as defined in Section 4943(¢) of the Tnternal
Revanue Code or corresponding previsions of  any
subsequent feders) tax laws.

3. The corpsration shall net make Aany investments in such
mannar as to subject to tax under Section 4944 of the
Internal Revenus Code or corresponding provizjang of any
subsequent federal tax laws.

9. The corpurationu shall not maks any taxabls expesditures
as defined in Secticn 4945(d) of tha Internal Revanue
Code or correspording provisions of arcy subseguent
federal tax laws. .

10. 7The corporation shall not engage in activitiss whick are
dizallawed under Saction S01(e)(3) ef the Internal
Revenue Code and its regulations as they pow exist or Mav
be hereinafter amendad.

ARTICLE V.

*

The corporaticn shall have e capital stock or sharec.
ARTICLE VI.

The corparation shall have no members. It ghall ba managed gLy
& Loard of directors, whose number and gualifications %hall ke
fixed by the By-laws, but in ne case shall the numbar of directorg
be Jess than fonr {4} .

(o 150
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ARTICLE VII.

Upon disgoiuticen of the sorporakien or the winding wp of its

affairs, the assets of the corporation shall be dletribuyted to

g - aducational crganizatinne which wonld thern nnalify undar the
' provizionz of Saction 501 of the Internal Revenua Code and ita
Regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amendsed.

ARTICLE VIII.

Tha strect address aof thae initial reqiaterad oftice ¢f the
corporakbion ias 1920 North Braezwood, Heouston, Terxan 77010, amd the
name of its initial regyistered agent as asuvch addcess is Jame= 1.,
MHcEKey.

ARTICLE VIV.

The number of directore conztlitating the inttial board of
directors of the corporation is four (4} and the npamex #nd
addresses of the persons who are to serve as the initial directors
are: -

Margcet T. Heavd
5535 Lymbar
Houston, Texag 77094

Dr. Vernon k. Colpitts
2202 Stanmora
Bouston, T=zxas 77019

Dr. Leonard ©. Crahtxzce
1119 Sugar Lakes Blwvd
Sugar Land, Texas 7747t
Jamez L. HoRey

5814 Southminster
Bouston, Taexas 770135

ARTICLE X.
The name of the incorporator is:

Marilyn S. Hershman
408 West l7th Street

Austin, Texas 78701 ‘
VU

Marilyn 5. Hershman, Incorporator

~ N “
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ATTACHMENT NO. 32

BY-LAWS
CF

MEDICAIL CENTER CHARTER SCEHOOL
A Texas Non-Profit Corporation

ARTICLE 1

Name and Location

The name of the Corporation is Medical Center Charter Schocl,
hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation.” The principal office
of the Corporation shall be located at 1920 North Braeswood,
Houston, Texas 77030, but meetings of directors may be held at such
places in or outside the State of Texas, as may be designated by
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

Definitions
Section 1. “Corporation” shall mean and refer to Medical
Center Charter School, its successors and

assigns.
ARTICLE III

Board of Directors: Selection and Term Of Office

Section 1. Meetings of the Board of Directors. The first
annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held on February

5, 1996, at 5:00 p.m., and subsequent annual meetings shall be held
on the anniversary dates, also at 5:00 p.m. The principal bussiness
of the annualy meeting shall be the election of directors and a
review of the operations for the previous year. In additiocn, The
Board of Directors shall take up any matters arose during the
fourth quarter of the previous year.

The quarterly meetings of the Board of Directors shall held on
the following dates:

April 15, at 5:00 p.m.
July 15, at 5:00 p.m.
October 15, at 5:00 p.m.

If the anniversary date of the annual meeting, or the date of
a quarterly meeting, is a legal holiday, or weekend day, or weekend
day, then on the next succeeding business day.

The Board of Directors may call as many special meetings as
needed, provided that notice of such meetings must be in compliance

. it
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the rquirements of applicable state and federal law.

Section 2, Number. The affairs of this Corporation shall be
managed by a board of seven (7} directors.

Section 3. Term of Office. At the first annual meeting the
Board of Directors shall elect three (3) directors for a term of
one (1) year, and four (4) directors for terms of two (2) years;
and at each annual meeting thereafter the Directors shall elect
directors for terms of two (2} years as may be needed.

Section 4. Removal. Any director may be removed from the
Board, with or without cause, by a vote of five directors. In the
event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his successor
shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall
serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

Section 5. Compensation. No director shall receive
compensation for any service he may render to the Corporation.

Section 6. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The directors
shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting
which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written
approval and consent of all the directors. Any action so approved
shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the
directors.

ARTICLE V
Nomination and Election of Directors

Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board
of Directors shall be made by a nominating committee of three (3)
directors The Nominating Committee shall choose one of its members
to be chairman of the committee. The Nominating Committee shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting,
to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of
the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at
each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many
nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in
its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies
that are to be filled.

Section 2. Election. Election to the Board of Directors
shall be by raised hand, or other visible sign or writing, during
an open meeting of the Board of Directors. The persons receiving
the largest number of votes shall be elected.

ARTICLE VI

Meetings of Directors

-
o
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Section 1. Regqular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board
of Directors shall be held gquarterly without notice, at such place
and hour as may be fixed from time to time by the Board. Should
said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be
held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board
of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the
Corporation, or by any two directors, after not less than three (3)
days notice to each director.

Section 3. Quorum. A majority ©f the number of directors
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every
act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present
at a duly held meeting at which a guorum is present shall be
regarded as the act of the Bocard.

ARTICLE VII

Power and Duties of the Beard of Directors

Secticon 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the
power to:

(a) exercise for the Corporation all powers, duties and
authority vested in or delegated to this Corporation by
the provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of
Incorporation, and the laws of the State Of Texas and The
United States Of America;

(b) declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors
to be vacant in the event each such member shall be
absent from three {3) consecutive regular meetings of the
Board of Directors; and

Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of
Directors to:

(a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and
corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to
the public at the annual meeting of the;

(b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of this
Corporation, and to see that their duties are properly
performed;

(c) to cause all officers or employees having fiscal

responsibilities to be bonded, as the Board may deem
appropriate; and

ARTICLE VIII

-
o
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Officers and Duties

Section 1. Enumeration of Offices. The officers of this
Corporation shall be a President and Vice President (who shall at
all times be members of the Board of Directors), a Secretary, a
Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board, from time to time,
by resolution may create.

Section 2. Election of Officers. The election of officers
shall take place at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Term. The officers of this Corporation shall be
elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one
(1) year unless he shall sooner resign, be removed, or otherwise be
disqualified to serve.

Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such
other officers as the affairs of the Corporation may require, each
of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and
perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be
removed from office, with or without cause, by the Board. Any
officer may resign at any time giving written notice to the Board,
the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect
on the date of receipt or at any later time specified therein, and
unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled
by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such wvacancy
shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he
replaces.

Section 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and
Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall
simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices,
except in the case of Special Offices created pursuant to Section

4 of this Article.

Section 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as
follows:

(a) President. The President shall preside at all meetings
of the Board of Directors; shall see that orders and
resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all
leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments
and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes.

(b) Vice-President. The Vice President shall act in the
place and stead of the President in the event of his
absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise
and discharge such other duties as may be required by him

-4- 264
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by the Board.

(c) Secretary. The Sécretary shall record the votes and keep
the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board;
keep the corporate seal of the Corporation and affix it
upon the minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors and all other papers requiring said seal; serve
notice of meetings of the Board; keep appropriate
records, including the names and addresses Directors; and
perform such other duties as required by the Board.

(d) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in
appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Corporation
and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution
of the Board of Directors; shall co-sign all promissory
notes of the Corporation; keep property books of account;
cause a report of the Corporation’s books to be made at
the completion of each fiscal year; and prepare an annual
budget and a statement of income and expenditures, to be
presented to the Directors at +their regqular annual
meeting. Copies of these documents shall be available

for purchase at a reasonable cost.

ARTICLE IX
Committees
ARTICLE X

Books and Records

The books, records and papers of the Corporation shall at all
times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection
by the officers and directors of the Corporation. The boocks,
records and papers of the Corporation, the Articles of
Incorpeoration, these By-Laws, and any amendments thereto shall, to
the extent required by federal or state law, be available for
inspection as public records.

ARTICLE XI

Corporate Seal

The Corporation shall have a seal in circular form having
within its circumference the words: MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL.

ARTICLE XIII

Amendments

o
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Section 1. =~ These By-Las may be amended at a regular or
special meeting of the Board by an affirmative vote of not less
than four (4) directors.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles
of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control.

ARTICLE XIV

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first
day of January and end on the 31lst day of December of every year,
except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of

incorporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we being all of the directors of Medical
Center Charter School, have hereunto set our hands this 17th day of

July, 199s6.

Margot T. Heard

James L. McKey

Herbert Davis

Dr. Lecnard E. Crabtree

Dr. Vernon P. Colpitts

Dr. L. Esperanza McKay

Dr. Gurney F. Pearsall

6§
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PAGES 171 to 184 = 14 PAGES

UNDER SECTION 6103 & 6104 OF U.S. CODE
TITLE 26

14 PAGES HAVE BEEN WITHHELD
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COPYRIGHT MATERIAL

1 page has been withheld

PLEASE NOTE: The responsive information contains copyrighted information

that can only be made available to you for viewing in person. Because the
information indicates that it is protected by copyright, you may review this
information in person during normal business hours at TEA. If you are
interested in reviewing the copyrighted information, please send an email to
accred@tea.state.tx.us to schedule an appointment.
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Contingencies

INITIAL REPORT OF BENEFITS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS CONFERRED ON
MEMBERS OF OR CANDIDATES FOR THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
For the period May 12, 2000 to the present

Individual making report MARCo T 7. HEARD / JAmnes L. M‘lﬁé"!

Employer or Company Represented MeEDIcAL_ CENTER  cUARTEZR Sclimpl

Position __ L E O

Services Rendered to SBOE or Contract, Grant, or Charter Issued by SBOE

No NG

Transaction 1.

DATE

AMOUNT

NAME OF PERSON (S) RECEIVING BENEFIT OR CONTRIBUTION

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF EXPENDITURE

mw&,‘m/

Comple.te and return to Charter Schools Division
By January 16, 2001
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Transaction 2.

DATE

AMOUNT

NAME OF PERSON (S) RECEIVING BENEFIT OR CONTRIBUTION

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF EXPENDITURE

Transaction 3.

‘DATE

AMOUNT

NAME OF PERSON (S) RECEIVING BENEFIT OR CONTRIBUTION

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF EXPENDITURE

Complete and return to Charter Schools Division
By January 16, 2001
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1* Generation Renewal App. Review Legal Services Division
‘ Charles Moody

MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

Admissions: The description of the admissions process (p. 26) is not entirely clear, in
that it says that “open enrollment” is followed only after February 1¥. Does this mean
simply that after February 1 they accept students from outside the geographic
boundaries? We might ask the applicants to clarify whether the lottery conducied in late
February would include all applicants within the geographical area applying for over-
subscribed grades, or only those who applied after February 1%, If it includes all
applicants (as it should), then what is the significance of the “stamped date and sequential
number of receipt” given to each application prior to February 1%?

Geographic Boundaries: OK (p. 17, 28).

Impact Statement: The application states that the Impact Statement was mailed to three
school districts (p. 28), but I do not think that copies of mailing receipts have yet been
provided to TEA.

Public Notice: OK (p. 30 & Attachment 8).

Facilities: OK (pp. 17, 35, Attachments 21-22).

Governance Structure: OK (p. 36 & Attachments 25-29, 32).

Evidence of Nonprofit Status: OK (Attachment 30).
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More Than Academic Excellerfce Fi } 88} ‘ y)
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Charles Moody

TEA Legal Services

Texas Education Agency
1701 North Congress Avenue
Austin, Texas 78701-1494

Dear Mr. Moody:

When Medical Center Charter School was organized, we adopted (and modified) preprinted
by-laws. Although we adopted language requiring notice of special meetings (Article III, Section 1.),
and have complied with the Chapter 551, notice of meetings requirement, we over looked preprinted
language in Article VI, Section 1. that “Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held
quarterly without notice---". We have never held a meeting without proper notice, and will never do
s0. The agenda for the next meeting of the Board of Directors will include a request to delete this
provision and replace it with clear and unambiguous language requiring notice of all meetings of the
Board of Directors.

We used a private courier service {Action Run way) to deliver Impact Statements to Houston
1.S.D., Fort Bend County 1.S.D., and Alief 1.5.D. Inclosed are photo copies of the receipts which we
received from Action Runway.

Thank you for your cooperation.
Yours very truly,

dman J- ?’“M—y

es L. McKey
JLM/km
encl.

1920 N. Braeswood Houston, Texas 77030 - Phone: 713.791.9980 - Fax: 713.791.9504
10420 Mullins Houston, Texas 77096 - Phone: 713.726.0223 - Fax: 713.726.0225

WWW,INCCS.CC
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Action RUNWRAY 1111 FANNIN ST,, SUITE C-60

Sese e e e HOUSTON TEXAS 77002 (713) 651-1818 DEVEF” —

713) 651-1818 - 4SS
COURIERS 0 AX)(‘.’ 2% o193 www.actionrunway.com -

Tocorpauviry -~ amwovr L1 amowridt  1wowr]  asar. [ mounome[d m-/ [

THIS SHIPMENT 1S ACCEPTED BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC. FOR DELIVERY BASED ON THE TERMS AMD CONDITIONS APPEARING HEREON
ZLOW AND M THE REVERSE SIDE CF THIS FORM. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS CONCERNING LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY ARE HERE.
" PLEASE READ THIS FORM CAREFULLY.

i !‘J"TAT]ONS OF LIABILITY: ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC. MAXIMUA LIABILITY FOR ANY DELAY, LOSS OR DAMAGE (WHETHER DIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL
SXCMFLORY GR CONSEQUENTIAL) RELATED TO THIS SHIPMENT AND REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE OF SUCH DELAY, LOSS, OR DAMAGE, EVEN THQUGH CAUSE?
N WHCLZ OR IN PART BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS NEGLIGENCE (ACTIVE, PASSIVE, JOINT, CONCURRENT OR SOLE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER THEQRY
ABILITY, IS LIMITED TQ $100.00 FOR THIS SHIFMENT UNLESS (i) A CIFFERENT VALUE IS DECLARED IN WRITING BELOW, (i} SUCH VALUE IS ACCEPTED &
NEITIMG 8Y AN AUTHORIZED QFFICER OF ACTICN RUNWAY CQURIERS INC., AND (iil) AN INCREASED CHARGE IS ACCEPTED IN WRITING TO BE PAID BY SHIPPER.

VALUE OF SHIPMENT IS LESS THAN $100.00( )“X" MARK PLEASE. 4 5’
VALUE OF SHIPMENT IS GREATER THAN $100.00 ( )“X" MARK PLEASE. DRIVER
VALUE (GREATER THAN $100.00) DECLARED BY SHIPPER §

BY:(NAME) : TITLE:
(ABOVE VALUE GREATER THAN $100.00) APPROVED FOR ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC.
BY:(NAME)

Shipper lllllnu

/#t

S v SV vrl [‘ . e .{';K.:; 20" g e

~ v~ DESCRIPTION AND REMARKS o4+«

WHEN PLACING ORDER PLEASE ADVISE IF VALUE OF SHIPMENT EXCEEDS $100.00

JERSOM RECIPIENT RECEIVED IN GOOD CONDITION BY:
{AME HERE:
SHIPPER

b
It
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Action RUnway 1111 FANNIN ST., SUITE C-60
e s S Je e HOUSTON TEXAS 77002 (713) 651-1818 CELIVERT BICKE
(713) 651-1818 www.actionrunway.com r 25
asAp. (] nounoraip[] wnlt" [

COURIERS FAX (713) 651-3939
Tocorpeuveay~ akowr L1 zwourEd  1Hour[ ]
THIS SHIPMENT IS ACCEPTED BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC. FOR DELIVERY BASED.ON THE TERMS AND COND|T|0NS APPEARING HEHEON
ITLOW AND ONTHE REVERSE SIDE QF THIS FORM. SPEClFlC PRAAVISIONS CONCERMING LINMITATIONS OF LIABIL!TY ARE HERE.
' PLEASE READ THIS FORM CAREFULLY.

SMITATIONS OF LIABILITY: ACTION AUNWAY COURIERS INC. MAXIMUM LIABILITY FOR ANY DELAY, LOSS OR DAMAGE (WHETHER DIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL
IXEMPLORY OR CONSEQUENTIAL) RELATED TO THIS SHIPMENT AND REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE OF SUCH DELAY, LOSS, OR DAMAGE, EVEN THOUGH CAUSET
NWHOLE OR IN PART BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS MEGLIGENCE {ACTIVE, FASSIVE. JOINT, CONCURRENT OR SQLEY, STRICT LIABILITY OR QTHER THEORY CF
Ln2lliTY, 18 LIMITED TO $100.00 FOR THIS SHIPMENT UNLESS () A DIFFERENT VALUE |15 DECLARED IN WRITING BELOW, (i} SUCH VALUE IS ACCEPTED It
NRITING BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER QF ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC., AND {ili} AN INCREASED CHARGE IS ACCEPTED IN WRITING TO BE PAID BY SHIPPER,

VALUE OF SHIPMENT IS LESS THAN $100.00( ) “X” MARK PLEASE. 4"‘5‘"
YALUE OF SHIPMENT IS GREATER THAN $100.00( ) *“X" MARK PLEASE. DRIVER:
VALUE (GREATER THAN $100.00) DECLARED BY SHIPPER $

BY:(NAME) - TITLE:
(ABOVE VALUE GREATER THAN $100.00) APPROVED FOR ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC.
BY:(NAME) - TITLE:

b i Bty iy
\Cﬂﬂiisﬂﬁﬂ‘lﬂlpﬂ..ﬁ,, \

Slllpporlddml AR .

WHEN PLACING ORDER PLEASE ADVISE IF VALUE OF SHIPMENT EXCEEDS $100.00
SERSON RECIPIENT RECEIVED iN GOOD CONDITION BY:

NAME HERE: -
SHIPFER
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Action RUnWay 1111 FANNIN ST, SUITE C-60
feso s S e HOUSTON. TEXAS 77002 (713) 651-1818 DLl ERY e
(713) 651-1818

COURIERS FAX (713) 651-3939 www.actionrunway.com

Treeoroeuviny~ aour (1 2mourF  1wour[]  asar. L] rouwome[] %A% 1o

THIS SHIPMENT IS ACCEPTED BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC. FOR DELIVERY BASED ON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPEARING HEREON

3ELOW AND ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS FORM. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS CONCERNING LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY ARE HERE,
PLEASE READ THIS FORM CAREFULLY.

— A S M L — e —

SARITATIGNS OF LIABILITY: ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS iINC.MAXIMUM LIABILITY FCGR ANY DELAY, LOSS OR DAMAGE (WHETHER DIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SFECIAL.

THEMPLORY QR CONSEQUENTIAL) RELATED TO THIS SHIPMENT AND REGARDLESS CF THE CAUSE OF SUCH DELAY, LOSS. CR DAMAGE, EVEN THOUGH CAUSELD

N WHOLE OR IN PART BY ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS NEGLIGENCE (ACTIVE, PASSIVE, JOINT, CONCURRENT OR SOLE), STRICT LIARILITY OR OTHER THEORY OF

JABILITY, IS UMITED TO $100.00 FOR THIS SHIPMENT UNLESS {i) A DIFFERENT VALUE IS DECLARED IN WRITING SELOW, {ii} SUGH VALUE IS ACCEPTED I
/RITING BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC., AND (i) AN INCREASED CHARGE IS ACCEPTED N WRITING TO BE PAID BY SHIPPER.

VALUE OF SHIPMENT IS LESS THAN $100.00( ) “X" MARK PLEASE.

VALUE OF SHIPMENT IS GREATER THAN $100.00( - ) “X" MARK PLEASE. ' DRIVER: 45
VALUE (GREATER THAN $100.00) DECLLARED BY SHIPPER § .
BY:(NAME) ; TITLE:

(ABOVE VALUE GREATER THAN $100.00) APPROVED FOR ACTION RUNWAY COURIERS INC.
BY: (NAME\ ; TITLE:

Shipper Addiess
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WHEN PLACING ORDER PLEASE ADVISE IF VALUE OF SHIPMENT EXCEEDS $104.00
RECEIVED IN GOOD CONDITION BY:

ERSON RECIPIENT
\AME HERE:



http:www.actionrunway.com

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
Division of School Financial Audits

MEMORANDUM

To: Mary Perry
From: Brenda Niles
Date:  Wednesday, December 19, 2000

RE: Review of Charter Application for Medical Center Charter School

The following summarizes various issues and/or concerns for Medical center Charter School based on our
review of their charter application.

Business Plan

Financial Management

Page 17 letter D

“The Board of Directors contracts with Terry-Heard Management Inc and JLM Management Inc. to
operate the schools as Chief Executive Officers.”

They have two management Companies that act as CEO?
Margot Heard is one CEQ, and William Heard is a principle what is the relationship between the
Management Company, CEO, and principle?

Attachment 17. Budget
‘What is the local source of the $52,6137

What is the other source of $50,0007
Why are contracted services 70% of revenue and payroll is 20% of revenue?
Is there a relationship between the employees and the management company?

Attachment 20. Annual Financial Report

Discloses the school ending 1998 fiscal year end with a $258,731 net asset deficit and ending the 1999
fiscal year end with a $207,396 net asset deficit. Please explain why there is a deficit and what actions
have been taken to correct the situation. Will the 2000 fiscal year end disclose a deficit as well?

The audit discloses loans between the charter school and St Edwards. Are there official loan documents
signed by each party?

Student Attendance Accounting

Attachment 23. School Calendar

The calendar is incorrect in that it lists spring break as 4/13/01-04/20/01 but 03/13/00 -03/20/00 is circled

on the calendar. The calendar also indicates 182 days of instruction. Are they aware that they will only
be funded for 180 days?

o



Special Education

Medical Center Charter School

GENERATION 1 CHARTER SCHOOLS RENEWAL AFPPLICATION REVIEW

Please list and explain any issues that need clarification in the interview process.

ISSUE(S) REQUIRED APPLICATION
L INFORMATION - PROVIDED . -
Procedural Any reference or assurance to follow - Application provided:
Safeguards 34 CFR 300.504; or a reference to the State * A copy of the procedural
300.504 Procedural Safeguard Brochure; safeguards is given to
parents at a minimum of
« A copy of the procedural safeguards is given = initial referral for
to parents at a minimum of evaluation
*  Initial referral for evaluation = Each ARD/IEP
* Each ARD/ IEP notification natification
*  Reevaluation . * Reevaluation
= Receipt of a request for due process * Receipt of a request for
« Contents: due process
*  Full explanation of independent
evaluation MISSING
*  Prior written notice + Contents:
= Parental consent = Full explanation of
v Access to educational records independent
*  Opportunity to present complaints evaluation
* Initiate due process hearing »  Prior written notice
»  AEP placement * Parental consent
= Private school students = Access to educational
= Mediation records
= Due process hearing *  Oppartunity to present
= State level appeals complaints
= Ciil actions * Initiate due process
= AlCrmeys fee hearing
= State compiaint procedures «  AEP placement
« Understandable language *  Private school students
= Mediation
*  Due process hearing
= State level appesls
«  Civil actions
= Attomeys’ fee
= State complaint
procedures
s tUnderstandable language
Prior notice Any referance or assurance lo folfow Application did not convey key

by agency; content
of notice
300.503

34 CFR 300.503 and 300.345

» Notice. Five school days written notice given to
parents before the charter
= Proposes to initiate or change
educational placement, evaluation
* Refuses to initiate or change the above
» Contents of notice:
»  Description of action proposed or refused
»  Explanation of why agency proposes or
refuses to take action
= Description of other options & why options
- refused
= Description of evaluation procedures, test,
record, or report

concepts of this component.

NOTE

> Commissioner’s Rule
defines “reasonable time"
as five school days.

MISSING
+  Notice. Five school days
written notice given to
parents before the
charter
*  Proposes to initiate or
change educational
placement, evaluation

12/27/00
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Special Education

Medical Center Charter School

Prior notice «  Statement that parents have protection * Refuses to initiate or
by agency; content under procedural safeguards document change the ahove
of notice = Sources for parents to contact + Contents of notice:
{con't) = Understandable language =  Description of action
proposed or refused
*  Expianation of why
agency proooses or
refuses o take action
= Descripticn of other
options & why options
refused
*  Description of
evaluation procedures,
test, record, or report
= Statement that parents
have protection under
procedural safeguards
document
*  Sources for parents to
contact
= Understandable language
Observation Any reference or assurance to follow Application provided:
(assessment/ 34 CFR 300.531- 300.543, end TEC 29.004 *  Determination of needed
evaluation) evaluation data
300.531 - « Initial evaluation s  Observation
300.543 «  Evaluation procedures
+ Determination of needed evaluation data MISSING
«  Determination of eligibility + Initial evaluation
s  Procedures for determining eligibility & «  Evaluation procedures
placement + Determination of eligibility
s  Reevaluation *  Procedures for determining
« Additional team members eligicility & clacament
o Critaria for determining the existerce of +  Resvaluation
specific learning disabilities *  Additional team members
s« Observation «  Criteria for determining the
« Vrtten report existence of specific
learning disabilities
«  Written report
Development & Any reference or assurance fo follow Application provided:
implementation of | 34 CFR 300.342-350 «  When IEPs mustbein
the IEP effect
«  When [EPs must be in effect
« IEP/ARD meetings ) MISSING
« JEP/ARD team » [EP/ARD meetings
« Parent participation « IEP/ARD team
« Development, review, and revision «  Parent participation
of the IEP (TAC 88.1050) » Development, review, and
e Content of the |[EP revision
» Agency responsibilities for transition services of the IEP (TAC 89.1050)
« IEP accountability + Content of the IEP
»  Agency responsibilities for
transition services
« |EP accountability
Least Restrictive Any reference or assurance fo follow Application provided:
Envirgnment 34 CFR 300.550-553 *  General LRE raquirements
{LRE) Ptacament

12/27/00
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Special Education

Medical Center Charter School

Least Restrictive
Environment

« Generai LRE requirements
= All placements are made on an individual

= All placements are
made on an individual

{LRE) Placement basis basis
{con't.) «  Continuum of alternative placements
300.550-553 ¢ Placements MISSING
*  Annual placement decisions are «  Continuum of alternative
determined by an ARD committee placements
+ Nonacademic settings * Placements
= Arrual placement
facisicns are
rmired by an ARD
committee
* Nonacademic settings
Certified Any reference or assurance fo follow Application addressed:
Fersonnel 34 CFR 300.23, 300.136, TAC 89.1131, and * Personnel standards

300.23; 300.138

SBEC certification requirements.

« Qualifiled Personnel
s  Personnel standards

MISSING
o Qualified Personnel

Services to

Any reference or assurance to follow
34 CFR 3C0.121; 300.522 and TEC Chapter 37

Application discussed 504 and
sarvices to expelled students,

Expelled Students
300.121,; 300.522

» Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) MISSING ‘ ]
» 10 dayrule » Free Appropriate Public
» TEC Chanter 37 Education {FAPE)

«  Dslarmination of Satting = 10davrule

* TEC Chapter 37
s Determination of Setting

Please list and extpliain any areas of ccncarn that need to be raised before the
State Board of Edunation.

“CONCERN ;. Ao e o ASSURANGE REQUESTED

Will the charter submit documentation of knowledge in the
specific areas requested above?

Charter could be at-risk for potential:
o Due process hearings

« FAPE violations

¢«  Compliance issues

Wil the charter school provide assurances to follow Federal and
State laws regarding the least restrictive environment and the
placement of students with disabilities?

Placement for students with disabilities,
page 24,

“MCCS currently serves all special
education students in the mainstream
setting.”

NOTE

Least Restrictive Environment (LRE) is
an ARD committee decision. The
continuum of special education services
should be considered on an individual
basis and not influenced by the policies
or philesophies of a school”

»

12/27/00
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Special Education

Medical Center Charter School

Charter school is currently serving
Pre-K and Kindergarten.

Will the charter school submit documentation of knowledge of
federal guidelines for children with disabilities, ages 3-5, or
provide a general assurance to follow the federal guidelines
stipulated in 34 CFR 3017

16 12/27/00
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Please provide the following general assurance statement on charter letterhead. The
charter may choose to fax the statement in advance, however, the statement with an
original signature needs to be archived with the application.

General Assurance Statement for Generation 1 renewal applications

The General Assurance Statement with the official signature of the X¥Z-Chaster School
representative provides a general assurance that the X¥=% Charter School will follow all
special education guidelines stipulated in the State Board of Education Rules (Texas
Administrative Code), Commissioner Rules (Texas Administrative Code), Texas
Education Code, State Board of Educator Certification Requirements, Final Regulations
(March 1999) of IDEA — Parts 99, 300, & 301, and other applicable laws and regulations
related to implementation of special education requirements and the provision of a Free,
Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) to students with disabilities. The Division of
Special Education at the Texas Education Agency accepts the statement as a general
assurance to follow the special education guidelines, however, this statement does
not reflect the division’s acceptance of the inaccuraci;:‘?é eletions in the renewal
application. Furthermore, it is the responsibility of the harter School to remain in
compliance with new revisions and regulations to State Board of Education Rules (Texas
Administrative Code), Commissioner Rules (Texas Administrative Code), Texas
Education Code, State Board of Educator Certification Requirements, and Final
Regulations (March 1999) of IDEA — Parts 99, 300, & 301, and other applicable laws and
regulations related to implementation of special education requirements and the provision
of a Free, Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) to students with disabilities.

x_Minab T tnud

(Name & fitle of authorizing signature)

,:(?va.wt;: l, 2e0]

{Date)
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Medical Center Charter School ’ (&j,,/\
SPECIAL EDUCATION -+ (on |
BOARD POLICY T ol / 5]

FREE APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) - Medical Center Charter School Board, as an
expression of its commitment to provide a free appropriate public education for children with disabilities in
accordance with state and federal laws, rules, and regulations, does hereby resolve to implement the following

policies:

1. CHILD IDENTIFICATION
It is the policy of this school that ongoing efforts will be made to identify, locate and evaluate
children below 22 years of age who reside within the school attendance area as described in the
charter application and have a confirmed or suspected disability in accordance with all federal
regulations and state standards.

2. PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS
It is the policy of this school that the child with a disability and his/her parent are provided with
safeguards, as required by law, throughout the identification, evaluation, and placement process,
and the provision of a free appropriate public education to the child.

3. MULTIFACETED EVALUATION
It is the policy of this school to provide a multifaceted evaluation for children with disabilities by
ensuring that:

UOoObBbooan

o

Children are assessed in their native language or other mode of communication.

Tests are used for their validated purposes.

Children are evaluated in all areas related to their suspected disability.

Testing is conducted by a multidisciplinary team.

Testing materials and procedures are not racially or culturally biased.

Tests are administered by trained personnel qualified in accordance with all federal
regulations and state standards.

Tests are administered in conformance with the instructions provided by the producer
That medical evaluation, when required as part of the multifaceted evaluation, shall be
provided at no cost to the parent by a licensed physician designated by the
superintendent or his/her designee, when-other no-cost resources are not available.




4. INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM
It is the policy of this school district that an individualized education program (IEP) will be developed for
each child with a disability that needs special education. The IEP is designed to meet the unique educational
needs of the child and is developed in a planning conference. - Parents of the child are strongly encouraged
to participate in the planning conference. The IEP is reviewed and revised as often as necessary, but at least
annually. :

5. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT

It is the policy of this school that:

a The education of children with disabilities occurs in the least restrictive environment,

a Special education programs and services are appropriate and designed to meet the unique needs of each
child with a disability to the maximum extent appropnate.

a Children with disabilities, including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities are
educated with children who do not have disabilities.

0 Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of children with disabilities from the regular
educational environment occurs only when the nature or severity of the disability is such that education in
regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.

6. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA
1t is the policy of this school that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data relating to children with
disabilities and their parents and families are protected at collection, storage, disclosure, and destruction, and
that one official of this school is assigned the responsibilities for protecting the confidentiality of personally
identifiable data. This school follows federal regulations and state standards related to the confidentiality of
data.




CHILD IDENTIFICATION

The Medical Center Charter School with the assistance of the Texas Education Agency, the Education Service
Center and the Early Childhood Intervention Program is responsible for providing a free appropriate public
education (FAPE) to all individuals with disabilities age birth through 21, or within the age group described in
the charter application, who fall within our jurisdiction and therefore are served by the school. Regardless of the
severity of the disability, Medical Center Charter School will make every effort to locate, identify and evaluate
those individuals. Dissemination of availability of information to the public concerning services offered to all
individuals with disabilities includes:

A, Child Find

1. Participation in a network of public information dissemination which includes
the education service center, other agencies, communities and facilities
providing services to the handicapped;
2. Providing information regarding availability of services;
3. Determining which individuals are currently receiving needed special
education and related services and which individuals are not currently
receiving needed special education and related services;
4. Identifying and referring individuals with disabilities who may or may not be in
school and who may need special education including highly mobile children and children who are suspected
of being children with disabilities even though they are advancing from grade to grade.
5. Referring individuals ages 0-3 to a local early childhood intervention program
for evaluation;
6. Reviewing this process on a yearly basis, updating staff as to on-going “child
find” activities implemented in the community,;
7. Maintaining confidentiality of all personally identifiable mformation used and
collected in this system in the same manner that special education records
are maintained.

The school administrator (director) is responsibie for implementation and direction of the Child Find program, as
well as identifying any other staff members, annually, who will participate in the organization and implementation
of this program. ‘

Any students of an age addressed by the school program who are screened and found to be potentially eligible
for services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are referred for possible special education or
early intervention services within the school, using referral procedures adopted by the school.

All federal and state regulations governing the confidentiality of records, timelines and implementation of
programs for students eligible for services will be adhered to in this program.




B-Referral Process

1. Initial Referral to Special Education

Consideration of a student's need for special education is initiated by a referral. Referrals of students for possible
special education services shall be a part of our district's overall regular education referral or screening system
and child find system. Referral may be made by school personnel, parent or guardian, physician, community
agencies, other appropriate individuals, or as a result of any district wide testing or screening program, which is
provided for all students.

A. Who may be referred for special education services?
All students ages birth through twenty-one (0-21) residing within the Medical Center Charter School
boundaries who are suspected of having a disability may be referred for special education appraisal.

1. For school-age children, the suspected disability must be interfering with the student's educational
process in order to warrant a referral.

2. Students who are not currently enrolled in a school may also be referred by the principal of the
neighborhood school.

3. Students who are new to a district and have been receiving special education services in the student's
previous district will not go through the referral process. (See Transfers in this section and in the ARD
section, or see Transfers/Temporary Placement).

B. Membership of the Referral Committee (RC)
1. The membership in the district's overal! regular education screening system, as referenced in the Texas
Administrative Code, is determined by the local campus administration unless specified in district policy.

C. Timeline- Referral to Assessment : :

A written report of a comprehensive individual assessment of a student for purposes of special education
services will be completed not later than the 60" calendar day following the date on which the referral for
assessment was initiated by school personnel, the student’s parent or legal guardian, or another appropriate
person. The assessment will be conducted using procedures that are appropriate for the student’s most proficient
method of communication. The 60" calendar daytime line requirements for the special education department
processing and assessment includes the time used by regular education to complete the referral. Data will be
gathered and sent to special education assessment person as soon as possible, no later than 30 school days from
the date the referral is initiated.

D. Referrals by Parents/Guardians/Others
For children with suspected developmental delays, birth through 2 years of age, MCCS will maintain logs that
documents: '

1. Within 2 working days from the date that a “ Child Find” referral is received it is forwarded to an
ECI program (MCCS will collaborate with the ECI program and determine appropriate steps based
on the student age and needs). _

2. MCCS completes the assessment within 45 calendar days from the date the referral is received.

3. The ARD committee will determine eligibility, educational need and develop an IEP to determine
placement prior to the third birthday.
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C- Evaluation

1. Comprehensive Individual Assessment (CIA)
Initial Evaluations
MCCS will ensure that a full and individual evaluation is conducted for each student being considered for
special education and related services. The evaluation will be completed before the initial provision of
special education and related services and will:
a. Determine if the student is a "student with a disability" in accordance with federal and state
requirements.

b. Determine the educational needs of the student.

In implementing the requirements above, MCCS ensures that:
a. The evaluation is conducted in accordance with the procedures in federal and state law.

b. The results of the evaluation are used by the ARD committee in developing an individualized
education program.

2. Determination of Needed Evaluation Data

As part of an initial evaluation (if appropriate) and as part of any reevaluation, a team that includes

appropriate individuals (same as ARD members - see Section 4), and other qualified professionals, as

appropriate, shall:

A. Review existing evaluation data on the student, including but not limited to:
1. evaluation and information provided by the parents of the students
2. current classroom based assessments and observations
3. observations by teachers and related service providers
4. group assessments such as TAAS, Terra Nova, etc., and .
5. other school records such as attendance, discipline reports, language survey,

etc.
B. On the basis of that review, including input from the student's parents, the ARD committee will
identify what additional data, if any, are needed to determine:
1-whether the child has a particular category of disability, as described in federal law or in case of a
reevaluation of a student, '
2-whether the student continues to have a disability,
3-the present levels of performance and educational needs of the student,
4-whether the student needs special education and related services, or in the case of a reevaluation of
a student,
S-whether the student continues to need special education and related services,
6-whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are
needed to enable the student to meet the measurable annual goals set out in the IEP of the student
and to participate, as appropriate, in the general curriculum. '
C. MCCS will administer tests and other evaluation materials as may be needed to produce the data

identified in A and B above.

D. If determination under paragraph A is that no additional data are needed to determine whether the
student continues to be a student with a disability the MCCS will notify the student's parents of’
1.the determination and the reasons for it and,

Y




2. the rights of the parents to request a comprehensive individual assessment to determine
whether the student continues to be a student with a disability

E. MCCS is not required to conduct an assessment described in paragraph D 2 above unless
requested to do so by the student's parents

3. Time Line
A written report of a comprehensive individual assessment of a student for purposes of special education
services will be completed not later than the 60th calendar day following the date on which the referral
for assessment was initiated by school personnel, the student's parent or legal guardian, or another
appropriate person. The assessment will be conducted using procedures that are appropriate for the
student's most proficient method of communication.
The 60 calendar day time Ine requirements for the special education department processing and
assessment includes the time used by regular education to complete the referral. Data should be gathered
and sent to special education assessment person as soon as possible, no later than 30 school days from
the date that the referral is initiated.

4. Purpose
The purpose of the comprehensive individual assessment is to:

a. determine eligibility and the presence or absence of a physical, mental, or emotional disability, which

may be contributing to 2 student's educational need,

b. determine the presence or absence of a significant educational deficit and the need for special
education instruction and/or related services,

¢. identify specific learning competencies in instructional and related service areas,

d. make recommendations for determining the grading criteria and procedures for participation in extra
curricular activities, and

e. provide information relative to the appropriate mastery level or levels at which the student should be
expected to achieve in order to receive passing grades in all content areas of instruction.

5. Documentation

A. MCCS will maintain documentation concerning referral and comprehensive individual assessment data
in the special education referral packet. Personnel responsible for the referral and the assessment shall
sign and date referral forms and written assessment reports.

B. Tests and other evaluation materials and procedures used for the purposes of evaluation and placement
of children with disabilities must be selected and administered so as not to be racially or culturally
discriminatory.

C. A copy of the CIA is given to the parent.

1. Written Report

Medical Center Charter School appraisal personnel will prepare a written report of the results of the
evaluation which will address the presence or absence of those symptoms or conditions included in the
specific eligibility criteria for the disability for which the student is being assessed.

The report will include a statement as to:

a. whether the student has a specific disability and meets state and federal eligibility criteria.

b. the basis for making the determination.

¢. the relevant behavior noted during the observation of the child.

d. the relationship of that behavior to the student’s academic functioning

e. the educationally relevant medical findings, if any.
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f. the type and severity of the impairment and the functional implications for the educational process,

g. the determination of the team concerning the effects of environmental, cultural or economic factors

on a student’s ability to benefit from his/her education and,

h. the inclusion of sources of data for all areas assessed.

1. if an assessment is not conducted under standard conditions, information about the extent to which
the assessment varied from standard conditions, such as the qualifications of the person
administering the test or the method of test administration, will be included in the evaluation report.

J. each team member certifying in writing whether the report reflects his or her conclusion. If it does
not reflect his or her conclusion, the team member must submit a separate statement presenting his
or her conclusions.

2. Related Service Assessment Report
A. The assessment report for the related services will include:
1.Learning competencies which identify the need for the related service.
2.Documentation that the service will enable the student to benefit from instruction.
3 Recommendation for the specific service(s) to be offered

6. Observation
A. At least one team member other than the student’s regular teacher will observe the student.
B. In the case of a student of less than school age or out of school, a team member will observe the
student in an environment appropriate for a student of that age.

7. Assessment of Physical, Mental, and Emotional Conditions

A. Language Dominance
The assessment team will first determine the student’s dominant language. The student’s dominant
language is the language in which the student is most proficient. This determination may be made
by formal or informal assessment. Assessment instruments must be administered in the student’s
dominant language (native language or other mode of communication unless it is clearly not
feasible to do so). If the primary language of the home is not English, the student’s dominant
language will be determined as a result of recommendations made by the Language Proficiency
Assessment Committee (LPAC). Where no bilingual examiner is available, an interpreter may be
used. - :

B. Language Proficiency
The assessment team must determine the student’s most proficient method of communication. The
language proficiency information must indicate the student’s skill in understanding and using
both receptive and expressive domains, such as oral and written language, reading comprehensive,
and listening comprehension, when appropriate. Proficiency in both English and the other
language(s) will be addressed for Limited English Proficient{LEP) students.

C. Physical
The assessment of an individual’s health factor (including visual, hearing, and psychomotor
abilities) will consist of an examination of physical conditions, which directly affect the student’s
ability to profit from the education process. A general medical examination shall be required only
when specified by eligibility criteria or when abnormal physical factors have been identified as part
of the assessment of physical factors. The health information collected during the referral
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process will be sufficient if a complete medical examination is not required by specific eligibility
cnteria and if there are no indications of need for further physical assessment.

D. Emotional/Behavioral
The assessment of an individual’s émotional and behavioral factors will consist of formally or
informally identifying those characteristics manifested in school out of school, or both, which may
influence learning. The assessment will include behaviors relative to the disability which may affect
educational placement, programming, or discipline. Adaptive behavior of all students will be
considered to some degree. Formal measures are required only when establishing a diagnosis of
mental retardation.

E. Sociological
The assessment of an individual’s sociological variables will consist of identifying the child’s family
or community environmental situation influencing learning and behavioral patterns. Students will
not be eligible for special education if the only deficiencies identified are directly attributable to a
different cultural lifestyle or to their not having had educational opportunity.

F. Intellectual
The assessment of an individual’s intellectual functioning will include an assessment of verbal or
performance or both. Intellectual functioning will be the last factor assessed, since the student’s
performance in this area will be analyzed and interpreted in light of all other data.
Intelligence will always be addressed. An informal assessment of intelligence may be used to
determine intellectual functioning as a part of eligibility for:
1. wvisual impairment
2. orthopedic impairment
3. deaf-blindness
Examples of informal assessment include achievement test results, teacher observations, adaptive
behavior, grades, etc.

8. Assessment of Learning Competencies (Academic Performance)

The assessment will include:

A. criterion-referenced or curriculum-referenced assessments designed to aid in the development
of the student’s [EP,

B. information about the student’s strengths and weaknesses and,

C. the specific modifications of instructional content, settings, methods and/or materials required
by the student to achieve and maintain satisfactory progress, including those that can only be
provided through special education services, and those adaptations necessary for the student’s
progress in regular classes and other special compensatory education programs.




Certified Personnel

Medical Center Charter School currently serves all special education
students in the mainstream setting. We contract with a special education
consultant who provides assessment and speech services. We also contract
with a consultant who conducts the ARD and meets with parents and
teachers on a regular basis. Training is regularly conducted with teachers
regarding the referral and ARD/IEP process. All contracted personnel are
properly certified. o

We are continually advertising and looking for additional special education
certified personnel. Currently one staff member holds an out of state special
education permit and is in the process of applying for an emergency permit
in Texas.

Medical Center Charter School encourages the teaching staff, through
incentives, to enter certification programs through the local universities and
Region IV.




INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAMS (TEP)

Medical Center Charter School procedures for implementing the IEP requirements consistent with
the Board policy are as follows:

At the beginning of each school year, the school has in effect an IEP for every special education
student who 1is receiving special education and related services from the school.

A. An IEP must:

1. be in effect before special education and related services are provided to the student.

2. be implemented as soon as possible following the meetings under this section.
It 1s expected that the IEP of a student eligible for special education services will be implemented
immediately following the meetings under this section. An exception to this would be when the
meetings occur during the summer or a vacation period, or where there are circumstances that
require a short delay (e.g., working out transportation arrangements). However, there is no undue
delay in providing special education and related services to the student.

B. IEP Committee Members:
A meeting is conducted within thirty calendar days after the date upon which a student’s evaluation
reportt is completed for the purpose of determining eligibility and developing the student's IEP. The
school schedules and conducts the meeting which includes the following members:
1. A representative of the school who is qualified to provide or supervise the provision of special
education and related services;
2. A member of the evaluation team who is knowledgeable about the evaluation procedures used
with the child and is familiar with the results of the evaluation(in the instance of initial
placement or re-evaluations),
3. The student’s regular classroom teacher, a special education-certified teacher or therapist who
15 knowledgeable and qualified in the area of the student’s suspected disability,
4. The parent or guardian(in the case of a non-adult student), or adult student;
5. The non-adult student if appropriate (for instance, if transition services are discussed); -
6. Other individuals at the discretion of the school, the parent or the student;

C. Parent Notice and Participation

MCCS assures (in the case of non-adult students) that one or both parents of the student with disabilities

are present at each meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate.
1. The notice to the pareni(s) includes the purpose, time and location of the meeting and who will
be in attendance. If the purpose is transition, the parent is notified that the purpose of the meeting
is to discuss transition and that the student is invited, and identify any other agencies that will be
invited.
2. If a parent cannot attend, the school uses other methods to assure participation, including
individual or conference telephone calls.
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3. A meeting may be conducted (in the case of a non-adult student) without a parent in
attendance if the parent gives permission on the written invitation (or by telephone with
documentation by school official) for the committee members to proceed without parent
participation.

4. The school documents attempts to schedule the meeting at a convenient time. Such
documentation could include: records of telephone calls and results, copies of correspondence
sent to parents and responses recetved.

5. The school takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent (or adult student)
understands the proceedings at the meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents (or
adult students) who are deaf or whose native language is other than English.

6. The school obtains written consent by parent/guardian or adult student before initial placement
begins.

D. Types of Meetings
The school conducts meetings consistent with this section at least once a year for the purpose of
reviewing and revising as necessary each student's IEP. Meetings may be held more frequently.
Other IEP meetings may occur in the following instances:

1. Temporary ARD - held upon enrollment by a student who is eligible for special education
services and that eligibility is reported by the student or parent and verified by the previous school
district in writing or by telephone. In this instance, special education services are temporary,
contingent upon either receipt of valid assessment data from the previous school district or the
collection of new assessment data. A second meeting, a transfer ARD, is held within 30 school days
from the temporary meeting to transfer services to the present school and finalize or develop a new
IEP based on received previous school records or assessment data.

2. Review ARD - may be called at any time by any person with interest in the educational
performance of the student (teachers, administrators, parent or guardian, etc.) to review the current
placement and its appropriateness for the student. This meeting will address change in instructional
arrangement, change in course schedules, need for additional assessment or evaluation, review of
Behavior Intervention Plan or any program based on current competencies, handicapping condition
or individual education plan.

3. Annual ARD - scheduled by the school annually to review the placement, services, related
services and program offered to the student as well as to review student educational progress and
effectiveness of the program offered. Additionally, programming for the next year is based on the
determination of the effectiveness of the current program.

4 Dismissal ARD - held when special education eligibility has ended due to student no longer
needing services, parent refusal to consent to continue services for the student or when disability
has diminished in the extent of the effect it has upon the student's academic progress.

5. Graduation ARD -~ A graduation ARD will be held to determine the student’s method of

graduation and the ARD will determine that the student will graduate under the following options:
a. This student has satisfactorily completed the minimum academic credit requirements for
graduation applicable to students without disabilities, which includes satisfactory
performance on the exit level assessment instrument.




b. This student has maintained full time employment without direct and ongoing
educational support of the local school district based on this student’s abilities and local
employment opportunities. This option requires this student to complete his/her IEP,
minimum credit requirements, and attain sufficient self-help skills to maintain the
employment.

c. This student has demonstrated mastery of specific employability and self-help skills
which will not require direct ongoing educational support of the local school district.
This option requires this student to complete his/her TEP and minimum credit
requirements.

d. This student has gained access to services which are not within the legal responsibility
of public education, or employment, or further educational opportunities. This option
requires this student to complete his/her IEP and minimum credit requirements.

e. This student no longer meets age eligibility requirements and has completed the
requirements specified in the IEP,

6. Individualized Family Services Plan OFSP - must be held in place of an
ARD committee meeting in accordance with federal law and the

understanding between the Texas Education Agency and Texas
Interagency Council on Early Childhood Intervention for a child from
birth through two years of age with visual and/or auditory impairments.

E. 1IEP Content
I. The purpose of each meeting is to develop the student's IEP, which is a written
document based on the evaluation and parental input, and includes:

a.
b.

A statement of the student's present levels of educational performance.

A statement of specific annual goals including short-term instructional objectives which are stated
in terms that provide for measurement of progress, expected levels of performance, and the
schedules for their accomplishments,

A statement of the specific special education and related services to be provided to the student
based upon the individual needs of the student, as determined through the evaluation process.

The development of a Behavior Intervention Plan, if appropniate.

The extent to which the student will be able to participate in the regular education program,
including physical education. If modifications (supplementary aids and services) to the general
education program are necessary to ensure participation in that program, those modifications must
be described. If the student is unable to participate in the regular education program, a description
of the specially designed physical education to be provided to the student is included.

In the case of the student who is blind or visually impaired, provide for instruction in Braille and
the use of Braille unless the IEP team determines after an evaluation of the student's reading and
writing skills, needs, and appropriate reading and writing media (including an evaluation of the
student's future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille), that instruction in Braille or
the use of Braille is not appropriate for the student.

Consider the communication needs of the student and in the case of a student who is deaf, or hard
of hearing, consider the student's language and communication needs, opportunities for direct
communications with peers and professional personnel in the student's language and
communication mode, academic level, and full range of needs, including opportunities for direct
communication mode.

Consider the following information for students with autism/pervasive developmental disorders
(Justifying why, if not considered):
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1. extended education programming (EYS)
2. daily schedules reflecting minimal unstructured time
3. in-home training or viable alternatives
4. prioritized behavioral objectives
5. prevocational and vocational needs of students ages 12 or older
6. parent training
7. suitable staff-to-student ratio
1. A statement of the needed transition services including goals and objectives, based on a functional
vocational evaluation anticipated post school outcome(s) beginning no later than age

sixteen and annually thereafter (and when determined for an individual student, beginning in
elementary school or sooner), including, when appropriate, a statement of the interagency
responsibilities or linkages (or both) before the student leaves the schools setting. In the case
where a participating public agency fails to provide agreed upon services, the district shall
reconvene the [EP team, as soon as possible, to identify alternative strategies to meet transition
objectives and, if necessary, revise the I EP, as long as the student is eligible for services.

j. Ifthe IEP team determines that services are not needed in one or more of the areas specified in
state regulations, the IEP must include a statement to that effect and the basis upon which the
determination was made.

k. The projected dates for the initiation of services and the anticipated duration of the services,
including the number of school days, the number of hours per day, and the length of the school
year over which such services are provided.

I, The determination of need for extended school year, is appropriate for the student when the
student has exhibited, or reasonably may be expected to exhibit, severe or substantial regression
that cannot be recouped within a reasonable time period, therefore being unable to maintain one or
more acquired critical skills because of the absence of extended school programming,

m. Appropriate objective criteria and evaluation procedures and schedules for determining, on at
least an annual basis, whether the short-term instructional objectives are being met.

n. A statement as to whether or not the student should participate in the state competency testing,
which, if any, modifications are to be made during the testing, and consideration of any alternative
testing more appropriate to the measurement of the student's competencies.

0. The school documents the findings of the committee meeting including the date, names, of the
members participating in each meeting; additionally, agreement or disagreement of each member
with the committee's recommendations.

2. Medical Center Charter School provides the parent (or the adult student) a copy of the [EP.

3. Medical Center Charter School provides assurances that special education and related services

are provided to a student with disability at no cost to the student or parent.

4. If the committee determines that as a result of the comprehensive independent evaluation that the
student is not eligible for services from special education, then the Notice Refusal to Provide Services in
Regard to Identification, Evaluation, Placement or Free Appropriate Public Education form will be
completed, procedural safeguards given to parent, and the student referred back to the mainstream
education program for modifications and/or 504 referral.

F. Collaboration and Mutual Agreement
All members of the ARD committee have the opportunity to participate in a collaborative manner in
developing the IEP, and all decisions made concerning required elements of the IEP are made by mutual
agreement, .When mutual agreement is not achieved, the following procedures are followed:
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1. The parent/legal guardian or individual with a disability disagreeing, is offered a single opportunity to
have the ARD committee recess for a period of time not to exceed 10 school days (not if student’s
presence on campus presents danger of physical harm to the student or others, has committed an
expellable offense or an offense which'may lead to placement in an alternative education program).

2. During the recess, alternatives are considered, additional data gathered and additional resource persons
are contacted to enable the ARD committee to reach mutual agreement.

3. The date, time and place for re-convening the meeting is mutually agreed upon prior to the recess.

4. If mutual agreement is still not reached after recess, an IEP that is appropriate for the individual will

be implemented, as determined by the school.

5. Prior written notice to the parent/legal guardian or adult student is given upon implementation of IEP
with which there is disagreement;

6. MCCS ensures parent/aduit student understanding of their right to complaint, mediation or a due
process hearing.

G. IEPs for Private School Students

If the school contracts with an approved non-public or public school agency in order to provide FAPE to a

special education student, the school:

1. Imitiates and conducts a pre-placement meeting prior to the student's enrollment with appropriate
personnel and the student's parent(s) for the purpose of developing the student's IEP.

2. Ensures that a representative of the non-public or public school agency attends the meeting or in some
other way assures participation by the non-public school agency.

3. Meets to review or revise the student's IEP after the student has been placed shall be initiated and
conducted by the non-public or public school agency at the discretion of the school.

4. Assures that the parent(s) {or the adult student) and the nonpublic school agency are involved in any
decision concerning the student's [EP and agree to proposed changes in the program before those
changes are implemented.

The responsibility for compliance with this section lies with the school 1nclud1ng development of a written
contract consistent with state standards.




LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT

Medical Center Charter School offers educational programming and opportunities to students with
disabilities within the regular program and curriculum to the greatest extent possible and with individuals
who are not disabled.

A. Consideration for Instructional Arrangement
The IEP meeting includes consideration that each special education student shall be offered an
instructional arrangement that is:
1. In the regular educational environment with students without disabilities to the maximum extent
appropriate to his or her needs, unless it can be demonstrated by the school that the nature or severity of
the student's disability is such that his or her education in regular classes with the use of supplementary
atds and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.
2. In the school in which he or she would attend if not disabled, unless his or her IEP requires some other
arrangement. If some other arrangement is required, the student is placed in the appropriate educational
program that is as close to the student's home as is reasonably possible.
These placement provisions also apply to special education students in public or private institutions or
other care facilities.

B. Nonacademic and Extracurricular Services
1. Each student with disabilities shall be provided nonacademic and extracurricular services and activities
conducted by the school (e.g. meals and recess) with students without disabilities to the maximum extent
taking into consideration the needs of the student.

health services
recreational activities
f. special interest groups or clubs sponsored by the school

C. Daily Schedule
Each student will have available the same instructional regular school day as is provided all other students.
The regular school day is determined appropriate by the admission, review, and dismissal (ARD) committee
for a student whose individual educational plan (I EP) specifies a shortened day; The ARD (Admission,
Review, and Dismissal) Committee may determine a student's instructional day should be  shortened
based on the individual educational plan (IEP).

1. Nonacademic and extracurricular services and activities may also include:
a. counseling services

b. athletics

c. transportation

d.

e.

D. Instructional Arrangements
The ARD committee will consider, based on the assessment and evaluation data, the most appropriate
instructional arrangement to serve the needs of the student.
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RELATED SERVICES

Support services are available to students with disabilities that supplement the student's special education
program or may be determined by the ARD committee to be the only requirement of delivery of service
required to meet the identified needs of the student,

A Types of Services - These related services include developmental or
corrective services such as;

. Audiology services

. Psychological services

. Counseling services

. Physical therapy

. Occupational therapy

. Recreational therapy

. Rehabilitation counseling

. Medical services (diagnostic or evaluative)

. Mobility services

10. School health services

11, Parent counseling and training

12, Social work services
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B. Notice and Consent- prior to referral for assessment for related services, notice and consent for
assessment is obtained from the parent.

C. Evaluation - upon referral for assessment or evaluation to determine eligibility for related services, the
special education coordinator or other designated school personnel schedules the evaluation at school
expense

D. Certified clinicians - all evaluations and assessments for related services are conducted by fully certified
and trained personnel contracted with by the school in the specific area of related service.

E. Appropriate instruments - assessment instruments used in the assessment are those generally accepted
by TEA to be appropriate for the evaluation of need by the student for such services.

F. ARD - Upon completion of assessment for related services, the ARD committee meets. The usual
members of the ARD committee are included in the ARD, with the addition of a person trained or certified in
the field of related service to be provided. Eligibility is determined by the committee, frequency of service
delineated and goals and objectives for the related service are developed and approved by the committee.

G. No Cost - Services are provided to the student at no cost to the student or parent.




INDIVIDUAL TRANSITION PLAN

Beginning at age 14, transition planning is a consideration of the ARD meeting during development of the
Individual Education Plan. The IEP goals and objectives are developed considering student description of
interests and postgraduate living experience expectations through the transition plan addendum,

A. ITP Developed - On or before the student's 16th birthday, a separate Individual Transition Plan
(I.T.P.) is developed for each student with a disability that is eligible for special education services.
Updated annually, the document is developed and/or reviewed in a meeting separate from the annual ARD
and incorporated into the individual education plan while still remaining a separate document. The parent
or guardian and the student are encouraged to attend this meeting and provide any input or request they
feel appropriate.

B. The LT.P. will include:

1. The student's goals and objectives after graduation including, but not limited to, college or university
enrollment, employment and/or vocational education, adult services, independent living, community
participation, recreation and leisure, and any other important life considerations.

2. Resources needed to attain these goals and objectives such as community or government agency
contact information, support networks and when and how they will be made available, and any
needed transition services and how to access them.

2. For student's who are incarcerated, any services needed to transition from incarceration to a home
community and/or the receiving school district.

C. Coordination between the IEP and the ITP:
1. The IEP includes instructional goals, objectives and activities appropriate to the identified
components of the ITP.
2. Educational and related service goals and objectives are reflected
(embedded) within the IEP instructional/related service goals.
3. Time lines for goals and objectives including specific beginning and
ending dates for all activities are included in the ITP document.

D. Local Adult Service Agency involvement:
1. The parents or legal guardian or adult student and/or the non-adult student are invited to the meeting.

2. If the student does not attend the meeting, the coordinator of special education ensures that
information reflecting the interests and preferences of the student are obtained and considered by the
committee.

3. Local adult service agencies that are likely to be responsible for providing or paying for transition

services are invited.
4. The coordinator of special education and the school director work to liaise with local adult service

agencies in order to develop a positive relationship, as well as to obtain brochures and literature regarding
those adult services for use in the ITP meeting when representatives from those agencies are not in
attendance.




5. Not every local adult service agency is invited to attend the ITP meeting, and the school administrator
and special education coordinator will work with the student and the parents to determine which agencies
are most appropriate for involvement.
E. Notice

1. 30 days written notice is given to parents, legal guardian or adult student, which delineates time, date,
purpose of meeting (consideration of transition services for student) and other invitees.

2. 30 days written notice is given to local adult service agencies deemed appropriate for attendance by
school administrator and special education coordinator which delineates time, date, purpose of meeting
(consideration of transition services for student) and other invitees.

3. If meeting time must be changed from the original scheduled date and time, then a waiver, with § days
notification, is given to all members of the ITP team prior to the rescheduled meeting.

F. Parent/legal guardian participation and understanding

1.The school administrator takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent/legal guardian
understands the proceedings at the meeting, including arranging for an adequately trained interpreter for
parents/legal guardians with deafness or for those whose native language is other than English.

2. The special education director maintains documentation to indicate the extent of parent/legal guardian
participation in the development of the Individual Transition Plan, and ensures that all members of the
committee have the opportunity to participate in a collaborative manner.

G. Agency's failure to provide services
1. The school special education coordinator initiates a meeting as soon as possible upon any agency's
failure to provide agreed-upon transition services for the purpose of identifying alternative strategies to
meet the transition objective.
2. The school may choose to expand efforts to elicit the partlmpatlon of a local service agency in
providing or paying for any transition service that the agency would otherwise provide to individuals
with disabilities who meet the eligibility criteria of that agency.
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PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS

-

L. Notice
Procedural Safeguard Notice
When a student is referred to special education for the first time for an individual comprehensive
assessment, MCCS is responsible for providing a copy of An Explanation of Rights and Procedural
Safeguards document to notify the student, parent, or guardian of students having a disability of their
educational rights. TEA adopted this written document based on the Office of Special Education
Programs model, which includes a full explanation of all procedural safeguards.

A. Distribution
The Procedural Safeguards document developed by the Texas Education Agency must be provided to parents
of a student with a disability, at a minimum upon:
1. initial referral for evaluation.
2. each notification of an ARD / IEP meeting.
3. reevaluation of the student.
4. receipt of a request for due process.

B. Prior Written Notice
Written notice must be given to the parents of a student with disabilities (and the adult student) a reasonable
amount of time before MCCS: .
1. Proposes to initiate or change the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the child or the
provision of FAPE.
2. Refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the child or the
provision FAPE.
3. When the notice relates to an action proposed by MCCS that also requires parental consent, notice
be given at the same time parental consent is requested.
4. The written notice must be:
a. Written in language understandable to the general public. -
b. Provided in the native language of the parent or other mode of communication used by the parent,
unless it is clearly not feasible to do so.
5. If the notice is not in the native language, the district shall take steps to insure:
a. that the notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in his or her native language, or other
mode of communication used by the parent.
b. that the parent understands the content of the notice.
c. there is written evidence of the above.
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C. Content of the Notice of Assessment must include:
1. A description of the action proposed or refused by MCCS.

2. An explanation of why the district proposes or refuses to take the action.
3. A description of any options the district considered and the reasons why those options were rejected.

4, A description of each evaluation procedure, test, record, or report the district uses as a basis for the
proposal or refusal.

5. A description of any other factors which are relevant to the district's proposal or refusal.

6. That the parents of a student with a disability have protection under the procedural safeguards. If this

notice is not an initial referral for evaluation, the means by which a copy of a description of the procedural
safeguards can be obtained.

7. Sources for parents to contact to obtain assistance in understanding these provisions.

8. A statement informing the parents about the state complaint procedures, including a description of how
to file a complaint and the timelines under those procedures,

D. Notice of ARD Committee Meeting

Local campuses will take steps to ensure that one or both of the parents of the student and adult student are
present at each meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate.

1. Content of Notice of ARD Meeting will include:

a. A description of the action proposed or refused by MCCS.

b. An explanation of why the district proposes or refuses to take the action.

¢. A description of options the district considered and the reasons why those options were rejected,

d. A description of each evaluation procedure, test, record, or report the district uses as a basis for the
proposal or refusal,

e. A description of any other factors which are relevant to the district's proposal or refusal,

f. A statement that the parents of a student with a disability have protection under the procedural safeguards.

2. The ARD notice will:

a. Be provided to parents or the adult student at ieast 5 school days in advance of the ARD to ensure that
they will have an opportunity to participate.

b. Include the purpose, time, and location of the meeting and who will be in attendance.

c. Provide opportunity to schedule the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place, including
rescheduling the meeting,

d. For a student with a disability beginning at age 14, or younger, if approprlate, the notice will:

1. Indicate that a purpose of the meeting will be the development of a statement of the transition
services needs of the student.

2. Indicate that the student will be invited.
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e. For a student with a disability beginning at age 16, or younger, if appropriate, the notice will:
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1. Indicate that a purpose of the meeting is the consideration of the individual transition plan for the
student.

2. Indicate that the student will be invited.
3. Identify any other agency that will be invited to send a representative, if appropriate.

E. Timeline For Notice
State Board of Education rule interprets the federal term "reasonable time" as at least five school days.
Parents may agree to waive the five day notice period to which they are entitled.

F. Notice of Refusal to Provide Services in Regard to Identification, Evaluation, Placement, or Free
Appropriate Public Education
The Notice of Refusal includes the following:
1. It is given in the native language or other mode of communication of the parent or adult student.

2. The date sent/mailed.

3. The action refused.

4. Why the action was refused.

5. Description of the options considered.

6. Description of why those options were rejected.

7. Description of evaluation procedures, tests, records, or reports used as a basis for the refusal.

8. Other factors relevant to the refusal.
9. The notice includes a full explanation of all procedural safeguards.

G. Age of Majority
At least one year before a student reaches age of majority in Texas, a student's IEP will include a statement
that the student and the parents have been notified of the student's rights under IDEA-B, if any, that will
transfer to the student on reaching the age of majority. (Exception - a student with a disability has been
determined to be incompetent under state law. MCCS will follow the state procedures for appointing the
parent, or, if the parent is not available, another appropriate 1nd1v1dual to represent the educational interests
of the student throughout the student's eligibility).
All rights accorded to parents transfer to students who are incarcerated in an adult or juvenile, state or local
correctional institution.




ILCONSENT

A. Consent means the parent and adult student:
1. has been fully informed of all information felevant to the activity for which consent is sought, in his or her
native language, or other mode of communication,
2. understands and agrees in writing to the carrying out of the activity for which consent is sought, and the
consent describes that activity and lists the records (if any) which will be released and to whom, and
3. understands that the granting of consent is voluntary on the part of the parent and may be revoked at any
time. Note: With respect to A.3. above, the parent's ability to revoke consent, if invoked, is not

retroactive, i.e., it does not negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and before it
was revoked.

B. Parental consent must be obtained before:
1. conducting an initial evaluation,
2. initial provision of special education and related services to a student with a disability in a program
providing special education and related services, and
3. before conducting any new test as a part of a reevaluation of an eligible student under IDEA-B.

C. Refusal

If the parents refuse consent for initial evaluation or a reevaluation, MCCS may continue to pursue those

evaluations by using the due process procedures or the mediation procedures if appropriate, except to the
extent inconsistent with State law.

When a parent refuses or otherwise does not give consent prior to the initiation of formal evaluation
procedures or for initial special education services:

1. MCCS will first ensure with all reasonable effort that the parent understands the proceedings and
understands his or her rights.

2. MCCS will then attempt to come to agreement with parents.
3. MCCS may then request a due process hearing or mediation.

4. MCCS may evaluate or initially provide special education and related services to the child without the
parent's consent, subject to the parent's rights if a hearing officer upholds MCCS.

D. Failure to Respond to a Request for Reevaluation

1. Informed parental consent need not be obtained for reevaluation if MCCS can demonstrate that it has taken
reasonable measures to obtain that consent, and the student's parent has failed to respond.

2. To meet the reasonable measures requirement above, MCCS will use one or more of the following
documentation of efforts to obtain consent:

a. detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of
those calls.

b. copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses
received.

c. detailed records of visits made to the parents' home or place of
employment and the results of those visits.

d. conference telephone calls to ensure parent receipt of the consent and
their understanding.




3. MCCS may proceed with the responsibility to conduct a reevaluation after exhausting all avenues to obtain
informed consent from the parent(s).
4. Efforts described in 2. above will be documented and in the student folder.
5. MCCS will take whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parents understand the consent, including
arranging for an interpreter for parents with deafness, or whose native language is other than English,

E. Parental Consent may not be Required
Parental consent may not be required as a condition of any benefit to the parent or the student except for the
service or activity for which consent is required in B. above.

F. Consent to Request Confidential Information (Transfers)
MCCS or the previous school district is not required to obtain parental consent before requesting or sending
a student's special education records if disclosure is conducted according to requirements relating to the
disclosure of personally identifiable information from education records.

IIL PARENT PARTICIPATION IN MEETINGS

See ARD section for specific information.

Parents will receive notice of meetings to ensure they have the opportunity to participate in meetings.

Meetings are described:

1. As a prearranged event in which MCCS personnel come together at the same time and place to
discuss any matter relating to an individual student with a disability.

2. The term does not include informal or unscheduled conversations involving MCCS personnel] and
conversations on issues such as teaching methodology, lesson plans, or coordination of service
provisions if those issues are not addressed in the student's IEP.

3. The term also does not include preparatory activities that MCCS personnel engage in to develop a
proposal or response to a parent proposal that will be discussed at a later meeting.

IV.COMPLAINT PROCEDURES
If there is a disagreement at any point in the child centered process, and parents wish to file a-
complaint, parents are first provided a current Procedural Safeguards document, an explanation of the
Safeguards, and it is documented that they have received the document. This documentation of receipt
of the Procedural Safeguards is kept in the special education student eligibility file. The parents have
the following options available:

A. Parents may notify the TEA at which point the TEA will collect information, respond to inquiry,
act on complaints, assist in grievance matters, and engage in mediation in response to requests
from SWHS. This process will include:

1. Receiving information concerning special education and analyzing the information in
conjunction with other information on file with TEA.

2. Responding to inquiries concerning special education services

3. Taking appropriate action on substantial complaints.

4. Engaging in mediation activities.

5. Providing information on the formal procedures available in the impartial hearing process.
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ELIGIBILITY FOLDER

The school’s special education department maintains an eligibility folder on each individual with a disability
receiving special education services in addition to the individual cumulative records. The eligibility folder
ncludes, but is not limited to:

* copies of referral data.

* documentation of notices and consents.

* assessment reports and supporting data.

« admission, review and dismissal comnuttee deliberations.
» individual educational plan.

* individual transition plan.

Additionally, the eligibility folder may contain reports of progress to the parents/legal guardians of students with
disabilities who receive special education. These reports of progress are developed and recorded with the same
frequency as those provided to students in regular education.

The eligibility folders are maintained according to the policies and procedures regarding confidentiality, and are
located in the special education department in a locked file cabinet. A list of persons who have access to the files
is attached to the file cabinet in public view, and access logs are maintained in the file cabinet as well as in each
student eligibility folder as to the date, the person accessing the file and their position, as well as the reason for
access.

The classroom teacher(s) who provide services to the student with disabilities will have available to them a copy
of the Individual Education Plan in relation to the responsibilities of that teacher in the implementation of the IEP
in the classroom, along with any instructions or suggestions for teaching modifications or strategies which enable
the student to progress in the regular curriculum, goals and objectives, modifications and adaptations as indicated
by the IEP,




Surrogate Parent

A surrogate parent, as the term applies to special education, is an individual who represents and protects the
educational interests of a student identified as having a disability. These duties include, but are not limited to:
Q Learning about the student’s educational background and educational disability (or potential
disability).
0 Receiving notices and giving/denying consent.
Participating in the identification of a disability for a student who is initially referred for special
education services.
o Taking part in the student’s admission, review dismissal (ARD) meeting.
0 Collaborating in the development of the student’s Individual Education Plan (IEP).
O Assisting in the determination of appropriate educational placement.
a To ensure that the student receives a free appropriate public education (FAPE).

a

Criteria for selection as a surrogate parent include the following:
o Completion of an application in which personal and employment references are checked
thoroughly.
0 Determination that the potential surrogate parent has no interests that conflict with the interests
of the child.
o Completion of surrogate parent training.

A student with a disability will be assigned a surrogate parent when one of the following circumstances exist;
o No parent can be identified.
0 After reasonable efforts, the school cannot discover the whereabouts of a parent.
Q@ The student is a ward of the state.

Once the need for a surrogate parent has been established, a surrogate parent will be appointed by the special
education director in a timely manner.

What is a conflict of interest? According to 34 CFR paragraphs 300-515, a person selected to be a surrogate
parent may not be an employee of the Texas Education Agency, MCCS, or any other agency that is involved in
the education or care of the child. In situations where a child is in the care of a nonpublic agency that has no role
in the education of the child, an employee of that agency may be the person best suited to serve as a surrogate
because of his or her knowledge of the child. In a case such as this, the individual should not be prohibited from
serving as a surrogate parent as long as he/she has no other interests that conflict with interest of the child and
has the knowledge and skills that would ensure adequate representation of the child. Additionally, in most cases
where the foster parent meets the definition of a parent and is acting as the parent, there would be no need to
appoint a surrogate, unless it was determined that one was need to ensure that the rights of the child are
protected.
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Confidentiality

MCCS provides parents of students with disabilities notification of their rights under the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, and of the locations where copies of the school policies may be located. Parents
of students who have been identified as having a primary language other than English are notified in that
language. Copies of the notices are available in the special education offices.

MCCS provides the parent(s) and/or the adult student, upon request, a list of the types and locations of
educational records collected, maintained, or used by the school. These records, for use by authorized school
personnel, are stored in a safe and secure manner at all times. The superintendent or his/her designee assumes the
responsibility for ensuring the confidentiality of all personally identifiable information,

MCCS has available for public inspection a list of names and positions of those employees within the school who
may have access to personally identifiable information about students with disabilities. The school may disclose
the personally identifiable information from the educational records of a student with disabilities without the
consent of the parent or aduit student to all school officials including teachers and other personnel with whom
the school his determined to have legitimate educational interests in the records. Within the student’s folder there
1s an access record that addresses the names of parties obtaining access to the student’s educational records, the
date access was given, and the purpose for which the party was authorized to use the record.

MCCS conducts staff training annually regarding the state’s policies and procedures for confidentiality to all
individuals using or collecting personally identifiable information. A notice of confidentiality is given to the
parents and/or the adult student on an annual basis. When personally identifiable information is no longer needed
to provide educational services to the child, the school destroys the child’s records at the parents’ request.

Parents are afforded the opportunity to inspect and review any education records relating to their child that are
collected, maintained, or used by MCCS. The school provides parents with explanations and interpretations of
the records if so requested. At the parent’s request, the school provides a representative of the parent an
opportunity to inspect and review their child’s records. The school provides the parent copies of the records
containing information about the child. The MCCS will not charge fees for copies of these records. When the
record includes information on children other than their own, the school permits parents to review and inspect
only information specific to their child.

If a parent requests the amendment of records, MCCS will determine whether to amend the information in
accordance with the request within a reasonable period of time from the receipt of the request. If the school
refuses to amend the information in accordance with the parents’ request, the school will advise the parents of
their right to a hearing under 334 CFR paragraph 300.568. The school will provide, upon request, an opportunity
for a hearing to challenge information in education records to ensure that is not inaccurate, misleading, or
otherwise in violation of the privacy or other rights of the child. The following procedures apply to a hearing:
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0 The hearing will be held within a reasonable time after receiving a request for a hearing from
the parent.

o The school will give the parent notice of the date, time, and place, in a reasonable time prior
to the hearing. i

0 An official of the school who did not have an interest in the outcome of the hearing will
conduct the hearing.

o The school will give the parent the full opportunity to present evidence relevant to the
amendment of the record.

0 The school will make its decision in a reasonable amount of time after the hearing and present
it in writing to the parent,

@ The school’s decision will be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing.

a The summary of evidence and the reasons for the decision will be included in the written
report of the hearing. S

As aresult of the hearing, the school will either decide that the information is inaccurate, misleading, or
otherwise in violation of the privacy or other rights of the child, amend the information accordingly, and inform
the parent in writing or decide that the information is not inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the
privacy or other rights of the child, and inform the parent of their right to place in the records of their child a
statement commenting on the information or setting forth any reasons for disagreeing with the decision of the
school. Any information placed in the record as a result of a hearing will be maintained by the school as part of
the record for as long as the school maintains the child’s record and will be included whenever the record is
disclosed by the school to a third party.
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Independent Educational Evaluation

If a parent disagrees with all or part of the MCCS Comprehensive Individual Assessment (CIA), the parent may
ask MCCS to provide an Independent Educational Evaluation (IEE), which means an evaluation conducted by a
qualified examiner not employed by the school. If a parent asks MCCS to provide an IEE, then MCCS must
either pay for the IEE ( the IEE must meet MCCS criteria) or initiate a due process hearing to show that the
MCCS evaluation is appropriate. If MCCS prevails in a hearing, the parent still has the right to an IEE, but not at
the school’s expense.

If MCCS has not conducted a CIA the parent does not have the right to an independent evaluation at the
school’s expense. Only one IEE may be reimbursed for each comprehensive evaluation obtained by the school.
The results of an IEE initiated by a parent will be considered by the school, but such consideration does not make
the school liable for reimbursement for the IEE.

Parents are requested to notify the school of specific areas of disagreement when they disagree with the school’s
evaluation. MCCS may offer to resolve the parent’s disagreement by providing additional evaluation, but the
parents are not required to accept the offer.

How to Request an IEE

Parents desiring an IEE must make the request to the special education director in writing. This request should
be made as soon as possible, but within six months of the school’s CIA. The request should specify the areas of
disagreement with the school’s CIA. The request should specify the areas of disagreement with the school’s CIA
and list assessment questions they want addressed in the IEE. Upon the request for an independent educational
evaluation, the parents must be given a Procedural Safeguard Notice. ‘

If MCCS agrees to pay for the IEE (instead of filing for a due process of hearing to prove the school’s
assessment appropriate), the special education director will give the parents information on where an IEE may be
obtained and the school’s reporting criteria. The independent educational evaluation may be restricted to one
assessment area upon mutual agreement by MCCS and the parent.

Qualifications of the Independent Examiner

An independent examiner is required to have the same qualifications as the MCCS personnel (e.g., psychologist,
associate psychologist, or educational diagnostician). The independent examiner is required to follow federal and
state assessment rules and regulations, reporting requirements, and established eligibility criteria for the diagnosis
of students with disabilities.

Requirements of the Independent Educational Evaluation

The independent educational evaluation is to take place at the school where the independent examiner shall have
access to the student’s cumulative folder and special education folders in gathering information about the
student. The independent examiner may visit with the school ARD committee to gather information about a
student prior to the assessment and to share information following the assessment.
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The evaluator must provide an original report to MCCS within 30 calendar days from the time that an IEE is
approved by MCCS and five days prior to the ARD meeting. The report must be written in MCCS format (which
will be provided to the evaluator) for both the assessment and the eligibility. Protocols must be available for
review and the report must include an original signature and the title of the assessment personnel involved in the
evaluation. The report must comply with all requirements of state and federal regulations.

Consideration of the Results of an Independent Educational Evaluation

The results of a parent initiated IEE obtained at private expense will be considered by the ARD committee in any
decision made with respect to the provision of a free, appropriate public education (FAPE) to the student. Such
consideration does not make the school responsible for payment of the evaluation.
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Discipline for Students with Disabilities

All disciplinary actions regarding students with disabilities will be conducted in accordance with the most current
federal and state laws.

I Procedural Safeguards
All procedural safeguards, including required notice and consent, will be followed throughout the process of
disciplinary action for students with disabilities.

II. Change in Placement Totaling 10 School Days

The ARD committee meeting will be held prior to a disciplinary change in placement totaling more than 10
school days concerning expulsions, removal to alternative education programs, or suspensions(totaling more than
10 days).

IIL. ARD Action Required
A. The ARD committee will:
1. Develop a functional behavioral assessment and appropriate behavioral interventions to address the
behavior.
2. Develop, review, and modify the Behavioral Intervention Plan(BIP), as necessary if a behavior plan was
in place.

a. Administrative staff in each building will have a copy of the BIP for students on their campus who
have a BIP developed by the ARD. _

b. Follow provisions of the current BIP until the ARD committee reviews and determines any necessary
changes (ex: BIP may include no detentions, ISS, etc. if specified in the BIP that these are not to, be
used).

3. Conduct a manifestation determination review:

a. Immediately if possible and the parents waive the 5 day notice, but not later than 10 school days after
the date of the disciplinary action which proposes to change the student’s placement for more than 10
school days.

b. If drug/weapon offense has occurred.

¢. If a hearing officer’s approval is sought for interim placement of a dangerous student.

4. The manifestation review will consider:

a. Evaluation and diagnostic results or other relevant information supplied by the parents of the student,

b. Observation of the student.

¢. The student’s IEP and placement.

5. The manifestation review will determine:

a. in relationship to the behavior subject to disciplinary action, whether or not the student’s IEP and
placement were appropriate and the special education services, supplementary aides and services, and
behavior interventions strategies provided were consistent with the student’s IEP.

b. whether or not, the student’s disability impaired the ability of the student to understand the impact
and consequences of the behavior subject to action, and '

¢. whether or not the student’s disability impaired the ability of the student to control the behavior
subject to disciplinary action.

e [fthe behavior is found to be a manifestation of the student’s disability, MCCS will take immediate
steps to remedy any deficiencies found in the IEP, placement or implementation.
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o If the behavior is not a manifestation of the student’s disability, MCCS relevant disciplinary -~
procedures applicable to students without disabilities may be applied to the student in the same
manner they would be applied to students with disabilities.

6. Develop IEPs that address the provision of a FAPE for expelled students with disabilities or those
removed to AEP.

B. Students with disabilities can be given AEP placement if the behavior is not a manifestation of the
disability and if that placement would be the consequence for the student without a disability.

Students with disabilities are not placed in alternative education programs solely for educational reasons
and a student will meet the criteria of TEC.




Assistive Technology Devices and Services

Medical Center Charter School will ensure that assistive technology devices or assistive technology services are
made available to a student with a disability if required as a part of special education, related services, or
supplementary aids and services. Assistive technology devices and services are used to adapt conditions to
improve the student’s functioning when need to implement the student’s IEP. The ARD committee will review
recommendations for assistive technology from the CIA and include in the IEP those devices and services
determined to be educationally necessary.

A. The CIA will include formal or informal assistive technology evaluations and recommendations,
B. The CIA report will address assistive technology needs based on competencies identified during assessment.
The report will specify one of the following:
1. Assistive technology devices and services are not recommended for this student at thlS tlme
2. Referral to the assistive technology team has been made
3. Referral to the assistive technology team is recommended.
4. List other referrals if recommended.
5. List of modifications, which have been recommended.
C. Assistive technology services are potentially available to all students with disabilities, not just those with
sensory impairments, or severe physical disabilities. Categories of assistive technology include:
aides to improve self-help skills and encourage independence
electronic and non-electronic devices that enhance communication skills, instructional material aides
sensory aids
environmental control systems
home/work modifications
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ATTACHMENT NO. |

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS

==| Houston |
D/ HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER Employee Assistance Programs
A

October 23, 2000

m@h(&\ (e\«W

s
Texas Education Agency (:‘ji{‘i@\ﬂrff “oresh
W.B. Travis Building
1701 North Congress Avenue
Austin, Texas 78701

Dear TE A .;

As director of the Employee Assistance and Work/Life Programs for the Umiversity of
Texas-Houston Health Science Center I am responsible for providing help and resources
to our students, facuity, and staff. One of the resources that I find extremely helpful to
our UT-HHSC family is having a school near our medical center for our employees’ and
students’ children. That school is the Medical Center Charter School.

Our employees and students who take their children to Medical Center Charter School
report back to me many reasons why they are so pleased with the school. Just some of the
reasons include: the high quality education their children are receiving, the low student-
to-teacher ratio, the close proximity to their jobs, and the availability of the School’s
entire staff, including extended hours and sick care availability.

Our University is delighted to have this valuable resource available to our employees and
I am sure the other facilities of the Texas Medical Center are equally pleased. We hope
your agency will do whatever it takes sothat the Medical Center Charter School can
continue to be available to our population, as there is no other resource like this one any
where nearby.

Sincerely, :

%«%%,WM

Sherry M. Wilson, LMSW-ACP
Director, UT-Houston Employee Assistance and Work/Life Programs

Ce; Mr. Jim McKey

UT—Hou.ﬁon * 7000 Fannin, Suite 1670 » Houston, Texas 77030-5502 » (713) 500-3EAP 1-800-346-3549 FAX (713) 500-3330
Locared in the Texas Medical Center

€3 100% Pout Conaumar Wases L&L\




© TEXAS ORTHOPEDIC HOSPITAL

A Specialty Surgery, Rehabilitation and Sperts Medicine Center
_ ﬁ*ﬁ-\ 7401 South Main Street, Houston, TX 77030
sv N Phone (713) 799-8600
www.texasorthopedic.com Physician Referral (toll free) (888) TOH-HELP
ATTACHMENT NO. 2
State Board of Education
Texas Education Agency
Division of Charter Schools

1701 N. Congress Ave.
Austin, TX 78701

October 20, 2000
Dear Board Members,

Texas Orthopedic Hospital is pleased to support the Medical Center Charter School and
to extend our confidence in the programs that you offer.

I have had the pleasure of meeting and working with the administrative team, several of
the teachers and students. While touring the facility, I found the atmosphere to be one of
security and devotion. There is certainly a higher standard of leaming that occurs at the
Medical Center Charter School.

I appreciate the relationship that our hospital shares with the children and staff and I look
forward to future involvement. You have a wonderful team of teachers at your
facility....keep up the great work.

Sincerel



http:www.lexasorthopedic.com

October 27, 2000

ATTACHMENT NO. 3

State Board of Education
Charter Renewal Application Committee

RE: Medical Center Charter School — Renewal
of Charter

Dear Sirs/Madams:

| am writing in support of the Medical Center Charter School’s application renewal.

It is crucial for parents to be allowed to choose and make decisions for our children’s
education. MCCS provides our children with strong learning skills and study habits that
will go a long way for their future success. At the same time, we know the children are.
safe in a smaller scaled and controlled environment that the public school systems.

The curriculum is strong, structured and rigorous. Providing good
learning habits in the early educational years for long term success is significant and
MCCS provides these tools. They teach organization-and discipline.

A plus for me was that this school provided foreign languages, Spanish and French. .
This is an excellent enrichment

opportunity for these young minds.

The charter schoois are very important to our community because it is an aiternative to
the public school systems. (N
_ And, | highly recommend this charter’s application. We should be
able to dictate where and how our children will be educated.

As you well know, MCCS demonstrated a significant improvement in the TAAS scores
in 1999 and they will do just as well in the future years.

One of the areas | feel that the TEA could help charter schools and the Medical Center
Charter School is in additional funding to hire good, strong teachers. | am not implying
that MCCS does not have good teachers, but their pay is significantly lower than in the
normal public school systems. They eventually move on because they work many long
hours without adequate compensation. If this improved, the turnover would be less
likely. Articles suggest this to be one of the main concerns and affects all charter
schools as well as the MCCS.




Again, | strongly request that you approve the renewai application for the Medical
Center Charter School. | would be happy to speak with you further if you wish.

Sincerely,




ATTACHMENT NO. 4

October 24,2000

State of Texas Board of Education:

I would like to express my views on the Medical Center Charter School. | NN

I had attended public school during high school. T had gone to a private school up until
that point. When I attended the public school, I was bored. I was not challenged and
because of this, I slacked off on my studies. Sometimes, I would skip class. Fortunately,
I was not a ‘bad’ kid. I did not get into drugs, but I wonder what would have happened if
I had been around the wrong influences.

Because the public school I attended was so big, I became a number. I went from a
private school of 700 (K-12) to a public school with 700 students in my graduating class.
I felt my teachers really did not care about how I did in my studies as long as I was in
class. Only one teacher figured me out. [JJJJ ] held me after class one day and told
me that [ knew I was not doing my best. [ challenged me to bring up my grade to an
“A”, . was the only teacher who noticed and encouraged me. You see, as long as I
made a passing grade — the teachers did not worry. This is what is wrong with public
schools.

Perhaps the teachers themselves are frustrated and because of this the children get lost in
the numbers. As long as a student is “passing”, noone notices him/her. Only if they fail,

do the alarms go off. And to the contrary, if a student makes straight A’s, then they are
learning enough. Who is to say that these same straight A students do not get bored and
may later get into trouble.

I believe that kids should be challenged. They should be able to learn as much as they
can. They should not have time to sit idly and contemplate trouble. This is why I feel the
charter school system is a good one — particularly MCCS.

[ had my doubts about MCCS at first since the organization of the school was not great at
first. I think with the new buildings, this will change. What I have seen so far,

[ have seen how much the parents
are concerned with their children’s education. Some of them have expressed their
concerns with the public school system. Some have children that were bored in public
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school. Some have children that need extra help. This is what I like about the charter
school system. They go by levels, not grades. This enables kids to learn as much as they
can; they can catch up where needed or progress if not challenged. They are not limited
to stay within the traditional ‘grade level’.

There is a great need for this type of school. I feel that because it is small by public
school standards, this is a benefit. The parents and the teachers are able to communicate
with each other more, thereby keeping closer tabs on their children. One of the
requirements to attend this school, is that the parents must sign an agreement that they
will attend all the meetings. If not, they must have a family representative attend.

The school helps the community in that it has children from different economic
backgrounds.

B Some of these kids perhaps have not had the discipline at home and school to
learn respect. This is why it helps to have a smaller school, so that parents and school
can work together. I also think that it helps to have people of all races and socio-
economic levels together so we can erase al] the bias that children are exposed to because
of their surroundings.

The charter school system enables parents to be more proactive in their children’s
education. No matter what socio-economic level, the common bind that ties us together
is that we want the best for our children. We all care enough to look for better ways to
educate and raise our children. If you see what these children are learning — you would
agree.

I had my doubts, but I believe that with time this school will prove that charter schools
should be a “freedom of choice’ given to all parents. Why should children be forced into
one public school system? I am not saying to do away with the public school system. It
needs to improve immensely. The standards need to be raised. Until then, children
should not suffer the consequences. They should be allowed the freedom to learn as
much as they can regardless of their socio-economics. After all, isn’t this what our
country is about — freedom? For this reason, [ ask that you continue to support MCCS.

Sincerely,




ATTACHMENT NO. 5

To : The State Board Of Education,

The Medical Center Charter School has been a great

educational asset | NNEEENESNNN 1 cducational
high standard curriculum has given

In our community we need this type of curriculum available to teach our
children at the tender ages of 4-12 their basic skills.I have recruited family
and friends to The Medical Center Charter School to receive the educational
benefits that is available in our community.




October 23, 2000

The Charter school has helped the children academically and spirituality. I there is a continued need for
this type of schoo! to help students and parents be successful.

If you look at the news daily, you will see evidence of schools not meeting educational demands to
make children go above and beyond their level. Charter schools are appropriate for parents and students
who want to put education first.

Sincerely,

bm‘, Aol -

ATTACHMENT NO. 6




ATTACHMENT NO. 7

October 25, 2000

State Board of Education
Charter Renewal Application Committee

RE: Medical Center Charter School — Renewal of Charter Application

To the Charter Application Renewal Committee:

asked by the administration to give our comments related to MCCS’ operatons.

after researching at least three other charter schools. One of the mam reasons we chose
MCCS is because of their excellent curriculum.

I feel that the charter school program is needed in our communites because charter schools
rovide a viable alternative to public schools.

The Fort Bend school

were not reading until the 2™ half of the semester, at b-
en 1 toured MCCS in spring of 1999, [ was impressed w1

the curriculum, the discipline of the classroom and the class structures.

Another problem that I encountered with public schools are the age restrictons.

Allowing the students to be grouped according to aca
ability versus age only is another beaefit provided by MCCS, which is not an alternative,
provided in public schools.
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There is a noted difference in the way that charter schools approach education. There seems
to be a “cookie-cutter” type mentality il public schools ie., they all do the same thing. It's
scary but most of the public schools that I have encountered (either by visiting or in tutoring
other children) appear to be teaching a TAAS based curriculum. In other words, public
school students seem to be taught items that are on the TAAS test galy. This was also a
concern of ours and MCCS and other charter schools do not teach TAAS only. Rather
MCCS teaches a well-rounded curriculum that is inclusive of TAAS guiding principles.

The public
schools that I have visited did not encourage the children to use assignment books, which is
a basic foundaton of MCCS’ ideals. MCCS also encourages excellent handwriting skills in
their students, something else that is lacking in public school curriculums. T

MCCS offers French and Spanish to its students. There is not a school in ot

school districts that offer both French and Spanish (that [ am aware of). Thisisan
excellent benefit and a wonderful enrichment opportunity for elementary students.
Elementary students can grasp alternative languages better at their age than the latter years (I
believe that this is a proven fact but I was unable to locate the research that I had found in
the past on that subject).

I only have one complaint that I have addressed with MCCS administration on more than
one occasion. MCCS does not encourage o[} - s Heard does
not feel that there is a need for such an organization. Education of children cannot be solely
the responsibility of the school that children attend. Parents have to be involved to insure
that the educational needs of the children and parents are adequately addressed. Even
though Ms. Heard is an exceptional administrator in many ways, she downplays the need for
a . If a strong was encouraged,
organized and utilized, MCCS would be an award winning school beczuse the needs of the
students would be more adequately addressed and the parents could help the school
streamline many of it’s administrative tasks.

I conclude this letter with a plea that MCCS’ application be renewed. TAAS scores have
improved over the 5 years that MCCS has been in operation. Enrollment has definitely
increased. Since MCCS offers so many opportunities that are not available at the school
districts in the area, 1 feel this is one of the many reasons that the MCCS should continue




Contract

CONTRACT FOR CHARTER RENEWAL

This contract is executed between the Texas State Board of Education, 1701 North Congress Avenue,
Austin, Texas 78701-1494 {the “Board"} and Medical Center Charter School, 1920 N. Braeswoad,
Houston, Texas, 77030 (“Charterholder”) for an open-enroliment charter to operate a Texas public
school known as Medical Center Charter Schaol.

General - j

1. Definitions. As used in this contract:

“Charter” means the open-enrollment charter, as provided by Subchapter D, Chapter 12,
Texas Education Code (TEC), granted by this contract.

“Charterholder” means Medical Center Charter School, the sponsoring entity identified in the
charter application.

“Charter school” means Medical Center Charter School, the open-emrollment charter school.
Charterholder agrees to operate Medical Center Charter School as provided in this contract.
The charter school is a Texas public school and a charter school within the meaning of 20

U.S.C. §8066.
“Agency” means the Texas Education Agency.

2. The Charter. This contract renews the open-enrollment charter granted to Medical Center
Charter School by that certain Contract for Charter attached as “Exhibit A” hereta, The terms of the
charter include: (a) this Contract for Charter Renewal; (b) applicable law; (c} the Request for
Proposals dated October 1995, as modified and superseded by Charterholder's application for charter
renewal; (d) any condition, amendment, modification, revision or other change to the charter adopted
or ratified by the Board; (g) all statements, assurances, commitments and representations made by
Charterhalder in its application for charter renewal, attachments or related documents, to the extent
consistent with (a) through (d); and (f) assurance by Charterholder, evidenced by execution of this
contract, that no false information was submitted to the Agency or the Board by Charterholder, its
agents or employees in support of its application for charter or for renewal. For purposes of this
paragraph, information is “false” if the person submitting the information knew, or through reasonable
diligence should have discovered, that the information submitted was not true.

3. Authority_Granted by Charter. The charter auythorizes Medical Center Charter School to
operate Medical Center Charter School subject to the terms of the charter. Action inconsistent with

the terms of the charter shall constitute a violation of the charter.

4. Alienation of Charter. The charter may not be assigned, encumbered, pledged or in any way
alienated for the benefit of creditors or otherwise. Charterholder may not delegate, assign,
subcontract or otherwise alienate any of its rights or responsibilities under the charter. Any attempt to
do so shall be null and veid and of no force or effect; provided, however, that Charterholder may
contract at fair market value for services necessary to carry out policies adopted by Charterholder or
the governing body of the charter school. Charterholder may not engage or dgy the terms of the
"RECEIVED

kﬁﬁ Initialed by the SBOE Chair on ~7 /(3 /2001.
Initialed by the Charterholder Chairon &/ %4/2001.
Initialed by the Charterholder CEQ on &_ / +4/2001. ' “’
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engagement of a private management company without approval by the Board in accordance with
Paragraph 7 of this contract. -

5. Term_of Charter. The charter shall be in effect from the date of execution through July 31,
2011, unless renewed or terminated; provided that before the end of the fifth year of the contract term,
{(a) the Board will conduct a review of the school's academic, financial, and compliance recard; and
{b) the Board and the school will negotiate new or modified contract terms upon completion of such
review,

6. Renewal of Charter. On timely application by Charterholder in a manner prescribed by the
Board, the charter may be renewed for an additional period determined by the Board. The charter

- may be renewed only by written amendment approved by vote of the Board and properly executed by
its chair.

7. Revision_by Agreement. The terms of the charter may be revised with the consent of
Charterholder by written amendment approved by vote of the Board. For purposes of this paragraph,
the terms of the charter include, among other provisions, specifications concerning the school's
governance structure, characteristics of the educational program to be offered, and the lecation, type
and number of facilities at which the schooi will operate. Nothing in this paragraph limits the authority
of the Board or the commissioner to act in accordance with other provisions of this contract.

I ] . : - .  Students - - R |

8. Student Performance. Notwithstanding any provision in Charterholder’s application for charter
or for renewal, acceptable student performance under Section 12.111(3), TEC, shali be student
performance meeting the standards for an acceptable rating as determined by the commissioner of
education under Title 19, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 97, or under the Alternative Education
Accountability Rating Procedures, if registered under those procedures.

9. Cpen Enrollment. Total enroliment shall not exceed the maximum number of students
approved by the State Board of Education. Students who reside outside the geographic boundaries
stated in the charter shall not be admitted to the charter school until all eligible applicants who reside
within the boundaries, and have submitted a timely application, have been enrclied. Students will be
admitted on the basis of a lottery if more students apply for admission than can be accommodated, or
using another method approved by the Board.

10. Criminal History. Charterholder shall take prompt and appropriate measures if Charterholder
or the charter school, or any of their employees or agents, obtains information that an employee or
volunteer of the charter school or an employee, officer, or board member of a management company
contracting with the charter school has a reported criminal history that bears directly on the duties and
responsibilities of the employee, volunteer, or management company at the school. Charterholder
further represents that the Board and the Agency shall be notified immediately of such information and
the measures taken.

11, Reporting Child Abuse or Neglect. Charterholder shall adopt and disseminate {o all charter
school staff and volunteers a policy governing child abuse reports required by Chapter 261, Texas
Family Code. The policy shall require that employees, volunteers or agents of Charterholder or the
charter school report child abuse or neglect directly to an appropriate entity listed in Chapter 261,
Texas Family Code.

{ e s
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12. Notice to District. Charterholder shall notify the school district in which the student resides
within three business days of any action expelling or withdrawing a student from the charter school.

13. School Year. Charterholder shall adopt a school year with fixed beginning and ending dates.

Financial Managment |

14. Fiscal Year. Chanerholder shall adopt a fiscal year consistent with Section 44.0011,
Education Code. -

15. Financial Accounting. Unless otherwise notified by the Agency, Charterholder shall comply
fully with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP") and the Financial Accountability System
Resource Guide, Bulletin 679 or its successor (“Bulletin 679") published by the Agency in the
management and operation of the charter school. Charter holder shall also comply with the standards
for financial management systemns outlined in 34 CFR §80.20.

16. Annual Audit. Charterholder shalt at its own expense have the financial and programmatic
operations of the charter school audited annually by a certified public accountant holding a permit from
the Texas State Board of Public Accountancy. Charterholder shall file a copy of the annual audit
report, approved by Charterholder, with the Agency not later than the 120" day after the end of the
fiscal year for which the audit was made. The audit must comply with Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and must include an audit of the accuracy of the fiscal information provided by the charter
schoal through PEIMS. Financial statements in the audit must comply with Government Auditing
Standards and the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 or its successor.

17. Attendance Accounting. To the extent required by the commissioner, Charterholder shall
comply with the “Student Attendance Accounting Handbook” pubilished by the Agency; provided,
however, that Charterholder shall report attendance data to the Agency at six-week intervals or as
directed by the Agency.

18. Foundation School Program. Distribution of funds to the charter school under Section 12.106,
TEC, is contingent upon Charterholder's compliance with the terms of the charter. Charterholder is
ineligible to receive Foundation School Program funds prior to execution of this contract by the Board.
Within 30 days of receiving notice of overallocation and request for refund under Section 42.258, TEC, ™
Chanerholder shall transmit to the Agency an amount equal to the requested refund. If Charterholder/

fails to make the requested refund, the Agency may recover the overallocation by any means
permitted by law, including but not limited to the process set forth in Section 42.258, TEC.

19. Tuition and Fees. Charterholder shall not charge tuition and shall not charge a fee except
that it may charge a fee listed in Subsection 11.158(a), TEC.

20. Assets of Charter. Charterholder shall not apply, hold, credit, transfer or otherwise make use
of funds, assets or resources of the charter school for any purpose other than operation of the charter
schoot authorized by the charter.

21. Indebtedness of Charter. Charterholder shall not incur a debt, secure an obligation, extend
credit, or otherwise make use of the credit or assets of the charter school for any purpose other than
operation of the charter school authorized by the charter.

22. Interested Transactions. All financial transactions between the charter school and (a)
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Charterholder; (b) an officer, director, or employee of Charterholder or of the charter school; or (¢} a
person or éntity having partial or complete control over Charterholder or the charter school shall be
separately and clearly reftected in the accounting, auditing, budgeting, reporting, and record keeping
systems of the charter school. Charterholder shall not transfer any asset of the charter or incur any
debt except in return for goods or services provided for the benefit of the charter school at fair market

value,

23. Non-Charter Activities. Charterholder shall keep separate and distinct accounting, auditing,
budgeting, reporting, and record keeping systems for the management and operation of the charter
school. Any business activities of Charterholder not directly related to the management and operation
of the charter school shall be kept in separate and distinct accounting, auditing, budgeting, reporting,
and record keeping systems from those reflecting activities under the charter. Any commingling of
charter and non-charter business in these systems shall be a violation of the charter.

I ' Governance and Operations : ) S e l

24. Records Retention and Management. Charterholder shall implement a records management
system that conforms to the system required of school districts under the Local Government Records
Act, Section 201.001, et seq., Local Government Cods, and rules adopted thereunder; provided,
however, that records subject to audit shall be retained and available for audit for a period of not less
than five (5) years from the latter of the date of termination or renewal of the charter.

25, PEIMS Reporting. .Charterholder shall report timely and accurate information to the Public
Education Information Management System (PEIMS), as required by the commissioner.

26, Conflict of Interest. Charterholder shall comply with any applicabie prohibition, restriction or
reguirement relating to conflicts of interest or fiduciary duties. If an officer or board member of
Charterholder or of the charter school has a substantial interest, within the meaning of Chapter 171,
Local Government Code, in a transaction, such interest shall be disclosed in public session at a duly
called meeting of the governing body prior to any action on the transaction. ‘

27. Disclosure of Campaign Contributions. Charterholder shall adopt policies that will ensure
compliance with the disclosure requirements of State Board of Education Operating Rule 4.3 or its
SUCCEessar.

28. Indemnification. ~ Except as limited by the Texas Constitution, Charterholder shall hold the
Board and Agency harmless from and shall indemnify the Board and Agency against any and all
claims, demands, and causes of action of whatever kind or nature asserted by any third party and
oceurring or in any way incident to, arising out of, or in connection with wrongful acts of Charterholder,
its agents, employees, and subcontractors.

29. Failure to Operate. Charterholder shall operate the charter school for the full school term as
described in the charter application in each year of the charter contract. Charterholder may not
suspend operation for longer than 21 days without a revision to its charter, adopted by the Board,
stating that the charter school is dormant and setting forth the date on which operations shall resume
and any applicable conditions. Charterholder may not suspend operation of the school for a period of
more than three days without mailing written notice to the parent or guardian of each student and to
the Agency at least 14 days in advance of the suspension; except that in an emergency Charterholder
must notify the Agency by telephone or other means within 24 hours of suspending operations.
Suspension of operations in violation of this paragraph shail constitute abandonment of this contract
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and of the charter.

30. Charter School Facility. Charterholder shail have and maintain throughout the term of the
charter a lease agreement, title or other legal instrument granting to Charterholder the right to occupy
and use one or more facilities suitable for use as the charter school facilities described by the charter.
During any period of dormancy granted by the Board, this raquirement may be waived by the Board.
Facilities occupied and used as charter school facilities shall comply with all applicable laws, including,
but nat limited to, the Texas Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes.
The charter school shall not change location of its instructional facilities or administrative offices from
those listed in the charter application or in a subseguent charter amendment without prior approval of
the Board. When approved by the Board for a new location for an instructional facility, the
charterholder shall, prior to commencing school operations at that foacation, submit to the Charter
Schools Division a certificate of occupancy or equivalent certificate for use of the facility at the new
location as a public school, as requirad in the charter application.

Enforcement

3. Agency Investigations. The commissiongr may in his sound discretion direct the Agency to
conduct investigations of the charter school to determine compliance with the terms of the chanter or
as authorized in the Texas Education Code or other law. Charterholder, its employees and agents
shall fully cooperate with such investigations. Failure to timsly comply with reasonable requests for
access to sites, personnel, documents ar things is a violation of the charter.

32. Commissioner Autr;oriy. The commissioner in his sole discretion may take any action \
autharized by Chapter 39, TEC, Chapter 29, TEC, or Chapter 42, TEC relating to the charter school. ~

Such action is not "adverse action” as used in this contract. Charterholder, its employees and agents
shall fully cooperate with such actions. Failure to timely comply with any action authgrized by Chapter
39, TEC, Chapter 29, TEC or Chapter 42, TEC is a violation of the charter.

33. Adverse Action. The Board in its sole discretion may modify, place on probation, revoke or
deny timely renewal of the charter for cause (“adverse action”). Each of the following shall be cause
for adverse action on the charter: (a) any material violation of the terms of the charter listed in
paragraphs 2 and 3, including accountability provisions; (b) failure to satisfy generally accepted
accounting standards of fiscal management; or (¢} failure to comply with an applicable law or rule.

This Agreement

34, Entire Agreement. This contract, including all referenced attachments and terms incorporated
by reference, contains the entire agreement of the parties, All prior representations, understandings
and discussions are merged into, superseded by and canceled by this contract.

35. Severability. If any provision of this contract is determined by a court or other tribunal to be
unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and
effect, so as to give effect to the intent of the parties to the extent valid and enforceable.

36. Conditions of Contract. Execution of this contract by the Board is conditioned on full and
timely compliance by Charterholder with: (a) the terms, required assurances and conditions of the
Reguest for Proposals dated October 1995; (b} applicable law; and {c) all commitments and
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representations made in Charterholder’s renewal appfication and any supporting documents (to the
extent such commitments and representations are consistent with the terms of this contract).

37. No Waiver of Breach. No assent, express or implied, to any breach of any of the covenants
or agreements herein shall waive any succeeding or other breach.

38. Venue. Any suit arising under this contract shall be brought in Travis County, Texas.
39. Governing Law. In any suit arising under this contract, Texas law shall appiy.

40. Authority. By executing this contract, Charnterholder represents that it is an “eligible entity”
within the meaning of Section 12.101 (a), TEC. Charterholder shall immediately notify the Board of
any legal change in its status, which would disqualify it from holding the charter, of any violation of the
terms and conditions of this contract, or of any change in the chief cperating officer of the
Charterholder. Charterholder further represents that the person signing this contract has been
properly delegated authority to do sa. :

For the State Board of Education:

r/%j Ao «A’&m 7 —r3-4/

Grace Shore, Chair " Date

For Medical Center Charter Schoaol:

@'\\, C .o 25 A A
Dr. R. Vernon Colpitts 7 Date
Chief Executive Officer

6(,‘{._.,_..‘-\ Cu -~ a bl o1

Dr. R. Vernon Colpitts Date
Chair, Governing Board
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Exhibit A
CONTRACT FOR CHARTER =EnEs

CONTRACT entered into this 25th day of March, 1996 by and between the Texas State
Board of Education (the “Board”) and’ Medical Center Charter Sghools, Inc.,

a 501 (c) (3) (“Charterholder”) for the purpose of establishing a charter to operate a public
school.

The term of the charter granted by this contract is from July 1996 through June 1997.
The charter may be renewed for an additional period by mutual agreement of the parties at any
time prior to its expiration.

The charter granted by this contract is contingent upon full and timely compliance with the}
following, all of which are incorporated by reference: S

1. The terms of the Request for Proposals dated October 1995, including the assurances
required by the Request;

2. All applicable requirements of state and federal law and court orders, including any
amendments thereto; and

3. All additional commitments and representations made in Charterholder’s application
and any supporting documents which are consistent with the provisions and requirements of this
contract.

Charterholder understands that the Board may modify, place on probation, revoke or deny
renewal to a charter if the Board determines that a material violation of the charter has occurred,
that Charterholder has failed to satisfy generally accepted accounting standards of fiscal
management, or that the Charterholder has failed to comply with an applicable law or rule. The
parties agree that failure to satisfy accountability provisions adopted under Subchapters B, C, D
and G of Chapter 39 of the Texas Education Code, or their successor provisions, or failure to
operate an open-enrollment charter school during the period of this contract are material
violations of the charter. Charterholder understands that its charter may not be assigned,
encumbered, pledged or in any way alienated for the benefit of creditors or otherwise,

Charterholder represents that it is qualified to enter into this contract and agrees to immediately
notify the Board of any legal change in its status which would disqualify it from holding the
charter, of any violation of the terms and conditions of this agreement, and of any change in the
chief operating officer of the Charterholder.

»

Entered into this 25th day of March,1996.

Texas State Board of Education Medical Center Charter Schools, Inc.,
a 501 {e) (3}
1520 N. Braeswood
Houston, Texas 77030
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By Dr. Iack@hristie, Chairman B{}ﬁ/ames L. McKey, Chaifman




MEDICAL CENTER CHARTER SCHOOL

More Than Academic Excellence

June 28, 2001

CERTIFIED MAIL, R.R.R.
NO. Z 730 936 818

RECEIVED

Mary Perry, Assistant Director
Charter Schools Division
Texas Education Agency

701 North Congress Ave.
Austin, Texas 78701-14%94

Dear Ms. Perry:

Enclosed are the duly executed duplicate original contracts mailed to me under cover of
letter dated June 5, 2001.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Yours very truly,

G_op—ﬂ\ C—v/’;’p:—/ﬂ-\

R. Vernon Colpits

1920 N. Brueswood Houston, ‘Lexas 77030 - Phone: 7137919980 -« Fux: 713.791.9594 2

1420 Mullins Houston. Texas 770060 - Phone: 7T13.726.0223 . Fax: 713.726.0225
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